
DATE:
TIME:
PLACE:

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

MEMBERS:

Mayor Charles Goodman
Council President Debra Jones
Vice-President Marguerite Robinson
Councilmember Michael Cox
Councilmemb er Zach Bullo ck
Councilmember Elihu Ross

CITY OF WILLTSTON, FLORIDA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

AGENDA

OTHERS:

TUESDAY, JANUARY 3, 2023
6:00 P.M.
WILLISTON CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER

City Manager Terry Bovaird
Attorney Kiersten Ballou
City Clerk Latricia Wright

OPENING PRAYER AND PLEDG OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG

ITEM _ 1 _ ADDITIONS. DELETIONS. GES AND APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

ITEM _ 2 - PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

ITEM - 3 - CONSENT AGENDA - ( pp s-9)
o Council minutes from December 6"2022

ITEM-4_OLDBUSINESS

A. AND BOARD AND
o CITY MANAGER TERRY BOVAIRD
e STAFF
o COUNCIL
o MAYOR

ITEM-5_NEWBUSINESS-

A. DISCUSSION WITH POSSIBI,E A : JAY BEASLEY: STADIUM PARK
SIDEWALK CONTRACT.(pp I 0-27)

OPEN PUBLIC HEARING

B. 2ND READING ORDINANCE 2022-705: AN ORDINANCE To PROVIDE FoR
TIJI] A NIT\TF.\.II\TG OF CER A T-I\I DDr\ TV TN TI{tr T'ITV NF \I/TT T TqTr)NT

PROVIDING THE DESCRIPTION OF THE ANNEXED PROPERTY:
THAT THE ANNEXED AREA BE

1



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COLINCIL MEETING

TO ALL B
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE PLANNER LAIIRA JONF.S. (nn28-

C
4_L)
2ND READING oRDINANC E 2022-706: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF

WILLISTON. FLORIDA. AMENDING THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF
WILLISTON IVE PLAN PURSUANT TO AN APPLICATION BY
CECIL TANNER FOR 3.2+/- ACRES IDENTIFIED AS PARCEL 05099-OO1.OO
ON THE OFFICIAL RECORDS OF THE LEVY COUNTY PROPERTY
APPRAISER. UNDER THE AMENDMENT PROCEDURES ESTABLISHED IN
CHAPTER 163. FLORIDA S CHANGING THE ZONING AND THE
FI]TI]RE I.AND E CLASSIFICATION FROM TURAL TO
RESIDENTIAL DUPLEX ON CERT LANDS WITHIN THE CORPORATE
LIMITS OF THE OF WILLISTON FLORIDA. DESCRIBED HEREIN:

EVERABILITY
MAPS. AND PROVIDING AN DATE. CITY PLANNER LAURA
JoNES. fup a2-65)

CLOSE PUBLIC HEARING

D. DISCUSSION POSSIBLE ACTION: SELECTING A FUTURE DATE FOR
COUNCIL MEE

ANNEXATION OF PROPERTY ID AS THE OLD WILLISTON
CIL PRESID

BOVAIRD. (pp 66-68)
E. RESOLI]TION 202 3-01: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE

CITY OF WILLISTON. FLORIDA. ES LISHING AUTHORIZATION FOR
THE CITY COIINCII, PRESIDENT AUTHORIZETHE SIGNING OF A

WITH DIALMYCALL
DATE. IT DIRECTOR AARON C WORKS SUPERVISOR
DONALD BARBER. (pp 69-82)

F. RESOLUTION 2023-03: A RESOL OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF WTI,I,ISTON FLORID A APPOINTING DEBRA JONES AND WAYNE
CARSON TO THE CITY OF WII,I,TS GENERAL EMPLOYEE'S PENSION
PLAN AND TR FOR A PERIOD OF TWO (2) YEARS : AND PROVIDING

EFFECTIVE DATE 83-84
G. RESOLIJTION -04: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE

CITY OF WILLISTON. FLORIDA APPOINTING THE CANVASSING BOARD
FOR THE 2023 MUNICIP AL ELECTIONS AND ESTABLISHING AN

DATE. CITY CLERK
H. RESOLUTION 2023-O5: A RESOT.I ON OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE

TON FLORIDA
AGREEMENT FOR VACANT I,ANI) BRIAN HERNANDEZ AND

STON FOR PROPER T
LEGAL DESCRIPTION AS IN THE ATTACHED LAND LEASE

STAND #1 5 AUTH
COUNCIL PRESIDENT TO EXECI]TE LAND LEASE AGREEMENT: AND

2



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COLTNCIL MEETING

DATE. T
STEGALL. ('op 89-105)

I. RESOLUTION 2023-06: A RESOLI ON OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF WII,I,ISTON FLORTDA APPROVING THE LAND I,EASE
AGREEMENT FOR VACANT LAND RETWEEN AMP2. LLC AND THE CITY
OF WILLISTON R PROPERTY AT THE AIRPORT WITH A LEGAL
DESCRIPTION AS OUTLINED IN THE ATTACHED LAND LEASE
AGREEMENT: AUTHORIZING THE CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT TO

LEASE AG
STEGALL. 106-1

J. DISCI]SSION POSSIBLE ACTION: PUBLIC WORKS HOP FOR ANNUAL
I TTTT TTItr S RATE A T-TTT TQ'I-I\/IE\T'NE traTpta rl^q \r/ATtrP S,E\I/FP

STORMWATER) C WORKS SUPERVISOR DONALD BARBER. hp 124)
K. DISCUSSION WITH POSSIBLE ACTI : MAKE ALL CITY PARKS TOBACCO

FREE. CO PRESIDENT DEBRA JONES (pp 125-133)
L. DISCUSSION: CHANGE IN VOTE BY MAIL LAW. CITY CLERK LATRICIA

GHT 134-1

_ 6 - PUBLI

- ANNOUN

ITEM_8-ADJOURNMENT

NEXT SCHEDULED COI]NCII, MEETING JANUARY 17-2023. AT 6:00 P.M.

NEW LINK: Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone

v.fln ntral.com in

Meeting lD: 069017976

One tap to join audio only from a smartphone:
+16504191505,,O690L7976/# United States (San Mateo, CA)

Or dial:

+1 (550)4191505 United States (San Mateo, CA)

Access Code / Meeting lD:069077976

lnternational numbers available: https://v.ringcentral.com/teleconference

YouTube Link: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCKtl468kcNjBS2AYgOaBsRQ

3



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

Clicking this link will enable you to see and hear the Council meeting

Council Meeting Procedures for members of the Public

I . All cell phones to be turned off when entering the Council Chambers.
2. Once the audience has taken their seat and the meeting begins, there will be no talking between audience members

during the course of the Council meeting. If anyone continues to talk within the audience and is called down 3 times
during the course of the meeting, on the third time that person will be escorted out of the Council meeting;

3. The audience must be recognized by the President before being allowed to address the Council;
4. The mernber of the audience that is recognized will proceed to the podium, state their name for the benefit of the City

Clerk, prior to offering comments on a given matter.
5. The audience mernber will be limited to not more than 5 minutes to speak based on Resolution 2012-07;
6. There will be no personal attacks made by any member in the audience toward a sitting Council member and no

personal attacks made by any Council mernber toward a member of the audience;
7 . There will be no conversation between a member of the audience that has been recognized and any other member of the

audience when speaking while at the podium;
8. If an audience mernber wants to speak more than the allotted 5 minutes allowed then that person should make a request

to City Hall so that the item may be placed on the agenda.

Minutes of the City Council meeting may be obtained from the City Clerk's office. The minutes are recorded, but not transcribed
verbatim. Persons requiring a verbatim transcript may make arrangements with the City Clerk to duplicate the recordings, or
alrange to have a court reporter present at the meeting. The cost of duplication and/or court reporter will be bome by the
requesting party.
In accordance with Section 286.0105. Florida Statutes, notice is given that ifa person wishes to appeal a decision made by the
City Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting they will need a record of the proceedings, and for such
purpose may need to ensure that a verbatim record ofthe proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence
upon which the appeal is based.

In accordance with Section 286.26. Florida Statutes. persons with disabilities needing special accommodations to participate in
this meeting should contact the Mayor through the City Clerk's office no later than 5:00 P.M. on the day prior to the meeting.

4



DATE:
TIME:
PLACE

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

MEMBERS:

Mayor Charles Goodman
Council President Debra Jones
Vice-President Marguerite Robinson
Councilmember Michael Cox
Councilme mber Zach Bullo ck
Councilmember Elihu Ross

CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

MINUTES

OTHERS:

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 6, 2022
6:00 P.M.
WILLISTON CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER

Interim City Manager Terry Bovaird
Finance Director Stephen Bloom
City Clerk Laticia Wright
Attorney Kiersten Ballou

OPENING PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG
Opening prayer and Pledge of Allegiance to the flag led by Mayor Goodman.

ITEM _ 1 - ADDITIONS. DEI-ETIONS- GES AND APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA
Table ltem#7 (B) and Item #3. Motion to approve agenda as amended by Vice-President
Robinson. Seconded by Councilmember Bullock. Motion carried 5-0.

ITEM - 2 -MAYOR'S STUDENT OF THE MONTH: Mayor Goodman presented Oliver Mack,
2nd Grade Joyce Bullock Elementary School, and Annastyn Chorvat, WillistorVMiddle High
School with a Certificate of Appreciation along with a certificate for a free pizza from Dominos.

ITEM _ 3 _ PROCLAMATION: HONORING THE WILLISTON RED DEVILS FOOTBALL
TEAM. (tabled)

ITEM-4- PAR one

ITEM - 5 - CONSENT AGENDA - Motion by Vice-President Robinson to approve Consent
Agenda. Seconded by Councilmember Ross. Motion carried 5-0.

o Council minutes from November 8,2022

ITEM-6-OLDBUSINESS

A. STAFF AND BOARD AND COUNCIL UPDATES
INTERIM CITY MANAGER TERRY BOVAIRD - Interim Bovaird, discussed with
Council the need to replace the well pump at the top of the hill. Pump only runs for
about 3 to 12 minutes before shutting off. This is an emergency items that needs to be
replaced as soon as possible. Consensuses was given by the Council to replace the
pump right away.

a

5



a

a

CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COI'NCIL MEETING

STAFF - Attorney Ballou announced to the Council, Folds and Walker has filed a
motion of default on Mr. Pesso's property.
COTINCIL - none

ITEM-7_ BUSINESS _

A. DISCUSSION WITH POSSIBLE : ALI MIRZA: OLD MIDDLE
SCHOOL. Mr. Mirza presented a PowerPoint to council regarding plans for the old
Williston Middle School. Council discussed with Mr. Mirza about holding a public
meeting to get input from the community about the facility coming into their area.

B. RESOLUTION 2O22-96: A RESOL ON OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA. APPROVING THE LAND LEASE
AGREEMENT BETWEEN GAINES AIRCRAFT SALES. LLC. AND THE

AT THE AIRPORT KNOWN AS
HARDSTAND6WITHALEGAL DESCRIPTION AS OUTLINED IN THE
ATTACHED LAND LEASE A : AUTHORIZING THE CITY
COUNCIL PRELIDENT TO EXECUTE THE LAND LEASE AGREEMENT: AND
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DA . AIRPORT MANAGER BENTON
STEGALL. Tabled

C. DISCUSSION WITH POSSIBLE ACTI : MONTEREY BOATS EXPANSION.
AIRPORT MANAGER BENTON STEGALL. Airport Manager Stegall discussed
vegetation buffer for Monterey Boats for property they plan to clear and an
amendment or first right of refusal for property located on survey as G and all of F
Will bring back at a later day.

D. DISCUSSION WITH POSSIBLE ACTION: REVIEW OF SEPTEMBER 2022
FINANCIAL REPORT. FIN DIRECTOR STEPHEN BLOOM. - Finance
Director Bloom reviewed September 2}22Financial report with Council. The city
only used $25,000 of the reserves. Everything else looks great.

E. DISCUSSION WITH POSSIBLE ACTION: CHANGING FROM LINCOLN
INVESTMENTS TO ASPIRE. INTERIM CITY MANAGER TERRY
BOVAIRD/JIMMY CASON NATURE COAST FINANCIAL. - Interim Bovaird
discussed Lincoln Investments will be changing to Aspire as soon as Drummond
Bank changes to Seacoast Bank. Employees that have Lincoln can stay with the
company or they can switch to Aspire. Motion by Vice-President Robinson to allow
Interim Manager Bovaird sign contract with Aspire. Seconded by Councilmember
Bullock. Motion carried 5-0.

OPEN PUBLIC HEARING

F. 2ND READING: ORDINANCE 2022-703 AN oRDINANCE oF THE CITY oF
TONWII,I,IS FLORID A AMENDING THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF

WILLISTON COMPREHENSIVE PLAN PURSUANT TO AN APPLICATION BY

6



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

COVINGTON FPC. I-I,C. FOR 47.9 +I- ACRES IDENTIFIED AS NUMEROUS
PARCEI,S (ATTACHF,D AS EXHIBIT A) ON THE OFFICIAL RECORDS OF
THE LEVY COUNTY PROPERTY ER. UNDER THE AMENDMENT
PROCEDTJRES ESTARI,ISHED IN 163. FLORIDA STATUTES:

THE ZONING AND THE
FROM RESIDENTIAL TO MIXED I]S ON CERTAIN LANDS WITHIN THE

OF THE CITY OF
HEREIN: PROVIDING SE : PROVIDING FOR INCORPORATION
ON CITY MAPS. PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. CITY PLANNER
LAURA JONES. - Swore in participants for Berkley Subdivision. Motion to approve
Ordinance 2022-703 by Councilmember Bullock. Seconded by Councilmember Ross.
Motion carried 5-0.

G ST ANCE 2022-704: AN ORD
THE CITY OF WILLISTON "WATE,R SEWER SYSTEM CAPACITY FEE
ORDINANCE'': ING DEFINITIONS. RULES OF CONSTRUCTION:

ING FINDINGS
SEWER CAPACITY FEES PROVID ING FOR PAYMENT AND USE OF

ING FOR EXEMPTI
OF CAPACITY FEES I]PON CHANG IN SIZE AND USE: PROVIDING FOR

UTION CRED
COLLECTION OF WATF,R AND SEWER SYSTEM CAPACITY FF,F,S:

PROVIDING FOR HEARINGS: REOUIRING PERIODIC REVIEW:
I-}tr'T API\Trl EXCLUSI N\T EDr\l\/I A ATT\/tr PPrtrltrNT TI}trC A'T.
PROVIDING FOR PI]RI,IC HEARIN : PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT AND

PROVIDING
MANAGER TERRY BOVAIR NALD BARBER PUBLIC WORKS
SUPERVISOR. - Motion to approve Ordinance 2022-104 on First Reading by
Councilmember Bullock. Seconded by Vice-President Robinson. Motion carried 5-0

H. 1ST READING oRDINANcE 2o22-7o5 : AN ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE FOR
THE ANNEXING CERTAIN PROPERTY IN THE CITY OF WILLISTON;
pp OVIDING THE DEQrlDTDTTTTNT rTF TTJF AI\T.I\TFJ.trN PPr)PtrPTV
PROVIDING THAT THE ANNEXED AREA BE SUBJECTED TO ALL LAWS
A T\TI) REGULATION AND E\T'NT'I-T ET) Tr) AT T EIFNITFTTq ANTN PPT\/TI l]rlFq
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. CITY PLANNER LAURA JONES. - Motion
by Vice-President Robinson to approve Ordinance 2022-705. Seconded by
Councilmember Cox. Motion carried 5-0.

I. lST REAOTNG: ORDINANCF, 2022-7 : AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF
WII,I,ISTON FLORIDA AMENDIN G THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF
WILLISTON COMPREHENSIVE PT,AN PURSUANT TO AN APPLICATION BY

R 3.2 +/- ACRES IDENTIFIED
ON THE OFFICIAL RECORDS OF THE LEVY COUNTY PROPERTY
APPRAISER. T]NI) THE AMENDMENT PROCEDURES ESTABLISHED IN
CHAPTER 163. FLORIDA STATI]TES ; CHANGING THE ZONING AND THE

7



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COLINCIL MEETING

LAND USE
RESIDENTIAL DI]PI-EX ON CF,RTA LANDS WITHIN THE CORPORATE
T IT\/ITq NIi TIJtr 

'TTV OF WILLISTON FT r)RINA T]FSr.PTEItrN IJFPFTI\I
PROVIDING SEVERABILITY: ING FOR INCORPORATION ON CITY
MAPS. AND PR ING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. CITY PLANNER LAURA
JONES. - Motion to approve by Vice-President Robinson. Seconded by
Councilmember Cox. Motion carried 5-0.

CLOSE PUBLIC HEARING

J. DISCUSSION WITH POSSIBLR A : REPAIR CATERPILLAR SKID
STEER NO TO EX $12.000. UTILITY DIRECTOR J BISHOP.
Motion to approve up to $12,000 for repair by Vice-President Robinson. Seconded by
Councilmember Bullock. Motion carried 5-0.

K. DISCUSSION WITH POSSIBI,E ACTI : APPROVAL OF PURCHASE OF SHI
MICROSOFT EX GE ONLINE OIN2G USER AND ICE 365 E3GCC

INTERIM CITY
Motion to approve purchase of SHI license for $ I 1,028.00 by Vice-President
Robinson. Seconded by Councilmember Cox. Motion carried 5-0.

L. RESOLUTION 2022-97 A RESOT,IITT ON OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
STON FLORID APPR

MUNICIPAL ELECTION DATES A PROCESS AND ESTABLISHING AN
CLERK LATRICIA

Motion to approve Resolution 2022-97 by Vice-President Robinson. Seconded by
Councilmember Bullock. Motion carried 5-0.

M. RESOLUTION 2O22-98: A RESOLI OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
TON

THE CITY COI]NCII. PRESIDENT AUTHORIZE THE PURCHASE OF
FW 36C WATER METER B

EFFECTIVE DATE. JASON I, LOGISTICS DEPARTMENT
Motion to approve Resolution 2022-98 by Vice-President Robinson. Seconded by
Councilmember Bullock. Motion carried 5-0.

N. RESOLUTION 2022-99: A RESOL ON OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
RID AUTHORIZING THE

POLE TRAILER FROM RING POWER IN ACCORDANCE WITH
l6 AUTHORIZING THE CITY

ENT AND CITY
NECESSARY TO FACII,ITATE SAID PURCHASE: AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE. INTERIM CITY AGER TERRY BOVAIRD/ELECTRIC
SUPERVISOR CHAEL MILLER.
Motion to approve Resolution 2022-99 by Councilmember Cox. Seconded by Vice-
President Robinson. Motion carried 5-0.

8



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

O. DISCUSSION WITH POSSIBLE ACTION: REVIEW OF TERRY BOVAIRD
CONTRACT APPOINTING TERRY BOVAIRD AS CITY MANAGER. COUNCIL
PRESIDENT DEBRA JONES.
Consensus from Council to move forward with making Interim City Manager
Bovaird, permanent City Manager.

P. RESOLUTION 2022-100: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF WILLISTON. FLORIDA. ENTERING INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH
TERRY BOVAIRD TO SERVE AS CITY MANAGER OF THE CITY OF
WILLISTON. FLORIDA: AUTHORIZING THE CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT TO
EXECUTE THE CITY OF WILLISTON CITY MANAGER AGREEMENT; AND
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. COUNCIL PRESIDENT DEBRA JONES.
Motion to approve Resolution 2022-100 by Councilmember Cox. Seconded by Vice-
President Robinson. Motion carried 5-0.

ITEM - 8 - PUBLIC PARTICIPATION - none.

ITEM - 9 - ANNOUNCEMENTS - Vice-President Robinson read letter to Council regarding
Mayor Goodman credit card usage. (Letter attached). City Planner Jones announced "Movie in
the Park" at Cornelius Williams Park December lTth starting at 5 p.m. Chief Roll announced
Santa will be in town on December 15th around 5 p.m. Ethics Training December l4rh at attomey
Folds and Walker office.

ITEM - 10 - ADJOURNMENT - Motion to adjourn at9:35 by Vice-President Robinson
Seconded by Councilmember Cox. Motion carried 5-0.

9



Date: January 3,2023

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

TOPIC: DISCUSSION WITH POSSIBLE ACTION: JAY BEASLEY 6.SIDEWALK

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT AND INDEMNITY AGREEMENT" BETWEEN THE
CITY OF WILLISTON AND JAY AND JANE BEASLEY.

REQUESTED BY: MR. JAY BEASLEY
PREPARED BY: MR. JAY BEASLEY

BACKGROUND i DESCRIPTION: CONSTRUCT A FIVE (5) FOOT WIDE (LENGTH
NOTED IN PARAGRAPH TWO (2) OF CONTRACT) SIDEWALK FOR JAy AND JANE
BEASLEY AT SW 5TH AVE.

LEGAL REVIEW: NO LEGAL REVIEW AT THIS TIME. CONTRACT AND
INDEMNITY SENT TO COW ATTORNEY ON 1212212023.

FISCAL IMPACTS: $8,932.10 PAID TO THE CITY OF WILLISTON
(QUOTE ATTACHED)

RECOMMENDED ACTION: DENY REQUEST UNTIL REVIEW BY CITY
ATTORNEY OF CONTRACT AND INDEMNITY AGREEMENT.

ATTACHMENTS: QUOTE, CONTRACT AND INDEMNITY AGREEMENT.

COMMISSION ACTION:

APPROVED

DISAPPROVED

10



City Manager

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Donald Barber

Friday, December 2,2022 2:52 PM

Ron Beasley

Jonathen Bishop; Debra Jones; City Manager
RE:Sidewalk quote.Subject:

Mr. Beasley,

Here is the itemized list that I committed to sending to you

Sidewalk Quote:

Sub Total: 57732.10

Contingency: S 1200.00

Total: S 8932.10

DONeTo BARBER
CITv or WILLISToN
PuBLrc Wonxs Supenvlson

352-528-3060 EXT. t26
DoNeto. enRgER@wl Lt-lstor,{rt.one

The content of this email is confidential ond intended for the recipient specified in message only. tt is
strictly forbidden to shore any part of this message with any third party, without q written consent of
the sender. If you received this message by mistake, please reply to this message and follow with its
deletion, so thot we can ensure such a mistoke does not occur in the future.

1
11



SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT
BETWEEN JAYAND JANE BEASLEY and

the CITY of WILLISTON, FLORIDA

This construction Contract (the "Contmct" or "Agreement") is macle as of
"Date ",2022 (the "Effbctive Date") by and between the City Of Williston
Florida and Jay a:rd Jane Beasley residing at415l NR 140 Coufi, Williston Floricla, 32G96,

The City of Williston F'iorida, agrees to provicle sonstruction services to Jay and Jane Beasley as
stated within paragraph 1 . "l'he City Of Williston F lorida will act as the contractor fbr all fbcits
of the construction of the sidewalk as stated herein. Jay and Jane Beasley desire to obtain such
services fi'om the City of Williston Florida. 'lhe "Services" are to be located at SW 5th Avenue,
Williston, Florida.

fhis includes building and construction materials, necessary labor and site security, ancl all
rcquired tools and machinery needed fbr completion of the construction of the agreed to
sidewalk.

1.DESCRIPTIoNoFSE'RvICES.Beginnirrgon''I)ate-",2a23,theCityol
Williston Florida will provide to Jay and .lane Beasley a completed llve (ij foot wicle sidewalk
the length as noted in paragraph two (2) and known as parcel ID 2222600200 of Plat Book l l
Page 43, Lots 1&2 on the oity side of the eascment along SW 5th Avenue. The City of Williston
will act as the contractor fbr all {'acets of the construction of the sidewalk as statecl ircrein.

2. SCOPE OF WORK. Tlie City ol Williston Florida will provide all services, rnaterials and
Iabor fbr the oonstruction of "The Sidewalk". The City of Williston agrees to build a ped.estrian
sidewalk five (5) fcet wide and the length as plotted on the current suwey and currenf plat of
which is as fbllows. Segment I is equal 1o23.46', segment 2 is equal to 94.88', segrnent 3 is
equal ta 129.93'. The total length of the sidewalk to be constructed will be 248,19;. Any
sidewalk construction that takes place between segnenf I and the intersection of SW 5th Avenue
and SW 3rd Street wiil be considered beyond the "scope of Work" of this project and will be the
responsibility of the City of Williston.

3. PLANS' SPECIFICATIONS AND CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS. The City Of
Williston Florida will aot as the contractor for all fbcets of the construction of the sidewalk as
stated herein. Jay and Jane Beasley will make available to the City of Williston Floricla a survey
and plat necessary for measuremcnt purposes so that fte City of Williston can accurately
calculate the cost of the construction of the sidewalk provide the "services" described herein.
Any such rnaterials and machinery used in the construction project shall remain the property of
the City Of Williston. The City of Williston will not bc required to return clocumenti piovicied
by Jay and Jane Beasley upoll completion of the Services.

'|HEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth below, the parties agree as
follows:

12



T'he City of Williston shall clearly rnark the boundaries of the building site prior to the start of
construction in accordancc with the easement measurements noted on Jay and Jane lleasley's
recorded survey and plat and as noted in paragraph two (2) and shall maintain these boundaries
and markers in proper position throughout construction.

4. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. The Cily of Williston shallprovide the "Selices" itt a
workrnanlike and tirnely manner, and in compliance with all applicable federal, state and
local laws and regulations, including, but not limited to all provisions of thc Fair Labor
Standards Act, the Americans with Disabilities Act, and the Federal Family and Medical Leavc
Act.

5. WORK SITE. 'l'he Cily Of Williston Florida will act as the contraotor firr all fbcets of the
construction of the sidewalk as stated herein and warants that Jay and Jane Beasley agree to the
looation olthe placement of thc sidewalk and that the sidewalk will be constructed on the City
Side of the easernent adjacentthe property owned by Jay and Jane Beasley and on the easement
f-acing SW 5th Avcnuo atid fi'om the western survey marker to the eastcm sLrrvey marker along
SW 5th Avenue of the properly owned by Jay and Jane tseasley as herein described and is
authotized to enter into this contract prior to the start of construction. The City of Mlliston
Public Works Department shall clearly mark the boundaries of the building site prior to the
start of construction in ascordance r.vith the easement measurements noted on Jay and Janc
Beasley's recorded survey and plat and shall maintain these boundary and markers in proper
position throughout construction.

6. MATERIALS ANDIOR LABOR PROVIDAD. The City of Williston Florida, Publio
Wclrks Department shall provide to Jay and Jane Beasley an itemized list of all oosts and their
definitions in an official City of Williston fbrmat such as an offical quote or invoice on City
letterhead, quote or invoice form. This List of rnaterials andlor labor shall be attached to this
Agreement as Exhibit A. 'l'lre City of Wiliiston Florida, Public Works Department declares,
under the laws of the State of Florida, that this l-ist is a true and correct statement of each and
every charge lor materials and/or labor as part of the Services herein described.

City of Williston Florida, Public Works Department may substitute materials provided the
substitution does not Lrnnecessarily and adversely increase the cost of thc the construction of the
sidewalk described herein.

7. PAYMENT. Payment shall be made to City of Williston Florida, 50 NW Main Street,
Williston, Floricia 32696, in the amount of $8,932.14 upon executing this Agreement.

In addition to any other right or remedy provided by law, if Jay and Jane Beasley fails to pay for
the Services when due, the City of Williston Florida has the option to tleat such failure to pay as
a material breach of this Contract, and may cancel this Agreement.

8. OTHER PAYMENT PROVISIONS.'I'he lump sum payment to the City of Williston
includes a $ I ,200 contingency fbe that provides in the event that rnaterials increasc in price
between the time this agreement is signed and construction of the sidewalk project commences
or during the construction of the sidewalk that is to be refrnded in hrll or in part dependir"rg on
the amount of cost overage incun'ed if any. T'he City of Williston Florida agrees to provide

13



documentation verifring the actual cost of the sid.ewalk ancl also agrees to refuld any or all of
the unused contingenoy fbe within thirty clays (30) of the completi-n of the sidewalk as per the
time table set forth in this agreement.

9. TERM. The City of Williston Florida, Public Works Departrncnt shall oorrrmence the work to
be performed as outlined within the adopted resolution createtJ fbr this project ancl shall complete
the work on or befbre March 31,2023,tirne being of the essence olthii contract.

Additionally, should the City of Williston fail to conlrnence constructjon of the sidewalk on the
agreed to date as outlined in this contract the City of Williston agrees to waive any construction
material cost increases to Jay and Jane Beasley during the delay or frilure to commence
construction.

Also, since Jay and Janc Beasley agree to pay the City of Williston fbr the entirety of the
sidewalk construction project as the attachecl quote oi invoice inclicates at the tirne this
agreement is irnplemented, the City of Williston agrees to issue the Certificate of Occupancy for
the newly constructed home that instituted the ueition of this agreement at the time the home
sonstruction is complete and has passed all inspections as deterprilecl by the City of Williston
construction regulations and building codes,

Upon completion of the project, the City Of Williston Florida acting as the contractor for all
l'acets of the construction of the sidewalk as stated herein agrees to sign a Notice of Completion
within ten (10) days after the completion of the oontract. The City uf Williston will provide the
Notice of Completion to Jay and Jane Beasley. 'fhe Notice of Completion will act as proof of
obligatkrn completion by both Jay and Jane Beasley and the City oft Williston.

10. CONFIDENTIALITY. 'l'he City of Williston Florida and its employees, agonts, or
representatives will not at any time or in any manner, either directly oi in<lircctly, use ony
personal inlormation provided by Jay and Jane Beasley to benefit of City of Wiiliston Florida or
divulge, disclose, or communicate in any manner, any information that is proprietary provided to
the City Of Williston Florida or the City of Williston Florida Public Works DLpartment. The
City of Williston employees, agents, aud representatives will protect such infbrmation and treat it
as striotly confi dential.

Upon termination of this Contract, City of Williston Florida, Public Works Department will
return 1o Jay and.Iane Beasley all records, notes, documentation anci other items that were usecl,
created, or controlled by City of Williston Florida during the term of this Contract that are not
permanent records fbr the execution and completion of this project if any shoulcl exist.

11. INDEMNIFICATION. See Indemnification attachment.

12. WARRANTY. The City of Williston F'loricla shall provide its services and meet its
obligations under this Contract in a timely and workmanlike manner, using knowletige and
recommendations fbr performing the services whiclt meet generally acoepiable standirds within
the community and region, and will provide a stanciard of Care equal to, or superior to, carc usecl
by service providers similar to the City of Williston Florida on similar projecis. The City of
Williston Florida shall sonstruct the siclewalk in conlormance with the plans, spccifications, and
any breakdowu and binder leceipt signetl by thc City of Williston Florida engineers ancl planners

14



and the City Of Williston Florida will act as the contractor for all facets of the construction of the
sidewalk as stated herein..

13. FREE ACCESS TO WORKSITE. The City Of Williston F'lorida will act as the contractor
fior ail facets of the construction of the sidewalk as stated herein and will allow free access to
work areas for workers and vehicles and will allow areas for the storage of materials and debris
away fi'om the property of Jay and Jane Beasley. Driveways will be kept clear for tlie rnovernent
of vehicles during work hours. T'he City of Williston Florida, Public Works Department will
make reasonable efforts to protcct driveways, lawns, shrubs, and other vegetation. The City of
Mlliston Florida, Public Works Deparlment also agrees to keep the Worksite clean and orderly
and to remove all debris as needed during the hours of work in order to maintain work conditions
which do not cause health or safety hazards.

14. DEFAIILT. The occurrence of any of the following shall constitute a material default under
this Contract:

a, 'lhe failure of The City Of Williston Florida to act as the contractr:r 1or all f.aoets o1'the
construction of the sidewalk as stated herein.

b. A lawsuit is brought on any claim, seizure, lien or levy for labor performed or materials used

on or t-urnishcd to the project by either party, or there is a general assignment for the benefit
of creditors, application or sale fbr or by any creditor or other agency brought against either
party.

c. 'l'he ftrilure of The City Of Williston Florida to deliver the Services in the time and manner
provided for in this Agreement.

15. RRMEDIES. In addition to any and all other rights aparly may have available according to
law of the State of Florida, if a party def'aults by failing to substantiaily perform any provision,
term or condition of this Contract (including without limitation the fbilure to make a monetary
payment when due), the other party may terminate the Contract by ptoviding written notice to
the defaulting party. This notice shall describe with sufficient detail the nature of the default.'l'he
party receiving said notice shall have 10 days from the effective date of said notice to cure the
default(s) or begin substantial completion if completion cannol be made in 10 days. Uniess
waived by a party providing notice, the failure to cure or begin curing, the default(s) within such
time period shall result in the automatic termination of this Contract.

16. FORCE MAJEURE. If performance of this Contract or any obligatiori thereunder is
prevented, restricted, or interfered with by causes beyond either parly's reasonable control
("Force Majeure"), and if the party unable to cary out its obligations gives the other party
prornpt written notice of such evenl, then the obligations of the party invoking this provision
shall be suspended to the extcnt necessary by such event. The term Force Majeurc shall include,
but not be limitecl to, acts of God, plague, epidemic, pandemic, outbreaks ol inf'ectious disease or
any other public health crisis, includirrg quarantine or other employee restrictions, fire,
explosion, vanclalism, storm, casualty, illness, injury, general unavailability of materials or other
similar occurrencc, orders or acts of military or civil authority, or by national emergencies,
insurrections, riots, or wars, or strikes, lock-outs, work stoppages, or other labor disputes, or
supplier fbilures. I'he excused party shall use reasonable efforts under the circumstances to avoid

15



or remove suoh causes of non-performance and shall proceecl to perfbrm with reasonable
dispatch whenever such causes are relnoved or ceased. An act or omission shall be deemed
within the reasonable control of a party if conrrr..ittecl, omitted, or caused by such party, or its
employees, officers, agents, or afljliates.

17. DISPUTE RESOLUTION. The parties will atternpt to resolve any clispute arising out of or
relating_to this Agreement through frienclly negotiationi amongst the parties. If the malter is not
resolved by negotiation, the parties will resolve the disput. uring the Lelow Alternative Dispute
Resolution (ADR) procedure.

Any controversies or disputes arising out of or relating to this Agreement will be submittecl to
rnediation in accordaucc with any statutory rules of mediation, Iime{iation is not successful i'
resolving the entire dispute or is unavailable, any outstancling issues will be submitted to final
and binding arbitration under the rules of the American Arbitration Association. 'fhe arbitrator's
award will be final, and judgment may be entered upon it by any court having propcr
jurisdiotion.

18' ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Contract contains the entire Agreement of the parlies, and
there are no other protnises or conclitions in any other contract or igreement whethlr oral or
wfitten concerning the subject matter of this Agreement. Any anrendments rnust be i1 writing
and signed by each party. This Agreement supersecles any piior written or oral agreements
between tlie parties.

19. SEVERABILITY. if any provision of this Agreement will be held to be invalid or
unenfbrceable for any reason, the remaining provisions will continue to tre valid and enforceable.
If a court finds that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenfbrceable, but that by
limiting such provision it would becorne valid and enforceable, fhen such provision will be
deemed to be written, construed, and enforced as so
limited.

20. AMENDMENT. fhis Agreement may be modified or amcnded in writing, if the wriring is
signed by each pafiy.

21. GOVERNING LAW. 'fhis Agreement shall be construed in accordance with, and governed
by the laws of the State of Florida, without regard to any choice of law provisions of F-lorida or
any other j urisdiction.

22. NOTICE. Any notice or comrnunication requirecl or pennitted under this Agreernent shall be
suf ciently given if delivered in person or by certilied miil, return reccipt.equ.rt"d, to the
adclress set forth in the opening paragraph or to such other addrsss as onb party may havc
furnished to the other in writing.

16



23. WAMR OF CONTRACTUALRIGHT. The f'ailure of either party to enlorce any
provision of this Contract shall not be construcd as a waiver or limitation of that party's right to
subsequently enforce and compel strict compliance with every provision of this Contract,

24. SIGNATORIES. This Agreement shall be signed by on behalf
of the City Of Williston Florida. The City of Williston Florida will act as the contractor fol all
facets of the construction of the sidewalk as stated herein, and the Agreement shall be eft'ective
as of the date first written above.

I hereby alfirrn that the terms of this agreement are acceptable and compatible with discussions
leading to the creation of this agreement.

Jay R. Beasley or Jane Beasley Date Signed

The City of Williston aoting as the "Contractor" hereby affirms the terms of this agreement and

accepts the terms herein: City of Williston Florida, Public Wbrks Department or designated

department or authorized personnel acting as the agent for the Public Works Department of the
City uf WillisLuir Fluricla.

City of Williston Authorized Signature Date Signed

17



INDEMNITY AGREEMENT

THIS INDEMNITY AGREEMIINT (the "Agreement',) made as of this _ day of
(the "Execution Date"),

BETWEEN:

Jay and Jane Beasley of 4151 NE l40th Couft, Williston, FL 32696

(the "lndemnitee")

OF THE FIRST PAR'I'

and

The City of Williston, Florida of 50 NW Main St, Willisron, FL 32696

(the "Indemniher")

OF l]-IE SECOND PART

tsACKGROUND:

'lhe lndemnitee desires protection against any personal liability, claim, suit, action, loss, or
damage that may result from the Indemnitee's participation in the service.

The Indemnifier wishes to minimize any hardship the Indemnitee might suffer as the result eif

any personal liability, claim, suit, aotion, Ioss, or damage that may result fi'om the Inclemnitee's

participation in the Service.

IN CONSIDERATION and as a condition of the Indemnifier and the Indernnitee entering into this
Agreement and other valuable consideration, the receipt and suff-rciency of which consideration is
acknowledged, the Indemnifier and the Indemnitee agree as fbllows:

)

Page I of l0

18



Definitions

L The following definitions apply in the Agreement:

a. "Service" means the following:

An agreement between the City of Williston Florida and Jay & Jane Beasley is entered

into fbr the City of Williston to construct a sidewalk.

"Expenses" means all costs incurred in the defense of any clain or action brought against

the Indemnitee including lawyers' fbes.

"Notice of Claim" means a notice that has been provided by the Indemnitee to the

Indemnitier describing a claim or action that has or is being brought against the

Indemnitee by a Third Party.

"Notice of IndemniQr" means a notice that has been provided by the Indemnitee to the

Indemnifier describing an amount owing under this Agreernent by the Indernniher to the

Indemnitee.

e. "PArties" means both the Indemnitee and the Indermrifier

f. "Party" mealls either the Indemnitee or the Indemnifier

g. "Third Party" means any person other than the Indemnifier and the Indemnitee.

Indemnification

The Indemnifier will hold harrnless and indemnily the Indemnitee against any and all claims and

actions arising out of the participation of the Indernnitee in the Service, including, without

limitation, Expenses, judgments, fines, settlements and other amounts actually and reasonably

incurred in connection with any liability, suit, action, loss, or damage arising or resulting from

the lndemnitee's pafticipation in the Service, subject to the lirnits on indemnification described in

the sestion titled Exceptions to Indemnification. Where prohibited by law, the above

indemnification does not include indemnification of the Indemnitee against a claim caused by

the negligenoe or fault of the lndernnitee, its agent or employee, or any third party under the

control or supervision of the Indernnitee, other than the lndernnifier or its agent, employee or

subcontractors,

b.

c

d"

2.

Page 2 of l0
19



J In the case of a criminal proceeding, the Indemnifiel will indernnify the lndenlitee agai'st all
amounts including, without limitation, Expenses, judgments, tines, settlements, ap6 other
amounts actually and reasonably incurred by the Indernnitee subject to the limits on
indemnification described in the section titlecl Flxceptions to Indemnification.

Exceptions to Indemnification
The Indemnitee will not be entitled to indernnificalion from the Indernnifier for any Expenses,
judgments, fines, settlements and other amounts incurreti as the result of the Inclemnitee's
participation in the Service where:

a. in the case of a civil claim, the Indemnitee clicl not act in good faith and in a rcasonable

manner;

in the case of a criminal actiort, the Indemnitee had reasonable cause to believe its
conduct was unlawful;

the actions or conduct of the Indemnitee constituted willful misconduct or was knowingly
fraudulent or deliberately dishonest;

the Indemnitee will or has received payment under a valid and collectible insurance
policy or under a valid and enforceable indemnity ciause, bylaw or agrcement, except
where payrnent under this insurance poliey, clause, bylaw or agreement is not sufficient to
f'ully indemnify the Indemnitee in which case the Indemnifier will be responsible for any
shortfali in payment received; or

e an action or proceeding was initiated in whole or in part by the Indemnitee whether alone
or along with one or more other claimants unless the action or procecding has the written
consent of the Indemnifier.

Noticc of Claim

In the event of any claim or action, tire Indemnitee will promptly provide the Inclernnifier with
written notice of the claim or action and will notify the Indemniher within five (5) business ciays

of the commencement of any legal proceedings relating to the clairn or action. 'Ihe Inclemnitee

will provide the Indemnifier with all available infbrmation known to the Indemnitee relating to
the claim or action.

4

b.

c.

d

5

Page 3 of i0

20



I

Authorization of Indemnification

6 in any case where the Indemnitee requires indemnification, the Indemnifier will make the

determination of whether indemnihcation is appropriate having given consideration to the terms

described in the Exceptions to Indernnification section. If the Indemnitee disagrees with the

determination of the Indemnifier then the matter must be referred for review and determination

to independent legal counsel reasonably satisfaotory to the Indernnitee. In all cases the

Indemnifier will bear all costs of any independent deterrnination.

7. The Indemnifler will bear the burden of proving that indeninification is not appropriate.

l'he termination of any clairn or action by judgment, order, settlement, conviction or upoll a plea

of nolo contendere or its equivalent will not, of itsell, create a presumption that the person did

not act in good laith and in a reasonable rnanner or, in the oase of a criminal action, that the

Indemnitee had reasonable cause to believe that the Indemnitee's conduct was unlawful.

Assumption of Del'ense

On being notified of any irnpending action or claim, the Indemnifier nay, at its own Expense,

participate in the defense of any action or claim and may, alone or with any other indernnifying

party, assume the det'ense against thc action ol claim using counsel that are reasonably

satisfaotory to the Indcmnitee.

10 Once the Indemnifier has notified the Indemnitee of the intention to assunte the defense, the

Indemnifier will no longer be liablc to the Indemnitee for any f'urther legal or other Expenses

subsequently incuned by the Indemnitee in relation to the def'ense of the claim. Once the

Indemnifier provicles notice to the Indemnitee that the defense of claim has beer-r assumed by the

lndemnifier, the Indemnitee may employ or continue to employ its own legal counsel however

any f'ees or Expenses incurred by the Indemnitee subsequeut to the notice of assumption of

defense by the lndemnifier will be the sole responsibility of the Indernnitee.

Failure to Dcfentl

I 1. If the Indemnifier eleots not to assume the delense against the claim or action then the

lndemnitee may detbnd against the claim or action in any manner the Indemnitee deerns

appropriate. The Indemnifier will promptly reimburse the lndemnitec lor Expenses, judgments,

fines, settlements and any other amounts actually and reasonably incurred in connection with the

defbnse olthe claim or action subject to the limits on indemnifioation clescribed in the section

titled Exceptions to lndemnification.

9

Page 4 of 10

21



Settlement and Consent of Indemnitee
13 'fhe Indemnificr will not settle any claim or action without first obtailing the written consent of

the lndemnitee. The Indemnitee will not unreasonably withhold consent to any settlement.

Cooperation

14. 'fhe Indemnifier agrees to cooperate in good faith and use best et'forts to ensure that the
lndemnitee is indemnified and reimburserl fbr any and all F,xpenses, judgments, fines,
settlements and other amounts actually and reasonably incurred in connection with the defense
of any claim or action resulting florn the participation of fhe Indemnitee in the Service.

15 The Indemnitee agrees to cooperate in good ibith and provide any and all infolmation withi* the
Indemnitee's power as recluired for the defense of any claim or action and also to provide any
and all information within the Indemnitee's power as required to help in a determination of
indemnificatiou as described uuder the Authorizatronof tndemnification section.

ftlxpenses

No costs, charges or Expenses for which indemnity will be sought under this Agreement rnay be
incurred without the lndemnifier's written consent. Any required consent must not be

unreasonably withheid.

12

16.

l7

r8

Settlement and Consent of Inclemnifier
The Indemnitee will not settle any claim or action without first obtaining the written consent of
the Indemnifier. The Indemnilier will not be liable for arry amounts paid in settlement of any
clairn or aotion where wrilten conscnt of the Indernnifier was not first obtained, 'l'he Indem'ifier
will not unreasonably withhold consent to any settlement,

All reasonable Expenses incurrcd by the Indernnitee to enforce this Agreement, and all costs of
defending any Third Party claims or actions brought against the Indemnitee under this
Agreement will be the soie responsibility of the Indemnifier subject to the limits on

indernnification described in the section titled Exoeptions to Indernnification.

Advances of Expenses

At the written request of the Indemnitce, the Inclemnifier will advance to the Inden:rnitee any
Expenses, including lawyers' f'ees, incured by the Indernnitee in defbncling any action brouglrt
against the Indemnitee. Where reasonable, and to minimize hardship to the Indennitee, a6vance
payments rnay be made prior to the disposition of any slain.

Pagc 5 of 10

22



l9 The lndemnitce agrees to repay to the Indemnifier any advance payments on Expenses where a

determination is ultirnately made that the Indemnitee is not entitled to indemnification for

reasons described under the Indemnifioation and the Exceptions to indernnification sections.

20

Payrncnt

All payn'rents made by the Indemnifier 1o the Indemnitee will be madc in lirll in immediately

available funds within sixty (60) days of receipt of Notice of Indemnity from the Indemnitee and

without deduction for any counterclaim, defense, recoupment, ot'set-off.

21. Any Notice of Indemnity sent by the lndernnitee to the Indemnifier must be made in writing and

conlain a full listing of the items to be covered in the payment. Any payment made by the

Indemnifier to the Indemnitee will contain a listing of items covered under the payment.

Enforcement

22 If any right or rernedy clairned by the Indemnitee under this Agreernent is denied or is not paid

by the Indemnifier, or on its behalf, within sixty (60) days after a written Notice of Indemnity

has been subrnitted by the Indemnitee to the Indemnifier, the Indemnitee may then bring suit

against the Indemnifier to recover any unpaid amounts and if successful in whole ol in part, the

Indemnitee will be entitled to be paid any and all sosts related to resolving the claim.

23 Where a determination as described under Authorization of lndemnification concludes that the

Indemnitee's behavior is not enfitled to indemnification, this will not create a presumption that

the Indemnitee is not entitled to indemnification under this Agreement.

Insurance

The Indemnifier must take out and rnaintain insutance coverage with an insurer reasonably

acceptable to the Indemnitee on terms reasonable and sufficient to indemnify the participation of

the Indemnitee in thc Service.

25. lf the lndemnitier fails to maintain adequate liability insurance, the lndemnitee may take out

insurance and charge all costs to the Indemnifier.

Duration

26. The r:ights and obligations of the lndemnitee and the Indernnifier rnder this Agreement will
continue:

so long as the Indemnitee is or will be sub.iect to any possible claim or threatened,

24

a

Page 6 of 10

23



28

pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, mirninal, arbitrational,
administrative or investigative that results from the participation of the Indemnitee in the
Service; or

b. until terminated by arl agreement in rvriting signed by both the indernnifier alcl t6e
Indemnitee

Unlim ited lndemnification
27 under this Agreemcnt, indemnification will be unlimited as to amount.

Full Relcase

Only payment and satisfaction in full of all amounts and charges payable under this Agreement
and the due perfbrfirance and observance of all termso covenants and conclitions of this
Agreement will telease the Indernnifier and the in<lemnitee of their obligations under this
Agreenent.

Further Action
29. No action or proceeding brought or institutecl under tliis Agreement and no recovery from that

action or proceeding will be a bar or defense to any further action or proceeding which may be
brought under this Agreernent by reason of any further failure in the performance ancl
observance of the tertns, covenants ancl conditions of this Agreernent,

Subrogation

30. In the event that any indemnity payment is made uncler this Agreement, the Indemnifier will be

subrogated to the extent of this payment to all of tlie rights of reoovery of the Indemnitee. The
lndemnitee will take all action requirrd and provide all information necessary to secure these
rights and to fully enable the Indemnilier to take any action to enforce these rights in the
recovery of the indemnity payment.

Amendments

31 This Agreement may only be amended, terminatecl or cancelled by an instrument in writing,
signed by both the Indemnitier and the Inclemnitee.

Assignment of Indemnifier Rish ts and Obligations
The rights and obligations of the Indernnifier as existing under this Agreement may not be

assigned, in whole or itt part, without the prior written consent of the Inclemnitee.

) ^/"

Page 7 of l0
24



Assignment of Indemnitee Riehts and Obligations

33. l'he rights and obligations of the Indernnitee as existing under this Agreement may not be

assigned, either in whole or in part, without the prior written consent olthe Indemniher.

Joint and Several Liabilify
34 If two or lnore persons act as Indernnifier in thi.s Agreement or if the Indemnifier is a parlnership

consisting oitwo or more pafiners, then the liability under this Agreement will be joint and

several for each co-lndemnifier.

Notices

35. Any notioes or deliveries required in the performance of this Agreement will be deemed

completed when hand-delivered, delivered by agent, or seven (7) days aller being placed in the

post, postage prepaid, to lhe Parties to this Agreement at the addresses contained in this

Agreement or as the Parties may later designate in writing,

Governing Law

36. This Agrcement will be governcd by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of
Florida.

Jurisdiction

JI The courts of the State of F'lorida are to have jurisdiction to decide and settle any dispute or

claim arising out of or in sonnection with this Agreement.

General Provisions

38 This Agleement contains all terms and conditions agreed lo by the Indemnifier and the

Indemnitee. Statements or representations which may have been made by cither Party in the

negotiation stages of this Agreement may in some way be inconsistent witli this final written

Agreement. All such statements are declarecl to be of no value to either Party. Only the written

terms of this Agreement will bind the Parties.

39. Any failure of either Party to enforoe any of the terms, covenants and oonditions in this

Agreement does not infer or perrnit a further waiver of-that or any other right or benefit under

this Agreement. A waiver by one Party of any right or benefit provided in this Agreernent does

not infer or permit a further waiver of that right or benet-rt, nor does it infer or permit a waiver of
any other right or benefit provided in this Agreernent.

Page I of 10

25



40 This Agreement will pass to the benefit of and be binding upon the Parties'respective heirs,
executors, administrators, sllccessors, and permittecl assigns.

4I The clauses, pal'agraphs, and subparagraphs contained in this Agreement are intendecl to be read
and construed independently of each other. If any part of this Agreement is helcl to be invalid,
this invalidity will not aff'ect the operation of any other part of this Agreernent.

42- All of the rights, remedies and benefits provided in this Agreement will be cumulative and will
not be exclusive of any other such rights, remedies and benefits allowed by law or equity that the
Parties may have now ol.may acquire in the future.

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.

"l'his Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which will be deemed
to be an original and all of which together will be deemed to be one and the same instrument.

45. Headings are inserted for the conve nience of the Parlies only and are not to be copsidered when
interpreting this Agreement. Words in the singular mean and include the plural and vice vetsa.
Words in the masculine gender include the ferninine gender and vice versa. Worcls in the neuter
gender include the masculine gender and the feminine gender ancl vice versa.

43

44

Page 9 of 10

26



IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Indemnitee and the Indemnifior have duly affixed their signatures

under hand and seal on this 

- 

day of

Jay and Jane Beasley (Indemnitee)

The City of Williston, Florida (Indemnifier)

Authorized Signatory

Witness:

Wihress:

qf20}2-2022LawDepot.eom@

Page 10 ofl0
27



Janaury 3,2023

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

TOPIC: V A 22-01 Voluntary Annexation

REQUESTED BY: Laura Jones, City Planner

Applicant: Reggie Ross, LLC

PUBLIC HEARING SECOND READING ORDINANCE 705

BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION: Pursuant to petitioner Reggie Ross, LLC (property Owner)
an application for city limit annexation VA22-01has been made. This is a request to obtain an

annexation for a portion of the Levy County parcel number #0503900000 into the city limits.

LOCATION MAP/AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH

Subiect Propertv:

Location: Parcel #0503900000 .527 acres at the Southeast corner of SE 1Oth Street and East
Noble Ave

Description:
Description: (by surveyor) Ross Division

A parcel of land at and within the Northwest corner of lands described in O.R.B. 1573, page 81 of
the Public Records of Lely County, Florida; lying in the Northwest 1/4 of Section 5, Township 13
South, Range 19 East, Levy County, Florida; being more particularly described as follows:
Commence at the Northeast corner of Lot 1, Block 17, J.B. Epperson Addition to Williston, according
to the plat thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 1, Page37, said Public Records, said point lying on the
South right-of-way line of East Noble Avenue (a.k.a. U.S. Highway No. 27 and a.k.a. State Road No.
500) and on the West right-of-way line of S.E. 9th Terrace (a.k.a Pine Street) and run thence North
89o52'28"East, along said South right-of-way line, a distance of 111.28 feet to the Northerly extension
of the East right-of-way line of S.E. 1Oth Street (a.k.a. Chestnut Street); thence South 00"03r45"East,
along said Northerly extension, a distance of 5.22 feet to the Point-of-Beginning of the herein
described parcel; thence continue South 00"03'45"East, along said East right-of-way line, a distance
of 104.37 feet to the Northwest corner of lands described in Deed Book 61, ptge 24, said Public
Records; thence South 89o56'34"East, a distance of 209.91 feet to the Northeast corner of said Deed
Book 61, page 24; thence North 00003'45"West, a distance of 109.56 feet to the said South right-of-
way line of East Noble Avenue; thence North 89"59'39"West, along said South right-of-way line, a
distance of 204.90 feet; thence South 45"00'21"West, along said South right-of-way line, a distance of
7.07 feet to the said Point-of-Beginning. Containing0.527 Acres, more or less.

I
28



ORDINANCE No 2022-7Os

AN ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE FOR THE ANNEXING OF CERTAIN PROPERTY IN
THE CITY OF WILLISTON; PROVIDING THE DESCRIPTION OF THE ANNEXED
PROPERTY; PROVIDING THAT THE ANNEXED AREA BE SUBJECTED TO ALL
LAWS AND REGULATION AND ENTITLED TO ALL BENEFITS AND PRIVILEGES;
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, The City of Williston, Florida (the "City"), has received a Petition for voluntary
Annexation from Reggie Ross LLC into the City of Williston. As trustee of Reggie Ross LLC
(the "Owners"), in which the Owners have requested and agreed to the voluntary annexation of
certain real property which is situated adjacent to the city limits of The City of Williston; and

WHEREAS, a notice of annexation has been published for two consecutive weeks in a local
newspaper and has been declared by certified mail to Levy County Board of Commissioners; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that all requirements as set forth in State Statute 171.044
relating to Voluntary Annexation have been met;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
WILLISTON, FLORIDA, as follows:

The following described real property, which is depicted on a map as Exhibit "A", attached, is
hereby annexed to and made apart of the City of Williston, Florida:

Description: (by surveyor) Ross Division

A parcel of land at and within the Northwest corner of lands described in O.R.B. 1573, page 81 of
the Public Records of Levy County, Florida; lying in the Northwest 1/4 of Section 5, Township 13

South, Range 19 East, Levy County, Florida; being more particularly described as follows:
Commence at the Northeast corner of Lot 1, Block 17, J.B. Epperson Addition to Williston,
according to the plat thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 1, Prge37, said Public Records, said point
lying on the South right-of-way line of East Noble Avenue (a.k.a. U.S. Highway No. 27 and a.ka.
State Road No. 500) and on the West right-of-way line of S.E. gth Terrace (a.k.a Pine Street) and
run thence North 89052'28"East, along said South right-of-way line, a distance of 111.28 feet to the
Northerly extension of the East right-of-way line of S.E. 10th Street (a.k.a. Chestnut Street); thence
South 00003'45"East, along said Northerly extension, a distance of 5.22 feet to the Point-of-
Beginning of the herein described parcel; thence continue South 00o03'45"East, along said East
right-of-way line, a distance of 104.37 feet to the Northwest corner of lands described in Deed Book
61, page 24, said Public Records; thence South 89o56'34"East, a distance of 209.91 feet to the
Northeast corner of said Deed Book 61, page 24; thence North 00003'45"West, a distance of 109.56
feet to the said South right-of-way line of East Noble Avenuel thence North 89"59'39"West, along
said South right-of-way line, a distance of 204.90 feet; thence South 45"00'21"West, along said
South right-of-way line, a distance of 7.07 feet to the said Point-of-Beginning. Containing 0.527
Acres, more or less.

29



2. Upon this ordinance becoming effective, the area annexed shall be subject to all laws,
ordinances and regulation in force in the City.

3. Except as required by law, no City services shall be provided to the annexed lands until such
time as determined appropriate by the City Council. City services may be funded from taxes and
assessments as allowed by law.

4. This ordinance shall take effect on February 3,2023 or at earlier time as approved by the
Mayor.

5. The City Clerk shall file copies of this ordinance with the clerk of the circuit court and the
chief administration officer of Levy County, Florida and with the Department of State within 7

days after its effective date.

PASSED upon first reading this 6th day of December,2D22.

PASSED AND DULY ADOPTED, upon second and final reading, in regular session
with a quorum present and voting, by the City Council this 3ra day of January,2023.

CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

By

Debra Jones,

President, City Council

ATTEST

Latricia Wright,

City Clerk

APPROVED by Mayor Charles Goodman on this day of 2023.

By

Charles Goodman,

By

Mayor

30



127b

7.O7'

NOBLE AVENUEEAST foIaP of rBounfary Surve'v
Lltng in tfre lhifrwut I/l ofsectionS, (owwfrip

13 Soutli, Rfnge 19 East, Lery Cauntl, fforida-
Qrapfrir Scafe

1 inrfi= ft.40
Ll N89'59'391rrr 204.90'

EAST

.* _b-lg+tlpe:.

tsi
I

L bqllridHcrddrctu&td6hhr
h S 4-d€ k C Ul dk b, 2?. d bfr I .dg rd
H'jtffiHl'A.*h qir_'_rq@, s6 sr2s

Description; (by suryeyor) Ross Division
A parc€l of land al and within th6 Nodhwest corn6rot

lands described in O.R.8. 1573, page 81 oflho Public Records
of Levy County, Florida; lying in the Nonhwast 1 /4 of Section
5. Townshlp 13 South, Range 19 East, Levy County, Florida;
being more paRicularly described as follows:

Command at the North€ast corngr of Lot 1. Block 17,
J-8. Eppe6on Additlon io Williston, acerding to the plat
theeof, 6 recod€d in PIat Book 1, Page 37, said Public
R€cords, said poinl lying on the South right-of-My line of East
Noble Avenue (a.k.a. U,S. Highway No.27 snd €.k.a. Stat6
Road No.500) and on the West rightaf-way line ofS.E. gth

Tera@ (a,k.a Pine Sh€€t) and run thdce North
89"52'28"East, along said South rightd-way lin€, a distence of
1 1 1 -28 f6et to the Northeriy extension of the East rjght{f-way
lino ot S.E. 1oth Streel (a.k.a. Che6but Stroet); lhonca Soulh
00'034s'East, along sid Northerly exlension, a disLan€ of
522 f@t to the Poinl-ot-Beginning of lhe herein described
parcel: lhoncB continue South 00"03'45"East, along sid Easl
right{f-way line, a distanc€ ol 104.37 feet to the Northwest
cornerof lands described in Deed Book 61, page 24. said
Public Records; th€nc€ Soulh 89"56'34"East, a distan@ ot
209.91 feet to the North€ast comer ofsaid Deed Book 6'1,
page 24; th6n@ Nonh 00"0345'Wesl, a dislan@ of 109.56
feel lo the said South r;ght{f-way line ofE6st Nobl€ Avenue;
thenoo North 89'59'39"West, along s€id South right-of-way
line, a dist€nce of 204,90 f€et; th€nce South 45'00'21 "West,
along said Soulh right{f-way line, a distance of 7-07 f€6t {o ths
sard Poinld-Beginning.

Containing 0.527 Acres, more or less.

hb
6

B+

ET

lB

:
I

I

i

I

L
r€
iH

lh
i

I

q!i*r in u. r,* (dd^

: bhl,!''.qclgffi-.,ld.,g9<.'6.dc
d.dffibEfficd.rih bdch
4 ffibEhthsr b !ryd'6rt'tubF
Mdlffi@.
. tuK!tutE
w6#l.ebh@4. lHa.rEe-*!r
,Fl*6*hd@*ftt@edrlF-ffi. fi:.
Wtdry.Bd4ru(!k|brd'.6
ddd*y*@..@ dr hd*dkdrd

tr bFrt'@tu'wry&otuc.6Hw.n
M*Eh.k r-.6raddF'h.
qDddtriwmdd*nr*-dkffi
&l-@r&b.d&db.8@.
a Hd6hht.cdkmtd&oga)b
h@EbqtuhE{.ffi odhdGholtfue
d*@ b|*.dMbdFery66*tud
rydL..iffiud@

ar

A- .

4'ra'ffi rdurff rum(N ffi. u*6 sls)
1/2'iroX m SO HKO'ldrur P.s.[ &e'
i/2'm B 3d HXED

utaBs?il*pur6 PSt. S'w a ds xwlY ifi!D F XcrMN PS,r. St'

209.91

(M{M@)

!'{ew Qarce['A' --'---
'/acant Lan"[
0.527 Acres+

N
ro
+o

fr,'

31



January 3,2023

GlqPuhlic,net'" Lely County, FL

PrrtrlF 603ffiffi
Itr.pcrtv Ulr 41m- Pn$rukglr
TlrlrtOltfilct iw FLOftnA$/TMG
lsr3 6174

F{rylhrlAd*:.r
Mrl&qAdft$ RgGGEnCff LLC

8ul*tr1}vrl,e !O
fx0rf.rtr.Yduc tD

Omndarr

L4rnd

l'-j Prrtrg
no.dl
CllyLrbclr

Lat2SrLr
brt! Prtc. tr l!6n Qurl

i
,.

I
I

_- -i,.,

s

2g?50cttVY5T UrrhrrlrndVduc
WlLLlSfONfLS16'96 AXLrdYahc

JrErVrlre
Agrlc.dVrlI
?rrehlcVebe

f814968 nft
t15JiB nJB

J814.t68
f,l9598
$15558

o
o

na8

nf8
tVr
n/l

SUMMARY:

The subject property is located in Levy County, the existing land use is Agricultural. The
surrounding land uses are Commercial. Property to the north, south and west is within the City of
Williston jurisdiction while property to the east is within Levy County limits.

The following is Taken from State Statute:

171.044 Voluntary annexation. -
(1) The owner or owners of real property in an unincorporated area of a county which is contiguous to a

municipality and reasonably compact may petition the goveming body of said municipality that said property be

annexed to the municipality.

2

32



January 3,2023

(2) Upon determination by the governing body of the municipality that the petition bears the signatures of all

owners of property in the area proposed to be annexed, the goveming body may, at any regular meeting, adopt a

nonemergency ordinance to annex said property and redefine the boundary lines of the municipality to include said

property. Said ordinance shall be passed after notice ofthe annexation has been published at least once each week

for 2 consecutive weeks in some newspaper in such city or town or, if no newspaper is published in said city or

town, then in a newspaper published in the same county; and if no newspaper is published in said county, then at

least three printed copies of said notice shall be posted for 4 consecutive weeks at some conspicuous place in said

city or town. The notice shall give the ordinance number and a briel general description of the area proposed to be

annexed. The description shall include a map clearly showing the area and a statement that the complete legal

description by metes and bounds and the ordinance can be obtained from the office of the city clerk.

(3) An ordinance adopted under this section shall be filed with the clerk of the circuit court and the chief

administrative officer of the county in which the municipality is located and with the Department of State within 7

days after the adoption of such ordinance. The ordinance must include a map which clearly shows the annexed area

and a complete legal description of that areaby metes and bounds.

(4) The method of annexation provided by this section shall be supplemental to any other procedure provided

by general or special law, except that this section shall not apply to municipalities in counties with charters which

provide for an exclusive method of municipal annexation.

(5) Land shall not be annexed through voluntary annexation when such annexation results in the creation of

enclaves.

(6) Not fewer than 10 days prior to publishing or posting the ordinance notice required under subsection (2), the

governing body of the municipality must provide a copy of the notice, via certified mail, to the board of the county

commissioners of the county wherein the municipality is located. The notice provision provided in this subsection

may be the basis for a cause of action invalidating the annexation.
History.-s. 1,ch.74-190; ss.4,5, ch. 75-297; s. 3, ch. 76-176; s. 2, ch. 86-1 13; s. 1, ch. 90-171; s. 16, ch. 90-279; s. 16, ch. 98-176; s.

3, ch. 2006-218.

171.204 Prerequisites to annexation under this part.-The interlocal service boundary agreement may

describe the character of land that may be annexed under this part and may provide that the restrictions on the

character ofland that may be annexed pursuant to part I are not restrictions on land that may be annexed pursuant to

this part. As determined in the interlocal service boundary agreement, any character of land may be annexed,

including, but not limited to, an annexation of land not contiguous to the boundaries of the annexing municipality,

an annexation that creates an enclave, or an annexation where the annexed area is not reasonably compact; however,

such area must be "urban in character" as defined in s. 171 .03 I (8). The interlocal service boundary agreement may

not allow for annexation of land within a municipality that is not aparty to the agreement or of land that is within

another county. Before annexation of land that is not contiguons to the boundaries of the annexing municipality, an

annexation that creates an enclave, or an annexation of land that is not currently served by water or sewer utilities,

one of the following options must be followed:

3

33



December 6,2022

( I ) The municipaliry shall transmit a comprehensive plan amendment that proposes specific amendments

relating to the property anticipated for annexation to the Department of Economic Opporhrnity for review under

chapter 163. After considerirrg the department's review, the municipality may approve the annexation and

comprehensive plan amendment concurrently. The local govemment must adopt the annexation and the

comprehensive plan amendment as separate and distinct actions but may take such actions at a single public hearing;

ol'

(2) A municipality and county shall enter into a joint planning agreement under s. 163.3171, which is adopted

into the municipal comprehensive plan. The joint planning agreement must identiS' the geographic areas anticipated

for annexation, the fufure land uses that the municipality would seek to establish, necessary public facilities and

selvices, including transportation and school facilities and how they will be provided, and natural resources,

including surface water and groundwater resources, and how they will be protected. An amendment to the future

land use map of a comprehensive plan which is consistent with the joint planning agreement must be considered a

small scale amendment.

171.205 Consent requirements for annexation of land under this part.-Notwithstanding part I, an

interlocal selice boundary agreement may provide a process for annexation consistent with this section ol with part

I.

(l) For all or a portion of the area within a designated municipal service area, the interlocal service boundary

agreement may provide a flexible process for securing the consent of persons who are registered voters or own

property in the area proposed for annexation, or ofboth such voters and owners, for the annexation ofproperty

within a municipal service area, with notice to such voters or owners as required in the interlocal service boundary

agreement. The interlocal service boundary agreement may not authorize annexation unless the consent

requirements of part I are met or the annexation is consented to by one or more of the following:

(a) The municipality has received a petition for annexation from more than 50 percent of the registered voters

who reside in the area proposed to be amexed.

(b) The annexation is approved by a majority of the registered voters who reside in the area proposed to be

annexed voting in a referendum on the annexation.

(c) The municipalify has received a petition for annexation from more than 50 percent of the persons who own

property within the area proposed to be annexed.

(2) If the area to be annexed includes a privately owned solid waste disposal facility as defined in

s. 403.703 which receives municipal solid waste collected within the jurisdiction of multiple local govemments, the

annexing municipality must set forth in its plan the effects that the annexation of the solid waste disposal facility

will have on the other local governments. The plan must also indicate that the owner of the affected solid waste

disposal facility has been contacted in writing concerning the annexation, that an agreement between the annexing

municipality and the solid waste disposal facility to govern the operations of the solid waste disposal facility if the

4

34



January 3,2023

annexation occurs has been approved, and that the owner ofthe solid waste disposal facility does not object to the

proposed annexation.

(3) For all or a portion of an enclave consisting of more than 20 acres within a designated municipal service

area, the interlocal sewice boundary agreement may provide a flexible pl'ocess for securing the consent of persons

who are registered voters ot own property in the area proposed for annexation, or of both such voters and o'wners,

for the annexation of properly within such an enclave, with notice to such voters or owners as required in the

interlocal service boundary agreement. The interlocal service boundary agreement may not authorize annexation of

enclaves under this subsectiou unless the consent requirements of part I are met, the annexation process includes one

or more of the procedures in subsection ( 1 ), or the municipality has received a petition for annexation from one or

more persons who own real property in excess of 50 percent of the total real properly within the area to be annexed.

(4) For all or a portion of an enclave consisting of 20 acres or fewer within a designated municipal service area,

within which enclave not more than 100 registered voters reside, the interlocal service boundary agreement may

provide a flexible pl'ocess for securing the consent of persons who are registered voters or own ploperfy in the area

proposed for annexation, or ofboth such voters and owners, for the annexation ofproperty within such an enclave,

with notice to such voters or owners as required in the interlocal service boundary agreement. Such an annexation

process may include one ol more of the procedures in subsection ( 1) and may allow annexation according to the

terms and conditions provided in the interlocal seruice boundary agreement, which may include a referendum of the

registered voters who reside in the area proposed to be annexed.

History.-s.1,ch.2006-218;s.11,ch.2007-5;s.32,ch.2008-4;s.4,ch.2017-167.

Annexation of City Limits

Presently the property is within the county jurisdiction and meets the requirements for
annexation.

The process for annexation addresses in the State Statute 171.20-17I.212. Specifically, the
section 171.052 - Criteria for annexation of municipal boundaries as quoted below:

171.0413 Annexation procedures. 
-Any 

municipaliry may annex contiguous, compact, unincorporated

tenitory in the following manner:

(l) An ordinance proposing to annex an area of contiguous, compact, unincorporated territory shall be adopted

by the goveming body of the annexing municipality pursuant to the procedure for the adoption of a nonemergency

ordinance established by s. 166.041. Prior to the adoption of the ordinance of annexation, the local goveming body

shall hold at least two adveflised public hearings. The first public hearing shall be on a weekday at least 7 days after

the day that the first adverlisement is published. The second public hearing shall be held on a weekday at least 5

days after the day that the second advertisement is published. Each such ordinance shall propose only one

reasonably compact area to be annexed. However, prior to the ordinance of annexation becoming effective, a

referendum on annexation shall be held as set out below, and, ifapproved by the referendum, the ordinance shall

5

35



January 3,2023

become effective l0 days after the referendum or as otherwise provided in the ordinance, but not more than I year

following the date of the referendum.

(2) Following the final adoption of the ordinance of annexation by the goveming body of the annexing

municipality, the ordinance shall be submitted to a vote of the registered electors of the area proposed to be annexed.

The governing body of the annexing municipality may also choose to submit the ordinance of annexation to a

separate vote ofthe registered electors ofthe annexing municipality. The referendum on annexation shall be called

and conducted and the expense thereof paid by the goveming body of the annexing municipality.

(a) The referendum on annexation shall be held at the next regularly scheduled election following the final

adoption ofthe ordinance ofannexation by the governing body ofthe annexing municipaliry or at a special election

called for the purpose of holding the referendum. However, the referendum, whether held at a regularly scheduled

election or at a special election, shall not be held sooner than 30 days following the final adoption of the ordinance

by the goveming body of the annexing municipality.

(b) The governing body of the annexing municipality shall publish notice of the referendum on annexation at

least once each week for 2 consecutive weeks immediately preceding the date of the referendum in a newspaper of
general circulation in the area in which the referendum is to be held. The notice shall give the ordinance number, the

time and places for the referendum, and a blief, general description of the area proposed to be annexed. The

description shall include a map clearly showing the area and a statement that the complete legal description by metes

and bounds and the ordinance can be obtained from the office of the city clerk.

(c) On the day of the referendum on annexation there shall be prominently displayed at each polling place a

copy ofthe ordinance ofannexation and a description ofthe properly proposed to be annexed. The description shall

be by metes and bounds and shall include a map clearly showing such area.

(d) Ballots or mechanical voting devices used in the referendum on annexation shall offer the choice "For

annexation of property described in ordinance number of the City of " and "Against annexation of property

described in ordinance number of the City of " in that order.

(e) If the referendum is held only in the area proposed to be annexed and receives a majority vote, or if the

ordinance is submitted to a separate vote of the registered electors of the annexing municipality and the area

proposed to be annexed and there is a separate majority vote for annexation in the annexing municipality and in the

area proposed to be annexed, the ordinance ofannexation shall become effective on the effective date specified

therein. If there is any majority vote against annexation, the ordinance shall not become effective, and the area

proposed to be annexed shall not be the subject ofan annexation ordinance by the annexing municipality for a

period of2 years from the date ofthe referendum on annexation.

(3) Any parcel of land which is owned by one individual, corporation, or legal entity, or owned collectively by

one or more individuals, corporations, or legal entities, proposed to be annexed under the provisions ofthis act shall

not be severed, separated, divided, or partitioned by the provisions ofsaid ordinance, but shall, ifintended to be

annexed, or if annexed, under the provisions of this act, be annexed in its entirety and as a whole. However, nothing

herein contained shall be conshrted as affecting the validity or enforceability ofany ordinance declaring an intention

6

36



January 3,2023

to annex land under the existing law that has been enacted by a municipality prior to July I , 197 5 . The owner of

such properfy may waive the requirements of this subsection if such owner does not desire all of the tract or parcel

included in said annexation.

(4) Except as otherwise provided in this law, the annexation procedure as set forth in this section shall

constitute a uniform method for the adoption of an ordinance of annexation by the governing body of any

municipality in this state, and all existing provisions of special laws which establish municipal annexation

procedures are repealed hereby; except that any provision orprovisions ofspecial law or laws which prohibit

annexation of temitory that is separated from the annexing municipalify by a body of water or watercourse shall not

be repealed.

(5) If more than70 percent of the land in an area proposed to be annexed is owned by individuals, corporations,

or legal entities which are not registered electors ofsuch area, such area shall not be annexed unless the owners of

more than 50 percent ofthe land in such area consent to such annexation. Such consent shall be obtained by the

parties proposing the annexation prior to the referendum to be held on the annexation.

(6) Nofwithstanding subsections ( I ) and (2), if the area proposed to be annexed does not have any registered

electors on the date the ordinance is finally adopted, a vote of electors of the area proposed to be annexed is not

required. In addition to the requirements of subsection (5), the arca may not be annexed unless the owners of more

than 50 percent of the parcels of land in the area proposed to be annexed consent to the annexation. If the governing

body does not choose to hold a referendum of the annexing municipality pursuant to subsection (2), then the

property owner consents required pursuant to subsection (5) shall be obtained by the parties proposing the

annexation prior to the final adoption ofthe ordinance, and the annexation ordinance shall be effective upon

becoming a law or as otherwise provided in the ordinance.

History.-s. 2,ch.75-297; s. 1, ch. 76-176; s.44, ch. 77-104; s. l, ch.80-350; s. 76, ch. 8I-259, s. I, ch. 86-113; s. 15, ch. 90-279;s.

16,ch.93-206; s. 1, ch.93-243; s. l, ch.94-196; s. 1448, ch.95-147; s. 12, ch.99-378.

Surrounding land uses

The existing land use is vacant with agricultural uses in the past. The property adjacent to the
north, south, and west is zoned Commercial Intensive and is apart of the City of Williston. The
property to the east will remain in the County.

Future land use map is attached.

7

37



January 3,2023

Lrgrnd
f-!'r.tt*,,.r:r. r,n.

._- r,qrl Xk Ft{l:':.lxr,l':{ :s::a rlrr{.
$:rrao l-{:
l{{ht

--*ri
-.:J L'r: F !s'd

-l PrHl Lre{cys,Fe';ilFr

n,iJr- | alUe tihgFrlqr:

l,v,;err-l-uul
I corr.r:n:rrr

I ucrrem.,lrrou

il'uul:rxu,r-
l nrrr n
f culs+-e-rn
I
LJ

l{ECiE4-l':}l

HLllu:H- f,-
I tr,'* n{ r:;r.1q1,

l-l utues Ldrr -rr

' a: rxsra.r-r,HFrrr.e,.! r- i- ,,r tr+r
Ft4.. q, r ait. s' {.L .} r
*rrL.r:d.'.t.t i!-r! r.,r . rr,-q:'{v{rh

-r- 
a--

r'4. rq.,r !['r,.F {r'dfr tfls*.:Frr{li ...

l. ,*

i. rll:_. lt llr

T
' .rilar illlf H sllb:': f,l aa 1':r:g:r l'r

'ffi riqlra-ld r-fiF-'la ik r rftr'tst
t:r. :r kr.bq I Yn-;t.r.lF=:rrn

E:r-: rt rri.xrrrl[:r:rrrlsll r
Xl'rds lrllnr lli-dlqrrd,

nr{i }...
rid*.E.tt,qtr r-1.rr ur\ rr.4u,'r,r.- :,t .1rx:t r..,u..t., r rr. 'a. qrr-rti{,il'rr artrllr..h i_.r

$
rr 1,:lu; I.ti$u 5-!ut Fist

.rltrrl
n.af,rtrl:n *.r&:Ftu'rrrrftr:.lillerLk-C:a a-9naEo

f..r rr'd*{,b 
"A!,fr 

t it

CITY OF WILLI.$TON
ll+lr'r

FUTURE IAI.IE USE IIAP

Parcel# 0503900000

8

38



January 3,2023

According to the State Statute if a property meets the requirements for annexation, the City
Council may approve, or deny a annexation depending upon whether or not it finds that a project
promotes public health, safety, moral, order, comfort, convenience, appearance or prosperity for
the general welfare of the residents of the City of Williston. Such a determination may be
dependent findings that satisfactory provision and arangement has been made concerning the
following matters, where applicable:

Staff Recommendations

The property meets state statute for annexation. The staff recommends approval of the
annexation.

LEGAL REVIEW: None

FISCAL IMPACTS: None

RECOMMENDED ACTION: The staff recommends approval of Second Reading of Ordinance
705, approval of voluntary annexation

ATTACHMENTS: Application, Exhibit A, Ordinance 705

ACTION:

APPROVED DISAPPROVED

9

39



PITITION FOR VOLTJNTARY ANNEXATION

The undersigned, b*rng the owner(s) of certain real property which is located in Levy

County, Florida, and which is not presently a portion of the City of Williston, respectfully

petition that the said lands hereinafter described be annexed to the City of Williston, Levy

County, Florida, and submit the following:

I ' The lands sought to be annexed are contiguous to the present corporate boundary of
the City of Williston, Levy County, Florida.

2- The lands sought to be annexed are compatible with the lands presently located in the

Cify of Williston.

3- The lands sought to be annexed to the City of Williston constihrte a compact area,

contiguous to the boundary lines of the City of Williston and municipal services can be or have

been extended to the said property without significant expenditures and. costs, provided,

however, that the City shall not be obligated to provide capital improvements to extend

municipal ssrvices until financing sources are available. The cost of capital improvements to

extend municipal services may be paid for by special assessments imposed directly against the

property as provided by law.

4' The lands sought to be annexed to the City of Williston are more particularly described

as follows, to-wit:

See Exhibit "A", attached.

5. The city will derive the benefit of the development of the said lands.

6- The City will, following the annexation, incorporate by ordinance, the annexed area

into the comprehensive land use plan and zoning scheme of the City; each of the undersigned

40



waives all rights and claims which may arise under statute or otherwise for any diminution in
value of property caused thereby.

7- Upon annexation, the said lands will become a part of the City and will be subject to

all ordinances, codes, rules and regulations applicable to lands within the City, including the

imposition of municipal taxation.

WHEREFOR-E, it is respectfully requested that the City Council of the City of
Williston, Florida accept this Petition under the provisions of Section 171 .044, Florida Statutes

and initiate the necessary and proper procedures for the annexation of the area described above

to become a part of the corporate limits of the City of Williston, Levy County, Florida.

RESPECTF.ULLY SUBMITTED, this 74 day of &-{ob u" 2022

q)c /L<
1lfrnans 6*r-

Make checks payable to The Citv of Wllllston

Annexation Fees:
a. Small annexation for a parcel of land one acre or less in size which

contains an existing single family or duplex dwelling; (Includes land
use amendment and rezoning)... $250.00

b- All other annexation (does not include land use amendment or
Rezoning) $350.00

41



January 312023

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

TOPIC: R22022-06 Tanner 755 S. Main St (Parcel # 05099-001-00)

REQUESTED BY: Laura Jones, City Planner

BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION:

Rezone (Parcel # 05099-001-00). This property is located, at755 S. Main St. EDA Consultants,
Inc. is the agent and Cecil Tanner is the property owner. This re-zone has been initiated by the
property owner to change the zoning and land use.

Currently this parcel consists of @ 3.2 acres zoned Agricultural with current and future land use
as Agricultural. This re-zone proposes changing the zoning to Residential Duplex (R-2) and the
Current and Future Land Use to Residential. The zoningmap below shows 3 parcels, however the
parcels have been merged into one @ 3.2 acre parcel.

The zoning of R-2 is consistent with the surrounding properties and the current land use of the lots.
The land is not being used for agriculture, in fact there are single family homes currently on the
area closest to Main Street.

Approval of this rezoningcomplies with the Land Development Code; therefore, staff recommends
approval.

,1,

,i

tl

trs
effi"i1S._ai1

H#w
ffu6tt\-

"i

?

\
,!

i

42



January 312023

LEGAL REVIEW: NA

FISCAL IMPACTS: None

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Planning & Zoning Commission recommended approval of the Zoningand Land Use application
to City Council. City Council passed on first reading. Staff recommends approval on this second
reading.

ATTACHMENTS:

Application

ACTION:

APPROVED
DISAPPROVED

43



ORDINANCE NO.7O5

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE ZONING MAP OF THE

CIW OF WILLISTON COMPREHENSIVE PLAN PURSUANT TO AN APPLICATION BY CECIL TANNER
FOR 3.2 +/- ACRES IDENTIFIED AS PARCEL 05099-001-00 ON THE OFFICIAL RECoRDS oF THE

LEVY COUNTY PROPERTY APPRAISER, UNDER THE AMENDMENT PROCEDURES ESTABLISHED IN

CHAPTER 163, FLORIDA STATUTES; CHANGING THE ZONING AND THE FUTURE LAND USE

CLASSIFICATION FROM AGRICULTURAL TO RESIDENTIAL DUPLEX ON CERTAIN TANDS WITHIN
THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON FLORIDA, DESCRIBED HEREIN; PROVIDING
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCORPORATION ON CITY MAPS, AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, Chapter 166, Florida Statutes, empowers the City Council of the City of
Williston, Florida, hereinafter referred to as the City Council, to prepare, adopt, implement and
amend A Comprehensive Plan;

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Williston, Florida, did on May7,2OO2, validly
approve and adopt the City of Williston Land Development Regulations; and

WHEREAS, an application, RZ-2O22-06, for an amendment, as described below, to the
CurrentZoning Map of the Cityof Williston Comprehensive Plan has been filed with the City;

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Williston, designated as the
Local Planning Agency, did hold the required public hearing, with public notice having been
provided, on said applications for amendments, as described below;

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Williston reviewed and
considered all comments received during said public hearings and the Rezoning Report
concerning said applications for amendments, as described below and recommended approval
of the above reference applications to the City Council;

WHEREAS, the City Council did hold the required public hearings, under the provisions of
the amendment procedures established in Chapters 163 and 156, Florida Statutes, on said

applications for amendments, as described below, and at said public hearing, the City Council
reviewed and considered all comments received during the public hearing, including the
recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission, serving also as the Local Planning
Agency.

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined and found said applications for amendments,
as described below, to be consistent with the Future Land Use Element objectives and policies,

and those of other affected elements of the City's Comprehensive Plan.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON,

44



FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS

Section 1. Application RZ-2022-OG by property owner to amend the City's Zoning Map
by changing the zoning classification on the following described property described in
Exhibit A, attached, from Agricultural to Residential Duplex is hereby approved.

Section 2. Severability. lf any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by any
court of competent jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional or unenforceable, then all
remaining provisions and portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 3. Future Land Use. The Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map designation
changes enacted herein shall be incorporated into the Comprehensive Plan Future Land

Use Map within 48 hours of this ordinance becoming effective.

Section 4. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately
Passed on second reading, this -- day of

PASSED AND DULY ADOPTED, with a quorum present and voting by the City Council of the City of
Williston, Florida, after properly dispensing with the final reading this ---- day of

ATTEST CITY OF WILLISTON

LATRICIA WRIGHT

CITY CLERK

DEBRA JONES

PRESI DENT, CITY COUNCI L

CHARLES GOODMAN
MAYOR

KIERSTEN BALLOU

CITY ATTORNEY

45



CITY OF WILLISTON
APPLICATION FOR
ZONING CHANGE

(Completed application will need to be received by the first of the month prior to the Planning
and Zoning Comrnission meeting, which meets the last Tuesday of the month)

Applicant's Name:
Clay Sweger {eda consultants, inc.)

Applicant's Mailing Address
720 SW 2nd Avenue, South Tower, Ste. 300

Gainesville, FL 32601

Telephone Number:
352-373-3541

755 S. Main Street
Address where change requested:

Legal Owner of parcel:
Cecil Vernon Tanner

Tax parcel ID# :
0509900100

Legal Description of parcel: (attach exhibit if necessary)

SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT

Current Land U selZoning Map designation :
Agricultural FLU & Zoning

Requested Land U se lZoning Map Designation :
Residential FLU & R-2 Zoning

REZONING FEES (Make checks payable to the City of Williston, PO Drawer 160, Williston,
FL 32696)z

a. Rezoning without land use map amendment $ 720.00
b. Rezoning and small scale land use map amendment $ 720.00
c. Rezoning and large scale land use map amendment $2,500.00

Application will be considered incomplete unless all the above is completed and provided.

Please provide the following:
1. A letter addressed to C
2. Proof of identification:
3. Survey of land.

ity Planner, requesting a zoning change.
Copy of tax ileed. '

z f zo f ,

PZl005

Date

2

46



f io r,
t'- ' I

{ra 1 a }

'nt

r'r-'*'

l

I - +,r

+

d3 t" *t€ ')rf'd .a-ftctl }r ifurtrb E

?.'tl"+t ?:lf .7'F:+rt!FiF ,, , rf iE l,l:y. t- r.

u[tfrr|**{r tC - * '-- }--: :"'
It* trt ir}}fl f1Gr.r"?tr}*l rrl'lr tir{il

f,T{.f Ir ,-r 'tgg'--T"a 
...a1 ,,r'-+-r. l tf .

t}t r $:,: r;,tl* ful ltlr rl.tlr.trl [ro( (t+!r!-r.- { I r

-t l'l-r'{

.'t t

l.'.1 tt.-arrI t, r:n-[
''l

r.i I i{ r{t

it., .l r;'*j

i 'lt i1,.,'t r

t^

t

t

'.?
1,o-

rIAY(LJV UIil*lO AIU:rdtlUd47



eda

Re:

consuttants. inc

November 7,2022

Laura Jones

City Planner
City of Williston, Florida

Proposed land Use & Zoning Map Change
755 S. Main Street

Ms. Jones

The proposed project is a Small Scale Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map amendment and
Rezoning of approximately 3.39 acres located at 755 S. Main Street (Parcel No. 0509900100) in the City of
Williston. Specifically, the land use map amendment is from Agriculturalto Residential and the rezoning
is from Agricultural to R-2.

lncluded with this letter is all supporting information required for the proposed application.

lf you have any questions, please feel free to let me know.

Sincerely,q4,*
Clay Sweger, AICP, LEED AP

Principal / Director of Planning

720 SW 2nd Avenue, South Tower, Suite 300, Gainesville,FL3260l, . Phone: (352) 373-354L .
www.edaf Lcom

48



G)qPublic.net'" Levy County, FL

Summary
Parcel lD
Location Address

Neighborhood
Legal Description*

Property Use Code
Subdivision
Sec/Iwp/Rng
Tax District
Millage Rate
Acreage
Homestead
Ag Classification

View MaB

Owner

Owner Name
MailingAddress

Tanner Cecil Vernon 100%
2023 JACK BEAVER RD
SANTA FE, TX 77517

Valuation

BuildingValue

Extra Features Value

Market Land Value

Ag Land Value

Just (Market) Value

Assessed Value

Exempt Value

Taxable Value

Cap Differential

Previous YearValue

Exemptions

0509900100
755 S MAIN ST

wtLLrsToN 32596-
0s.00 (s)

06-13-19 OOO3.22 ACRES TRACT IN NE1/4 OF SW1/4 EAST OF SAL RR OR BOOK 1419 PAGE 113 & TRACT IN NW1/4 OF 5E1/4 ORB 1419 PAGE 109
-The legal description shown here may be condensed, a full legal description should be obtained from a recorded deed for legal purposes.
SINGLE FAMTLY R (0100)

N/A
06-73-79
WILLISTON (District Wl)
27.A725
3.220

No

2022 PreliminaryValue
5ummary

$83,626

$8'148

$7s,363

$7s,363

$167,737

$LO4,763
gTs,soo

$29'263

$62'374

$1 10,589

Homestead C

25000

Building lnformation
Building 1

Actual Area
Conditioned Area
Actual Year Built
Use
Exterior Wall
Roof Structure

2nd Homestead 3

25000

Disability 3

Roof Cover
lnterior Flooring
lnterior Wall
Heating Type
Air Conditioning
Baths

Seniors 3

25000

METAL
CARPET
DRYWALL
FORCED AIR DUCTED
CENTRAL
7

Veterans 3

Actual Area

7778

264

60

204

70

36

7872

Widoder 3 Other O

500

7872
trTa
1959
SINGLE FAMILY 1

SI MULATED BRICK/STONE, CONCRETE BLOCK
GABLE OR HIP

Description

BASE

FINISHED ENCLO5ED PORCH

FINISHED OPEN PORCH

FINISHED STORAGE

FINISHEDOPEN PORCH

UNFINISHEDOPEN PORCH

Total SqFt

Extra Features

Code Description

FIREPLACE-A

CHAIN FENCE 4

SHED-A

DU-D STORAGE

OLD HSE C

Conditioned Area

7778

0

0

0

0

7778

BLD

7

7

7

7

0

HeightwidthLength Units

7

448

920

192

r

0

0

20

72

0

0

0

46

76

o

0

0

0

0

049



Land Line

Use Description

HOUSE

VAC LAND

Sales

Sale Date

4/12/2077

4/12/2077

5/7/20A5

Building Sketch

Front Depth

0

0

Total Land Units

o.94

2.24

Grantor

TANNER DONALD J

TANNER DONALD J

TANNER DONALD J

Land Value

$36,997

$38,372

Grantee

TANNER DONALD J &

TANNER DONALD J

TANNERDONALDJ&MARTHA

UnitType

7

0

AC

AC

lnstrument
Sale Price

$1oo.oo

$1oo.oo

$100.00

Book Page

L4t9 113

1419 109

95! 299

Type

WD

WD

WD

Vacant/lmprovedQualification

U

U

a

I

I
I

i

i

17 5 u

RoeTroc
Ultfti&*lED T}FEN FORCH
FIIISICDSTORAGE
FIG}fDOFEilFORCH
FI[S}CI}EIiTI{}SED qORl]H
EEe

6

1?

o^
o

z1

12

5
21

t3
1/+

Map

I

No data available for the followlng modules: Photos. 50



: 527.00 Deed Doc: $0.7O Danny J. Shipp,Clerk of the Circuit Court Levy FL Deputy Clerk MBASS

PREPARED BY:
Ronald W. Stevens, P.A
P.O. Box 1444
Bronson, FL3262l
RETTIRN TO:
Donald J. Tanner
755 S. Main Street
Williston, Florida 32696

WARRANTY DEED

This Warranty Deed, Executed *" /1 duy ot A{Y t I ,zlt7,by, DONALD J.
TAIYNE& the unremarried widower of MARTtti t .Tiilfrnffieased, who holds these
lands as his homestead properfy, hereinafter called GRANTOR, to DONALD J. TAlil\tER and
CECIL VERNON TAI\[NE& as joint tenants with full rights of sunivorship and not as
tenants in common, whose mailing address is: 755 S. Main Street. WilliSton. Elorida 32696
hereinafter called GRANTEES.

(Wherever used herein the terms "grantor(s)'o and "grantee(s)" include all the parties to this
instrument and the heirs, legal representatives, and assigns of individuals, and the successors and
assigns of corporations, wherever the context so admits or requires.)

WITNESSETH: That the Grantor, for and in consideration of the sum of $10.00, and other
valuable considemtions, receipt whereof is hereby acknowledge4 by these presents does gant,
bargaih, sell, alion, remise, convey and confirm unto the Grantees, all that certain land situate and
being in LEVY County, FLORIDA, viz,

THOSE LAIYDS AS DESCRIBED IN EXIIIBJT 6A'' ATTACHED HERETO ANI)
MADE A PART HEREOF BY REFERENCE.

Said property beingthe same as described in ORBook95l Page2gg,public records of
Levy County, Florida.

Tax Parcel No: 05099-001-00

Said property is the homestead ofthe Grantor under the laws and constitution of the State of Florida.

SURIECT TO all easements, restrictions, reservations, ordinances, covenants, conditions,
limitations of record, if any, and all other such zoning and governmental regulations.

TITLE TO THE HEREINABOVE DESCRIBED LANDS HAS BEEN NEITHER
EXAMINED NOR APPROVED BY PREPARING ATTORNEY. LEGAL DESCRIPTION
FUR}IISHED BY GRANTOR.

TOGETHER with all the tenements, hereditaments and appurtenances thereto belonging
or in anywise appertaining.

To Have and to Hold, the same in fee simple forever.

51



AI\ID THE GRANTOR hereby covenants with said Grantees that he/she is lawfully seized of said
land in fee simple; that he/she has good title and lawful authority to sell and convey said land; that
he /she hereby fully warants the title to said land and will defend thee same against the lawful
claims of all persons whomsoever; and that said land is free of all encumbrances except taxes
subsequent to December 31, 2016.

In Witness Whereof, the said first party has signed and sealed these presents the day and
year first above written.

sealed and delivered
ln of:

of1 J.

1 Address

STATE OT' F'LORIDA

COUNTYOF. LEVY

I hereby Certifr that on this day, before, an offrcer duly authorized to administer oaths and

ame

take acknowledgments, personally appeared: DONALD J. TA$[N,ER,
person(s) described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, who
that he/ she executed the

known to me to be the

to me.
same, and

V
acknowledged before

Said person(s
me

an oath was not taken.(Check one:) )is
Said person(s) provided the following type of identification:

of
hand and official seal in the County and State last aforesaid this /& au1

, A.D. 2017.

ARY PUBLIC/ STATE OF FLORIDA

\

'"ffi

A.ntMo$lntEY
tlotLlolEOttP|l|hbtrt m$lEGaCornltabll

21,OcltrllrtCodn.$ Xtloillmdld

(sEAL)

PRINTED NAME OF NOTARY

52



/

That part of thc South * of Scctlon 6, Township 13 South,
Bangc I9 East, Lovy County- Florlda, morc farrlcularly
descrlbcd as followg: Conmencs rt thc Southeast cornsr of
thc Southwcrt * of tha Southcrct * of Scctlon 6, Townshlp
13 South, Rangc l9 Esst; 'thancc run llorth 87o 4l t l5rr Uest
along the South llne of sald Scctlon 6,1843.5 fcct to thc
Eastcrly rlght of ray llnc of thc Scaboard Alr Llne Rallroad;
thancc run llorthcastcrly along the sald rlght of way llne
of thc Scaboard Alr LInc Rallroadi 1519.32 fcct to the Polnt
of Bcg i nn i ng; thencc run South 88o 07 | 37" East a'long thG
old fcnce I lnc to thc llorth-South cGntcr I lnc of rald Sectl'on
6 a dlstan ce of ?18.75 fcet more or less; thancc run t{orth
elong thc ral d .l{orth-South center I I nc 120 fcat; thcnce run
l{€st to the Easterly rlght of ray llnp of thc Ecaboard AIr
Llne Ral I road a dlstancc of 193.75 fecti thcncc Southwcstcrly
along caid Easterly rlght'df lray to Polnt of Bcginnlng,

IT

53



LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Lands described in O.R.B. 276, page 424 of the Public Records of Levy County,
Florida; and part of lands described in O.R.B. 224. page 463, O.R.B . 171, page 343,
O.R.B. 90, page 392 and Deed Book 1, page 533, all of said Public Records; Lying in
the South 112 af Section 6, Township 1 3 South, Range 19 East, Levy County, Florida;
being more particularly described as follows:

Begin at the Southwest corner of Lot 11, Block 2, Woodfields, according to the
plat thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 7, page 41, said Public Records of Levy County,
Florida; said point also being the Southeast corner of said O.R.B. 224, page 463 and
the Northeast corner of said O.R.B. 276, page 424 and run thence South
00"02'13"West, a distance of 37 .48 feet to the Southeast corner of said O.R.B. 276,
page 424; thence North 87'33'47'West, along the South line of said O.R.B .276, page
424 and along the South line of said O.R.B . 171, page 343, a distance of 405.70 feet
to the East maintained right-of-way line of South Main Street (a.k.a. abandoned
Seaboard Coast Railroad); thence North 12"56'29"East, along said East right-of-way
line, a distance of 267.52 feet to the North line of said Deed Book 1, page 533 and the
South line of lands described in O.R.B. 1445, page 386. said Public Records; thence
South 89"57'47"East, along said North line and along said South line, a distance of
135.60 feet to the Northeast corner of said Deed Book 1, page 533 and the Southeast
corner of said O.R.B. 1445, page 386; thence North 13"19'53'East, a distance of
265.00 feet to the Northeast corner of said O.R.B. 1445, page 386 and the North line
of said O.R.B. 224, page 463; thence South 89"57'47"East, along said North line, a
distance of 149.06 feet to the Northeast corner of said O.R.B. 224, page 463 and the
said West line of said Block 2, Woodfields; thence South 00"02'13"West, along said
West line, a distance of 498.16 feet to the said Point-of-Beginning.

Containing 3.390 Acres, more or less.

54



PACEL 0S6r-0m-00
PM OF DED E@K

2, PreE 167
(NOT rNqUoEo)

b
&

2o0t PcP
crcF'D!

2&1 rcF
CROF'

P RCEL SG0-00J-0A
o.R.B. 917. PrcE 468

(NOT ITCLUDEO)

I

col€R€o

oRrctw sat oF A tuRru

Fo. hor. Inaomotlon pl.os€
tlllt ou. ,.bElt€

w{.ncluNrylnq.con

inroenclqryryinq,com

PREPANEO FOi:

Wlllslon, Florido, f,2696

tolap w t0.
ALGK 2 LOT r0,

ELMK 2LJtng tn tfie Soutfr 1/2 2@r rcP
cmfr'

13 Soutfi, Kange 19 East, Levl Countl, lFforifa il
FRt 2mt P@

8

5

Dil

Description: (bysurveyor)
Lands described in O.R.B. 276,paqe424 of the Public Recordsof LevyCounty,

Florida; and part of lands described in O.R.B. 224, page 463, O.R.B. 171, page 343,
O.R.B. 90, page 392 and Deed Book 1, page 533, all of said Public Records; Lying in
the South 1/2 ofSection 6, Township 13 South, Range 19 East, Levy County, Florida;
being more particularly described as follows:

Begin at the Southwest corner of Lot 'l 1, Block 2, Woodfields, according to the
plat thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 7 , page 41, said Public Records of Levy County,
Florida; said point also being the Southeast corner of said O.R.B. 224, page 463 and
the Northeast corner of said O.R.B. 276, page 424 and run thence South
00'02'13"West, a distance of 37.48 feet to the Southeast corner of said O.R.B. 276,
page 424; thence North 87'33'47"West, along the South line of said O.R.B. 276, page
424 and along the South line of said O.R.B. 1 71 , page 343, a distance of 405.70 feet
to the East maintained right-of-way line of South Main Street (a.k.a. abandoned
Seaboard Coast Railroad); thence North 1 2'56'29"East, along said East right-of-way
line, a distance ot 267 .52 feet to the North line of said Deed Book 1, page 533 and the
South line of lands described in O.R.B. 1445, page 386, said Public Records; thence
South 89'57'47"East, along said North line and along said South line, a distance of
1 35.60 feet to the Northeast corner of said Deed Book 1, page 533 and the Southeast
cornerofsaid O.R.B. 1445, page 386; thence North 13'19'53"East, a distance of
265.00 feet to the Northeast corner of said O.R.B. 1445, page 386 and the North line
of said O.R.B. 224, page 463; thence South 89"57'47"East, along said North line, a
distance of 149.06 feet to the Northeast corner of said O.R.B. 224, page 463 and the
said West line of said Block 2, Woodfields; thence South 00'02''13"West, along said
West line, a distance of 498.16 feet to the said Point-of-Beginning.

Containing 3.390 Acres, more or less.

Qrapfric Scafe

LOT 10,
6LOq 2

LOT r0.
EL&K 2

2@r PCP
cRo['

'47"E 1

--.$

^'ffc"i.

2001 PcP
cffi'

-*-fuq*o
toT t0,
aLocx 2

F*"
Sa
Jq'

s3

"Eg

oo

1 incfi = ft.40

E

t

h

LOT 10.
Bld 2

1. 6&de hd oE b.d n on ord wrw d &s d@'tJton. for
$rolnr rh. d 8Gr e tdrddr Fid b-dnq L ieilhdr $b h dor ot r,

?

'|o
(o
rt
rr)
u)

-q
u.

t'ln
ho
b
z.

di4 dF'.6, dcib-d .rd. .idld

Fblic 'gdr 
h6 hi 6i. ry S. .uryr lor oiy .ncuhhic.. 6r ibtd

FoDd .r ddidnhq r@nh.
r.'lfl fri. r.b rM rn. rcrd Dh or

hlomdon tuhS.d lo k lury. onlr, ndloE, il m tuiHhe ;.lhcb .E
ft6 h.doi, $n d6 mr r'dr h sn .c mn. m .ubtd ,Ed. r i.
ru#.di ry rh !ury,, M d, buidhe db.cb (nhr iloii d .d) oro
wdfrd .r lh! FF buirdhe @ofr..r frs re 4dd .Mt4 or rh *bj.d

5. $Dld PE !ry 
'hM 

h.nan ry h. o dhds or o Fmr M &r- s
hbmd.n rl# ry ik dLil. I s, lhb rry dc ftt eu.6ntG o
burdrnr @r .d il L lld
burdin! d@tu.^r 

'M 
lh cumnl rnii! d th. .ubNd rlw,

r hq.nry r.io0.4mr enry G.EM^) e
n m! .ulDr .. d b. dtdir d di..d d.

d lold m.r. ls n{.b. odd .n.rdmhb od ddbrty nd. b dr od

?

LOT r0.
ELOCX 2

NE9'57'47'w 1J5.60' OF
ND

q49.i,.
,'?b\

d

-Pil 2OOI PCP
cRo[-

/)
s*

u

g
?a/ce[ 05099-001-oo
3.390 fl.cres!(overafQ

F

c
3

I

(Pl

E1

(ir.l

4'il'ff,mffiW
@ffi.U8ffi)
r/2'rffi io s m

r/2'rm m s I*b
eaB5tuF

Pff-S..{*ffi

F
F

3
F
E

LOT r0,
BLOCk 2

t

3

I
2001 PCP
crcn'

e--- 'dftffi

I
f
3

Lfr 1I,
aL@( 2

w0FEos
PUt gooK 7,

PreE 4I

.""4ffffi l P.0.8.somw coRNm oF

200r PcP
CROF.

2'3, FNE

or
2mr PcP
cFotr

lFr
lPl

som
171 N87'33'47"W J

d,'d

LINE
PrcE 424 ENCE ONTINE

P&EL O5r@_@1_d

/s
/_€

,8

$7g',ott

200r rcP
cRsf

PftL 05!01_@O_OO
405.70'

OF

Ll S@02'r3V

,9'

,v
af

SJrw)rcr &

DL ludry m..tr b.
sto.d.dr ol Predc. r.1

fodh by th. fl6dd. A.ord of
Su@roB & MotFB,

pur.uonl to Choptcr 5J-17,
noddo &mi^iil..tiE &d.. stc*ronc!urvcing,com

55



Small Scale Land Use Map Change
&

Rezoning Application

Proiect Request: A proposed smallscale land use map change from Agriculturalto
Residential and a rezoning from Agricultural to R-2 in the City of Williston,
Florida.

Proiect Location: 755 S. Main Street (Tax Parcel Number 0509900100)

Proiect Owner CecilVernon Tanner

Report Date: November t,2022

Clay Sweger, AICP, LEED AP
eda consultants, inc.

Prepared Bv:

56



Project Background / Project Request

The owner of the subject property, Cecil Vernon Tanner, requests approval of a small scale future
land use map change from 'Agriculture'to'Residential' and a rezoning from 'Agriculture'to 'R-2'
on the approximately 3.39 acre subject property located at 755 S. Main Street in the City of
Williston, Florida. The parcel number for the subject property is 0509900100. The proposed land
use and zoning map designations are both residential in nature and are consistent with each
other and is compatible with the existing land use pattern in the area, which includes several
residential areas and a public school (Williston Elementary School)within short walking distance.

The existing and proposed City of Williston future land use maps indicating the proposed change
(land use map change) is below:

IIIIII

Future Land Use Categories:

I AGRTcuLTURAL / spRAy rRRrcATroN

f coMMERcTAL

I coNSERVAToN

I TNDUsTRTAL

I MrxED usE

: PUBLrcreuAsr puBLrc

I REcREAToN

ffi uNDEsTGNATED

RESIDENTIAL

2
57



a

Fdure Land Use Categories:

AGRICULTURAL i SPRAY IRRIGATION

COMMERCIAL

CONSERVATION

INDUSTRIAL

MIXED USE

PUBLIC / OUASI PUBLIC

RECREATION

RESIDENTIAL

UNDESIGNATED

tII
II

ll
Itt I

As indicated in the maps above, the proposed Residential future land use designation is

consistent with the overall future land use map pattern in the area, which predominantly includes
the same Residential future land use category and a complementary land use map designation
of Public at the location of Williston Elementary School.

3
58



The existing and proposed City of Williston zoning maps indicating the proposed change (zoning
map change) is below:

a

Gity of Williston Zoning RB Residential Business A Agricultural

lndustrial

Spray lrrigation

Public

Quasi Public

R-l Residential Single-Family f C-f Commercial General I t

{;!::; n-t-n Residential single-Family Jc-z commercial lntensive il sr

- i nU-t-n Residential Mobile Home ! CSO Central Business District f P

R-2 Residential Duplex ! nfClOS Recreation/Open Space QP

ffi nnA-Z Residential Multifamily RVP Recreational Vehicle Park

Zoning Map

{Existing}

+59



a

8th

of Williston Zoning RB Residential Business

R-l Residential Single-Family C-1 Commercial General

A

: :t
st

r

QP

Agricultural

lndustrial

Spray lrrigation

Public

Quasi Public

iii; n-l-n Residential Single-Family f."'ffi c-Z Commercial lntensive

RM-1-A Residential Mobile Home ! CeO Central Business District

R-2 Residential Duplex ; RECIOS Recreation/Open Space

i:ji;:: RM-z Residential Multifamily RVP Recreational Vehicle Park

I

Zoning Map
(Proposed)

As indicated in the maps above, the proposed R-2 zoning designation is consistent with the
overall future land use map pattern in the area, which predominantly includes the same or similar
residential zoning category and a complementary zoning map designation of Public at the
location of Williston Elementary School.

The subject property is located within a portion of the City of Williston with a predominant
residential development pattern. The Comprehensive Plan provides for residential land uses
within this portion of the city, which are intended promote well planned growth.

The applicant wishes to develop the property with residential units, which is consistent with the
proposed land use and zoning designations.

The City zoning map (proposed) designation for this property is R-2, which is consistent with the
proposed Residential future land use map designation and allows the same type and density of
residential development. As such, the proposed zoning change will implement the proposed land
use designation of the property.

5
60



Existing and Future Land Use Pattern & Compatibility

Existing Development

Patterns

Existing Use Future Land Use

Designation

North Vacant & Cemetery Agriculture

South Residential & Vacant Residential & Agriculture

East Residential Residential

West S. Main Street

Residential & Vacant Residential & Agriculture

Residential

Residential

Vrqrnt

Adjacent Use Exhibit-{
'J6 t:,t tr

,rl
t*

t
l aal

t
It

!..! a 4.t
I a I srrr

I

dE
a.

I
F
U)

tl
t(.
cY)

trj
(f)

^al

d
I
U)

CIz.J
.q{ rI'
u_J

I

l@I
" rF-la

F T

Q. S SIHAVE T
fVE @ { i:

7,t?
-,@ il@ Subiect Property

Parcel Number 0509900100
3.22 A,c.l+l-l

6'W
I
i&o

'F
"..f,.,,,i

I Edft-

The subject property has direct access and abuts S. Main Street. Existing residential properties
are abutting the site in all directions. A public school (Williston Elementary School) is located
immediately to the southeast of the property. Undeveloped land is also located to the north,

6
61



south and west. Future residential development on the subject property will be compatible with
the existing development pattern, a majority of which is residential in nature.

lmpact on Adopted Level of Service Standards

Accessibility to Public Facilities

All future development on the property that may result by the change in land use designation
and zoning map of the property will provide a site development plan to the City that provides
evidence that all adopted Level of Service (LOS) standards shall be met, as summarized below

Water, sewer, solid waste, parks and recreation, drainage and transportation level of services are
anticipated to maintain the adopted level of service standards after the proposed land use and

7

'Road Access S. Main Street

Fire Protection / Emergency > 0.25 mile

Police Protection > 0.5 mile

Nearest School > 0.25 mile

Centralized water and sewer
> 0.25 mile to nearest connections

lnfrastructure Comprehensive Plan Element Level of Service Standard

Solid Waste Ch. 4 lnfrastructure Element The LOS standard is 3.95 pounds

per capita per day.

Parks and Recreation Ch. 13 Concurrency Management

System

10 acres of open space per 1,000

persons as a LOS standard.

Centralized Sewer Ch. 13 Concurrency Management

System

L47 gallons per capita per day

Potable Water Ch. L3 Concurrency Management

System

134 gallons per capita per day

Drainage Ch. 13 Concurrency Management

System

Design standards for stormwater

management systems include 25-

year 24-hour duration storm event

Transportation Ch. 13 Concurrency Management

System

LOS standard for City Roadways is

"D" in the Comprehensive Plan.

62



zoning map change. ln addition, any future development would be required to demonstrate
concurrency availability at the time of application to the City.

City of Williston Comprehensive Plan

The following Comprehensive Plan policies apply to the proposed land use change application
The policies listed below with the applicant's consistency statements included.

Future Land Use Element

Objective 7

Future growth ond development will continue to be directed by adopted lond development
regulations into oppropriote lond use areos with the ovoilability of facilities ond services,
suitoble topography ond soil conditions.

Policy 7.3

The various lond use categories shall conform to the following moximum density or intensity of
use standards. Density shall refer to the gross acreoge of lond rather thon net developable
acreage.

Policy 7.4 Residential

It is the intent of this lsnd use category to provide for single-fomily detoched dwelling units in
residentiol areas of low density (4 dwelling units/gross acre maximum). ln the low-density lond
use cotegory, mobile homes are permitted in RM-I-A zoning district only.

Medium density (5 dwelling unit/gross ocre maximum) residential oreos permit single-family
detoched or attached dwelling uses, including mobile homes. Connection to community potable
water systems and centralized sonitory sewer systems is preferred but not required. tn the
medium density land use cotegory, mobile homes are permitted in RM-2 zoning district only.
Residential oreas of high density (up to 72 dwelling units/gross acre moximum) are permitted only
when community potable water systems ond centralized sonitary sewer systems are available ond
occessible.

8

4.0 Dwellir':g Units/Gross Acre R-1. R-l.A. RM-l.A. RB

5.0 Dwelling Unitsy'Gross Acre R.2. RM.2. RB

12 0 Dwellrng Unrts/Gross Acre R-2. RM-2

Density per Gross Acre (Max) lmplementing Zoning Districts

63



Single-family attached, detached and multifomily dwelling units are permitted. Mobile homes are
not permitted.

Consistencv: As stated in this report, the subject property is bounded in all directions by
many properties with a residential future land use and zoning designation. The proposed
residential designations will be consistent with this Policy and will be compatible with the
surrounding area.

Objective 3

The City shall promote the compatibility of adjacent land uses

Policy 3.7 The City will regulate future land uses based upon the predominant existing lond use
locotions and intensities, and through the timing ond location of extended municipol services.
Preference will be given to associative land use potterns which utilize energy efficiency, while
protecting overall environmentol quolity.

Policy 3.2 Expansion of land uses which ore incompatible with the future land use plan shall be
prohibited, except that this shall not be construed to prohibit the reconstruction of a domaged
or destroyed building. Where the development review process identifies lond use compotibility
conflict, then mitigotion of incompatible lond uses through buffering sensitive oreas identified in
site analysis, landscaping, provision of open space and other oppropriote techniques sholl be
used to address impacts of opproved development.

Consistencv: As stated in this report, the proposed residential future land use and zoning
designations area compatible with the immediate area surrounding the subject property,
which are primarily residential properties.

Objective 6

To promote efficient use of resources and prevent development beyond what is necessary to
accommodate expected growth, the City sholl continue to implement comprehensive plon
policies intended to limit urban sprawl.

Consistencv: The subject property is within the urbanized portion of the City with
development in all directions and public facilities available to serve future development on-
site. This type of infill development is consistent with the City's efforts to limit urban sprawl.

Objective 7

Ensure the ovailability of suitable lond for utility focilities necessary to support proposed
development.

Policy 7.1 All development shall be phosed into areas where odequate transportation, public
services and facilities will be provided or currently exist. All development shall meet the Williston

9
64



Level of Service standords as contained within this plan for focilities and services. The facilities
ond services shall either:

o.

b.

Be availoble and provided concurrent with the impacts of development; or,
Development orders and permits shall be specifically conditioned on the avoilability of
facilities and services necessary to serve the proposed development.

Consistencv: As indicated in this report, there are public facilities and services located in
close proximity to the subject property, including utilities, fire rescue, police and schools to
serve future development on the project site.

Summary

Comprehensive Plan Policies: The proposed land use and zoning change is consistent with
Comprehensive Plan policies related to the proposed Residentialfuture land use designation and
R-2 zoning designation for the subject property. The project area has access to public facilities,
public safety and public schools and is situated with access to a public street (S. Main Street) and
consequently, this proposed amendment is consistent with the future land use map, zoning map
and the existing development pattern within the area.

Level of Service: The analysis shows that the proposed future land use map change and rezoning
should not have an adverse effect on adopted level of service standards and any future
development on the property that may result by the proposed map changes on the property will
provide a site development plan to the City that provides evidence that all adopted Level of
Service (LOS) standards shall be met.

Compotibility; As stated above, this proposed land use and zoning map change is consistent
with the overall land development pattern within the area.

10
65



Date: January 312023

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

TOPIC: DISCUSSION WITH POSSIBLE ACTION: SELECTING A FUTURE DATE
FOR A SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING FOR PUBLIC INPUT ON
ANNEXATION OF PROPERTY IDENTIFIED AS THE OLD WILLISTON MIDDLE
SCHOOL.

REQUESTED BY: COUNCIL PRESIDENT DEBRA JONESiCITY MANAGER TERRY
BOVAIRI)
PREPARED BY: CITY CLERK LATRICIA WRIGHT

BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION: A FACILITY TO HELP GIVE PEOPLE TRAPPED
UNDER THE INFLUENCE OF SUBSTANCE ABUSE A SECOND CHANCE IN LIFE.
OFFERING THE MOST ADVANCED MEDICAL TREATMENT COUPLED WITH
ALTERNATIVE RECREATIONAL THERAPIES AND VOCATIONAL TRAINING TO
ENSURE OUR PATIENTS ARE REINTEGRATED TO MAINSTREAM SOCIETY AS
ECONOMICALLY PRODUCTIVE PARTICIPANTS.

LEGAL REVIEW:

FISCAL IMPACTS:

RECOMMENDED ACTION: SET DATE FOR MEETING FOR PUBLIC INPUT AND
DISCUSSION.

ATTACHMENTS:

COMMISSION ACTION:

APPROVED

DISAPPROVED

66



:-'t
tr,#r'

.t

Oaktree
addiction &
recovery Project
plan

t

IF

#,

Ali Mirza

67



I

Mission statement

At Oaktree, our mission is to help give people trapped

under the influence of substance abuse a second chance

in life. We believe in offeringthe most advanced medical

treatme nt cou pl ed with alte rnative recreatio nal

therapies and vocational training to ensure our patients

are reintegrated to mainstream society as economically

prod uctive partici pants.

il
xr

'jffih
.i.;

68



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

January 3.d'r2023

TOPIC: Resolution 2023-l / DialMyCalls.com

A RESOLUTTON OF THE CITY OF COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON,
FLORTDA, ESTABLISHING AUTHORIZATION FOR THE CITY COUNCTL PRESIDENT
TO AUTHORIZT THE SIGNING OF A CONTRACT WITH DIALMYCALL.COM; AND
PROVIDE AN EFFECTTVE DATE.

Requested By: Aaron Mills, IT Director/ Donald Barber, Public Works Supervisor

BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION:

Previously City Council asked staff to look into being able to communicate better with the
residents for any emergency issue. Staff was able to get three quotes and recommends
DialMyCalls.com for the price and all that is offered with it.

1. Plan allows up to 30 broadcasts a month, emails free
2. Can create unlimited subgroups and add administrators
3. 2-minute phone message or 160-character text message
4. Create message templates and saved messages for dayto-day use or emergencies
5. Send now or schedule in advance
6. Program your organization's phone number to show up as the caller ID

LEGAL REVIEW: NO

FISCAL IMPACTS:
Budget.

YES / 52246.40 annual cost from Information and Technology

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Staff recommends Approval

ATTACHMENTS: Exhibit A

ACTION:

APPROVED

DISAPPROVE

69



CITY COUNCIL RES;OLUTION NO. 2O23-OL

A RESOLUTTON OF THE CrTY COUNCTL OF THE CITY OF WTLLISTON, FLORTDA,
ESTABLISHING AUTHORIZATION FOR THE CITY COUNCIL PRTSIDENT TO
AUTHORIZE TIilE SIGNING OF A CONTRACT WITH DIALMYCALL.COM; AND
PROVIDE AN EFFECTTVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City of Williston Council has asked staff for emergency contact

capabilities; and

WHEREAS the Customer and residents will be better serviced; and

WHERTAS the City Council will enter a contract with DialMyCalls.com for the

purchase, hosting, and implementation of an emergency contact platform.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE rT RESOLVED BY THE CrTY COUNCIL OF THE CITY

oF WILLISTON, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The above recitals are true and accurate and are made a part of this

resolution.

Section 2. The City Council President is authorized to execute the necessary

contracts for the purchase and acquisition of a five-year licensing agreement and

contract for software hosting and services for the City of Williston from

DialMyCalls.com.

PASSED AND N)OPTED at a meeting of the City Council this 3rd day of

January 2023.

CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORTDA

By:
Debra Jones, President

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

Scott Walker, City Attorney
Kiersten Ballou, Attorney

By:
Latricia Wright, City Clerk

By:

70



I obololker

I Pre-Poid Blocks of Messoge Uniis fi Monthly Subscriplions

Colk .0[. Toxfi Por Blo*

r00 / 200

2s0 / s00

5001 t,000

r,000 / 2,000

2,500 / 5,000

5,000/ 10,000

t0,000 / 20,000

20,000 / 40,000

50,000/ 100,000

t00,000 / 200,000

200,000 / 400,000

Cosl

$s

$20

$35

$70

$tzs

$x99

i{e9

tns

11750

$299e

i59e9

/Coll

9.04

8.0{

7,00

z,0c

z0c

6.0(

5.0{

4.0(

3.5{

3.0{

3.0{

/t"

4.5(

4.0(

3.5(

3.5{

3.5{

3.0e

2J{

2.04

L/5{

,58

.54

Mox Conlocb

t00

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1,000

2,000

lohlCo$/ Monft

i20 UnllndtdCdhordlon

$40 Unlimiod Colh ond Tero

$60 Unlinr'rhd €olh ond Tod

$80 Unlinrind Collc ond Tart

$ 100 Unllmlled Cdb ond Tcut

$ 120 Unllmilcd Collc ond Tord

$140 UfioibdColhodToa

$160 Unllnild Coh ond Terd

ll00 UnhrhdColhondToa

$200 Unlinritod Colh ondlcxt

$400 Unlimltsd Colb ond Too

PAY AS YOU GO BIOCKS

BUY MORE TO LOWER THE COST

f Our ryslem con lell fte dillerence belween live onswer ond voice moil
ond moy leove o differanl messoge lor eoch. leoye o lwo minule long voice
messoge il coll is unonswered!

* RingJ.ss voice moil drops ollorv you to communicole withoul disturbing
youl clienlsl Mesroge unill never erpire sneJ run be userl for cilhcr colls or
lext,

* Pros I lronrlers, prediclive drqler with onswer on qoJwer copolrility,
cuslorn coller lD lo bo disployed for phone colls, orrd muct: more!

tt Send two lexl messoger for overy mersoge unit ond only poy {or phone
colls lhol qre deliverod lo livo or voicemoil.

ItIONTH tY SU BSCR.I PTION

FIXED NUMBER OF CONTACTS

{< UNLtt',tlfEO 
"olls 

ond texl messoges lor orgonizotions with o fixed
nunber conloclt, but nol lo €xcess, You ore limited lo l0 sms lirnes contoctc
per monlh. lhe number of contocls con be upgroded ol onylimo with o
lorget subscriplion.

f All o[the "poyos you oo' feoturerore included forthe lixed number of
contoclr. Coll ond loxlyour members oe ollen or you like wilhoul ony
odditionol cocl.

{i lf you odd ond rubtroct contocls the removed contoclr ore slill porl of
lhe monlhly limil lor 30 doys, so normol updoting ol numbers should nol
luspend the occount, {Sorry, no ptogrommer API'r ore ollowed for monlhly
subscriplions.)

71



\l

tillPialMycalls.",
Quote No: 203911

Created date: September 20th,2022

Expir.ation:30 Days

Addressl

City of Wlliston

ATTN: Aaron Mills

Customer lnformation:
City of Williston

Aaron Mills

amills@willistonfl.org

3525283060

Contact lnformation:
Sarah Holobaugh

LglZ)40s 1931

''h.club.r-uslh@tg,,-r]tlycAlls-Ertrlr

IotalUrlit PilceQuantityProdLicl llame

DialMycalls 1800 phone number plarr. Annual User plan (yearly) 12 00 $2j4.0O S2,g09.00

10% discoutrt for Religious Organizatir:ns and Ncln-Profits. - Ad.iitional l0o/€ discount for first year Annual Plan.

Notes;

This plan allows you to send up to 1-30 broadcast (phone calls or texts) each month to each of
your phone numbers. Email is free.

You can create unlirnited subgroups and add additional administrators at any time.
- 2-minute phone message or 1.60-character text message.
- Record a message in your own voice, upload a file, or use Text to Speech.

- Create message templates and saved messages for day to day use or emergencies.
- Send now, schedule in advance, or set up reoccurring messages,
- Suilt in Import Wizard lor pulling in spreadsheets.
- Program your organization's phone number to show up as the caller ID.

- Additional features such as polling, opt out, repeat message.
- Message reprrrts for all broadcasts

- Mobile App - Send tnessages frorrr anywlrelel
' 107o discount for Religious Organizations and Non-Profits. - Additional L0% discount for first
year Annual Plan.

Please ernail your tax-exempt document to sholobaugh@dialmycalls.corn.

Addltlonal lnformatlon:

lf paying by check our mailing address is:

OnTimeTelecom lnc.

5500 Mititory lroil suate 22-105 Jupi.ter, FL 33458

United States

We're looking forward to working with you!

Approval Signature:

Date

Subtotal

Discount

Balance Due

$2,808.00 usD

$s61.50

$2.246.40 USD

5500 Military Trail Suite 22-105.lupiler, FL 33458 P: 800-928-2086 F: 866-515-8331

72



AlertMedia

CONFI DENTIAL PROPOSAL FOR

The City of Willistor, FL
October 4,2022
This proposal is valid for 30 days

IJBOPFIIElARY ANIIJ CONf:lDENl llAL lN|:OIIMATION BELONCIlNG TO Al-HllTMEDlA, lnc flris r.locutnerrt and tho inlortlutiotr
contained hetcin corttairrs trode $ecrots, c:onliclentiarl and proprietary inlornration trr.llorrging eLclusivoly t0 AlertMsciia, lnc,

ttletefore agleos llot to discloss the colltonts lo arry thircl palty: willrin tlro rooipient's orgJanization lo only share this inlorrration witlr

73



@ nlertMedia
Your Partner in Employee Safety

our team at AlertMedia is pleased to present you with this proposal and we are excited to have the opportunity to
work with your organization.

With AlertMedia, keeping your workforce safe, informed, and connected during an emergency has never been
easier. our intuitive software helps safety leaders quickly ldentify critical incidents and notify stakeholders in
record time to keep people and assets protected, Our customers give us some of the highest possible marks in the
industry with an NPS score of +87 and a 98% customer satisfaction rate. Here are a few reasons whyl

lndustry-leading Two-Way Communication Capabilities
confirm message delivery and get a response from your team to ensure their safety.

Simple and lntultlve User lnterface
Navigate a modern user experience on web and mobile apps that require no training.

Reliable Multichannel Dellvery
Reach your audience over any channel, anywhere in the world, in real time.

Fast, Simple lmplementation
Launch quickly with simplified data and user flow, with a dedicated onboarding team

Full-Featured Mobile App
Empower admins to monitor threats and respond timely on the go with our mobile app.

Enterprise-Grade Data Securlty
GDPR, CCPA, SOCz compllant system with data encryption in-transit and at-rest,

More than 3,000 organizations in more than 130 countries trust AlertMedia to keep their
people safe, informed, and connected during critical events,

B
g

@

oo
@?

B

@

Food and Retail Technology Energy & Health

!fli[.-€ ilETFLI;1 bp enersy

Walmart

Crab&Barcl

ffi,

nrg:

4lq,&*
tsemnn'

Airline & Auto

jetBtue

@eueanu

@

Non-Profit

W

".)t
pi

t, *$"d:x".!

gtrlscoutrl

Sports

%
G
#
ffi
@

zoom

@
SNMSUNG f {Kawasaki

\r(}LTr(}v
heolthgrodes@ Yf,6uiu,,-

2CONFIOENTIAT ATERTMEOIA PROPOSAt FOR THE CITY OF WItt|S'rON - OCTOBER 2022

74



@ nlertMedia
Quote Summary

AlertMedia is the only solution that integrates analyst-vetted threat intelligence with powerful emergency
communication capabilities to help you l<eep your people safe and your business protected, The two solutions
deliver the most value when used together, or you can subscribe to each independently,

AlertMedia's Threat lntelllgence instantly expands your security operations wlth global and hyper-local coverage of
crltical lncldents, Our global intelligence team delivers verified intelligence 2417 to help you surface what matters,
avoid false alarms, and assess impact quickly so you can respond faster, with confidence.

Custom, automated, and real-time threat alerts delivered to admlns and impacted individuals

Automatic calculatlon of event impact shows every asset at risk for people and locations included
: 24/7 access to analyst-verified intel on global lncldents like crime, demonstratlons, fire, outages, and more

: Historical threat insights for incident reporting, strategic planning, and travel planning

i Get the full AlertMedia experience on Mobile for admins and all employees on native iOS and Android apps

r Set up any number of admin accounts to empower threat monitorlng for your entire team

, Seasonal outlook webinars and short-range weather forecast alerts by in-house meteorologists.

, Weekly in-depth analyst briefs to stay ahead of planned and ongoing events

Analyst Access - Respond to developlng incidents confidently with instant, 2417 access to expert analysts
Single Sign-on - Leverage your organization's user authentication process

Auto User Provlsionlng - Automatlcally manage your users through Azure AD or Okta (requires 5SO)

API Access - Customize your experience with development and integrations

our solutlon enables your organization to communicate with precision, interact with your audience, and confirm a
resolution. lmprove employee safety, mitigate loss, and ensure business continuity with an emergency
communication solutlon designed for the modern workforce.

SMSfiext usage: First 172,000 SMS/Text messages per year included I Additional texts 50.015 per message
Voice usage: Flrst 172,000 Voice minutes per year included I Additional minutes billed at 50.03 per mlnute

y' ' Two'way interaction with your audlence through text, voice, email, and mobile application

{ Dedlcated phone number gives your audience a familiar and direct llne to engage

{ Automatlcallv sync your people data via Active Directory, CSV files, or SFTP

r' Ensure only relevant people are alerted on incidents with Dynamic Groups

r' Set up any number of admln accounts to empower two-way communication for your entire team

I Get the full AlertMedia experience on Mobile for admins and all employees on native iOS and Android apps

; DesktopAlerts-Sendscreen-takeovernotificatlonstodellveremergencymessagestocomputerdesktops

Single Sign-on - Leverage your organization's user authentication process

, Auto User Provlsioning - Automatically manage your users through Azure AD or Okta (requires 5SO)

, API Access - Customize your experience wlth development and integrations

AlertMedia Threat lntelligence

INCLUDED:

PREMIUM ADD.ONS:

{ AlertMedia Emergency Communication Platform

INCLUDED:

PREMIUM ADD-ONSr

CONFiDENTIAL ALERTMEDIA PROPOSAL FOR THE CITY OF WILLISTON - OCTOBER 2022 3

75



@ nlertMedia

lmportant Notes

Usage:

' SMS/text and voice minutes are included based on USA domestic notifications only, Any SMS/text
messages and voice minutes sent or received outside of USA will be billed according to the rate card.

' One SMS/text consists of 160 characters (or 70 characters if using non-GSM characters). Your usage will
be measured per SMS/text.

t Usage amounts given in Any Channel Message Delivery are for annual payment option. lf Customer
chooses to pay monthly, included Usage will be converted to monthly amount by dividing the Usage
numbers by 12.

ProposalTerms:

' lf you need the team at AlertMedia to develop any custom integrations, such work will be subject to a

mutually agreeable Statement of Work which outlines the scope and pricing of such development.

' This price quote assumes acceptance ofAlertMedia's standard Terms ofService. Changes to our standard
Terms of Service may result in an increase in price or other adjustments to this quote.

lncluded With All Engagements: World-Class Customer Support

r&
&.tl

Expert-guided
technical implementation

2417 support
for your admins and employees

Dedicated customer
success managef

On-demand training library
and knowledgebase

4

24
HRS

CONFIDFNTIAT ALERTMEDIA PROPOSAt FOR THE CITY OF WILTISTON - OCTOBER 2022

76



@ AlertMedia
Customer Acceptance Form

Please sign this page and return the entire proposal to: patrick.galligan@alertmedia,com

$L5,ooo/year*
*Pricing does not lnclude any applicable sales tax

1^,800 People

Customer can add more than the included number of people at a rate of S0,70 per
person per month

3 Years

Customer will use AlertMedia to:
r Send emergency notifications when critical events, such as severe weather or

workplace violence, threaten the health and safety of message recipients

Tax Exemption Status

[ ] My organization is Tax Exempt and will provide exemption certificate to salestax@alertmedia.com

Acceptance

Please sign and date this Customer Acceptance Form to indicate your acceptance of this proposal as an authorized
representative of the customer. Payment will be due net-30 days from the date of acceptance of this proposal.
Fees for the Services shall increase by 3.9% each year of the Agreement. This Customer Acceptance Form is
governed by the Terms of Service found at http;//www.alertnredia.conr/terrns.of-service. This Customer
Acceptance Form and Terms of Service constitute the entire agreement of the parties with regard to the subject
matter hereof, and supersedes all previous written or oral representations, agreements and understandings
between the parties, whether expressed or implied.

ACCEPTED on the DAY of 2022

BY: The City of Wtlliston

(signature)

(print nome)

(title)

5

Subscription Price

lncluded ,qssets:

lnitial Term

Planned Use:

CONFIDENTIAT ALERTM€DIA PROPOSAL FOR THE CITY OF WILLISTON - OC'I'OBER 2022

77



78



@ AlertMedia

The Most lntuitive
Emergency
Communication
Solution

&

coMM uNtcATE QUtCKLy AN D EFFECTTVELY DURTNG
EMERGENCIES AND BUSINESS-CRITICAL EVENTS

Protect your people. Protect your business.
Every day, businesses face an increasing number of threats to their people
and operations-from severe weather events to global health crises. Keeping
employees safe during these critical events requires a modern and reliable
emergency communication solution, lt's why companies across a range of
industries-from Fortune 500 companies to small and mid-size organizations-
are turning to AlertMedia.

our intuitive platform delivers a complete solution for employee safety combining
industry-leading communication capabilities, global threat intelligerrce, and

employee safety monitoring into one easy-to-use interface. AlertMedia is the
fastest-growing emergency communication software in the world, leading the way
with an unrivaled focus on simplicity, mobility, and reliability.

Key Feature Guide I Mass Notification

(( nrrff4edia was the
best solution we

looked at-easiest
set up and had the
most funchonality."

Mike Neighbors

Di rector lT I nf rastru cture,

Coca-Cola Bottling Company

RELIABILITY

We help you protect your

people and business with a

robust, scalable inf rastructure

trusted by thousands of
global organizations.

SIMPLICITY

We broke the rnold of overly
complex solutions, prioritizing

an intuitive experietrce

that is easily implemented
and adopted.

MOBILITY
We built a modern solution
that caters to the challenges

of keeping an increasingly

dispersed and mobile-frrst

workforce safe and connected.

3 ar, '".,,..,..,",-.

@

"' I *{un.n.,.,,.o"._

@

i

@D
! l f.t|4'''!1..,{^1.6r

START PROTECTING YOUR PEOPTE TODAY // 800.826,0777 /I ALERTMEDI A.CaI| // 02022 ALER.TMEDIA

79



@ nlertMedia
3107 f

( 8rut Create Notlltcailon

.ill+r

o
O
0

lmplementation & Support lncluded
Launch quickly with a dedicated success

managerand 24/7 supportwith an average

response time of 13 minutes.

lntuitive User Experience
Perform under the pressures of an emergency

with an intuitive experience that requires little
to no training.

Multi-Channel Notifi cations
lncrease message vislbility via voice call, text
message, email, mobile app push, desktop

takeover, Slack, and more.

One-Touch Conference Call lnitiation
Get response teams together faster by initiating
a conference call in seconds without meeting

invites or pin codes.

Two-Way Communication
Give your people a voice and confirm safety

with read confirmations, surveys, notification
replies, and "help" requests.

Notifi cation Templates & Permissions
Send your message in a few clicks using pre-built
communication templates and limit access to
select users,

Flexible Delivery Settings
Send notifi cations over all channels

simultaneously or in a sequence until they
are received and autornate retries,

Delivery lnsights & Reporting
Track message delivery and audience respouses
in real-time and gain valuable insights through
detailed reporting.

(9 @ (qr) @
E! Al€dMedla

TeoDlnts O lurEs.l I Vhivr.olnsrdbrnlnLtdr?

'.*) @

2 !.sw{Spu!lr6sd?

@ (i.i)

3 ULrni..ry&Frw.r!ru(

2 llswisuttryoxlttoro lqird?

= 
Sw(ch lo ddvrne€d vrev?

q Tng {o

[r;:':'4i' I1':lal1)

@(F)G)@@
At€RIr Itrorslsa irehEu0iru2at hs
gv$835 Per\lordlloo.ovorure il you ilrfi n tt:u
NKhg ll FUile nol'n lE ar€a slay cr.r and

ft$rd(no 3 Whol nrc956lio do yoo tlent to 6end?

4 ho do ,q' rdr r. ..nd 6i. rd

t!@
5 b$ie ln.serortor.iltfd.b?

: , craxrb4r4br&tr c.in5

ctsdo E?il1 A!rum!.df

@@

Oct 25. ?{}:llr l1 {;'PM

Thsre has beon a power outage at lhe Austin store due to inclement

weather. Please kack the event page for updates and protocol.

P(

QL ^,", 
witson sent a notificalion

$l! ,u.","" Feroandez

I ln Progress; 319 |
I raited: o

Opted Outi 162 O

M(lti" Chonrrc, Nolifical ioDs

Completoi 157

Psnding:0

Mlsslng Data:0

Ocr :18 f020 1 3s /\il

The aisles are dark but there are still shoppers...should we close the store?

lil roply lo Alex Wllson's, nolillcatlon: Ttrcre haD lreon a pov/cr oUtR0e rt ille A[stin
sloto duc lo ncluolenl lventher Please ttock lrrc event page for uD(lates irn(i prutocot

POST OPTIONS: Publish to Page I Reply to User I Mark as Read I Archive

Ivro-Woy Cotllunicntiorr

Delivery Details

638

Deli\'e(y ltttights l; Repo(ting

START PROTECTING YOUR PEOPLE TODAY // 80A.826.07?7 /I ALERTMEDIA,CoM /I @2122ALERTMEDIA 2

80



Threat Alert

@ nlertMedia

Smlthlno. | (5$l)

0g0tE{cf

@
I

@to
{)

@

@

@
,/@

I ntegr ated Globol T hrcat Intellhence

2t2?

AlortM6dla

u\,I{grn!u!. lHillbu,oi$t
?t4r{rrrr't\ GfeensbUfg

@
@

savs.rryr llEll a-nku&\\t@

ColoEoryr Secuilly

tMF Ct

885 6155 090

PA Slale Pollco 8nd bomb squads
aro tospondlng lo r€pons ol a
suspiclous packago 8l a Walmart
Local€d at 2200 Or€sngat€ Center
Clr, acordlng (o localnsre r€porls.

@@

d ? lr-,

AlsrtModls

ELt

You &a not balng donl(orod.
pro3ethe Sh.t Tlfior Sraolon blllon tob€gin.

{i! @
qD

lntegrated Global Threat lntelligence
ldentify threats to your people faster with analyst-

vetted intelligence and location-based impact

calculation and alerts,

Event Pages For Resources & Updates
Provide a single online repository for all

notifications, resources, updates, and questions

related to a specific incident.

Easy Data Syncing & User Management
Automate data syncing with your internal systems

to ensure accurate contact info and easily assign

admitr permissions,

Dynamic User Groups
Automate group creation during data syncs and

quickly identify the right audience based on the
criteria you set.

AlertMedia MobileApp
Allow your leaders to monitor threats, send multi-
channel messages, and manage incorning responses

from anywhere,

lntegrated Employee Safety Monitoring
Safeguard your workforce with a 24/7 /365
monitoring team and a mobile app that provides a

one-touch distress signal.

Enterprise-Grade Security & Reliability
Know our GDPR and CCPA-compliant system
protects your data with full encryption and world-
class security policies.

lmplement in an Hour,
Send a Message in Seconds
We provide all customers with simple, easy

onboarding and a dedicated resource so you can

get up and runnirrg quickly, with less effort.

6
,:
s
a

@

t

I
-@

@

@

@@ southwest
Greensburg

4t rli

2;30 t6l!l Nottltcarions
(J Uen rtrelvdd iloilrcnft.nc f

, J , lncamlng MsrssgeE fU VcN nro33rOes snd r€otlgs

m Ev€nts \l59l Manage evontr

# l:l,'.,i,ffT.ffi*,,., )

et

i

Pl (,

P.o!r Oo P.nb A0{on ond lhs Monkrho C{nrerS[
ofid holb.

Ale,tMedia Mobile App

lntegrated Rnployee Sofety Moniloting

(Bicl

3

+ SEI,]D NC'TIFICATIOJ\I

Shil Tlder
Sesrlon

$ urvt ltrlcr;arrott

START PROTECTING YOUR PEOPLE TODAY // 800,826,A777 // 4L6P1NAEJIA.COM // @2022 ALERTMEDIA

81



@ edMAlert ia

n{a

(or* NorircdFtrg.t.b i O

!trAlertMMta cil!0Ho{i.rrhn

lo^rtl.l.rq rv-q!, 1 qh.[tpoolocill..tiqbilnol

E r,'?r r$t^,r'i, @ [') G'r)

#R
@ (ii) (tt) @

3 hr'&.ri$doPdre.d b ndt

r(tmri..r,oar'!'.1L"*.! 
^r.4nd,Frlrt-n.,1 

$.,3-:
rp,.'rnd.b/-('r 11r.il.'..

4 Spby.uv.nlb...drh.r.?

@[
5 Erhl..fl{.v'nrqai!Fr61 o

. 6.16-td5-1.rq.*drnr€
I 9r-'.nd...r6.r

1..,.qr.,',

E@ ![

nr-: - fidnrL* r-
tu..d.r.rh' hffn-r. lsNrdd*rd
k !rrdhbrwhr64 dkns4 lr.{&r,
&IF,ffMk.hdn
*1m.bbhq.bn*ffitur

srr:

StjitJQ

CUSTOMER FIRST

AlertMedia is committed to providing

an unparalleled level of service to our

customers through an effective product,
personalized support from a dedicated

technical expert, arrd immediate

responsiveness 24l7.

taoratfta ardat,

INNOVATION FOCUSED

We are the fastest-growlng emergency

cotnmurrication company in the
world, offering a modern solution for
employee safety and a conrmitment
to the delively of additional value

through produci innovation.

Trusted by Leaders Acoss All lndustries

*frtgg* .*;*<qft
6l--lr,'Eo;*J

MISSION DRIVEN

Every employee is deeply irrvested

irr our mission to help custonrers

save lives and miuimize loss during

emergerrcies. This drives an

award-winning culture and a

customer-cel'ltric experience.

#
jetBtue

SurveyMonkey'
fb .h'y I {Kawasaki H.E.B

ai

TRY IT FREE

Start protecting your people today. Contact us
for a more detailed capabilities demo.
sales@alertmedia.com // (BOO)826-A777 // alertmedia.com

82



Date: January 312023

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

TOPIC: RESOLUTION 2023-03: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA APPOINTING DEBRA JONES AND WAYNE
CARSON TO THE CITY OF WILLISTON GENERAL EMPLOYEE'S PENSION PLAN
AND TRUST BOARD FoR A PERIOD oF Two (2) YEARS; AND PROVIDING FoR
AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

REQUESTED BY: COUNCIL PRESIDENT DEBRA JONES
PREPARED BY: CITY CLERK LATRICIA WRIGHT

BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION: MRS. DEBRA JONES AN MR. WAYNE CARSON
ARE CURRENT BOARD MEMBERS AND THEIR TWO-YEAR TERM WILL EXPIRE
JANUARY 5,2023. BOTH MEMBERS HAVE AGREED TO SERVE ANOTHER TWO (2)
YEARS ON THE GENERAL EMPLOYEE'S PENSION PLAN AND TRUST BOARD.
THEIR TERM WILL BEGINNING ON JANUARY 6, 2023, ENDING ON JANUARY 5,
2025.

LEGAL REVIEW: NONE

FISCAL IMPACTS: NONE

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve

ATTACHMENTS:

COUNCIL ACTION:

APPROVED

DISAPPROVED

83



RESOLUTION 2023-03

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCTL OF THE CITY OF WTLLTSTON, f,'LORTDA
APPOINTING DEBRA JONES AND WAYNE CARSON TO THE CITY OF'WILLISTON
GENERAL EMPLOYEE'S PENSION PLAN AND TRUST FOR A PERIOD OF', TWO (2)
YEARS; AND PROVIDING FOR AI\ EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Williston City Council wishes to reappoint Debra Jones and Wayne Carson to the City
of Williston General Employee Pension Board.

WHEREAS, Debra Jones and Wayne Carson acknowledge the willingness to serve another two years on
the board, term starting January 6,2023, ending January 5,2025.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Williston, Florida as

follows:

SECTION 1. The above recitals are true and accurate and are made a part of this resolution.

SECTION 2. The City of Williston appoint Debra Jones and Wayne Carson to the City of Williston
General Employee's Pension Plan and Trust Board.

SECTION 3. This resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption.

PASSED AllD ADOPTED at a meeting of the City Council this 3'd day of January 2023

CITY OF WILLISTON

By:

Debra Jones, Council President

ATTEST APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY

By: By:

Latrj.cia Wright, City Clerk Kiersten Ballou, Attorney

84



Date: January 312023

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

TOPIC: Resolution 2023-04: A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Williston,
Florida appointing the Canvassing Board for the 2023 General Municipal Etections and
Establishing and Effective Date.

REQUESTED BY: CITY CLERK LATRICIA WRIGHT
PRE,PARED BY: CITY CLERK LATRICIA WRIGHT

BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION: APPOINTING THE CITY MANAGER (TERRY
BOVARID), POLICE CHIEF (MIKE ROLLS) AND THE WILLISTON
REPRESENTATIVE FROM THE LEVY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
coMMrssroNERS (MATT BROOKS) TO THE CANVASSTNG BOARD.

LEGAL REVIEW: NONE

FISCAL IMPACTS: NONE

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve

ATTACHMENTS:

COUNCIL ACTION:

APPROVED

DISAPPROVED

85



CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION NO. 2O23.O4

A RESOLUTION OF'THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
WTLLISTON, FLORTDA AppOINTINc THE CANVASSTNG
BOARD FOR THE 2023 GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTIONS
AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Charter of the City of Williston requires biennial

elections to fill expired terms of the City Council and Mayor pursuant to the

established election cycle; and

WHEREAS, the City of Williston is required to designate a Canvassing

Board to canvass the votes in accordance with the City Charter and Florida

Statue

NOW, THEREF'ORE, BE IT RESOLVED By THE CrTy COUNCIL OF.

THE CrTy OF WTLLISTON, FLORTDA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The above recitals are all true and accurate and are a part of

this resolution.

Section 2. The Resolution approves the prescribed Canvassing Board

consisting of the Williston City Manager, the Williston Chief of Police, and

the Williston Representative from the Levy County Board of County

Commissioners, in addition to the designated alternate member Mr. Reggie

Williams

[Remainder of this page left blank intentionally]

86



Section 3. If any provision or portion of this resolution is declared by

any court of competent jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional, or

unenforceable, then all remaining provisions and portions of this resolution

shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 4. This resolution shall become effective immediately upon

passage and adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council on the 3rd day of January

2023

CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

By
Debra Jones, President

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
LEGALITY:

By: By:
Latricia Wright, City Clerk Scott Walker, City Attorney

Kiersten Ballou, Attorney

87



2023
Canvassing Board Schedule

Canvas Board Members

Name:
Canvassing Board Member #l County Commissioner Matt Brooks
Canvassing Board Member #2 City Manager Terry Bovaird
Canvassing Board Member #3 Police Chief Mike Rolls

Alternate Resinald Williams

Canvassing Board Schedule

Board W

Wednesday March 15, 2023 5:00 p.m.
* Location:42I S Court St Bronson, FL 32621

Logic and Accuracy Testing of the Voting Equipment

Wednesday March 29,2023 9:00 a.m.
* Location:421S Court St Bronson, FL 3262I

Canvass of Vote by Mail Ballots

Tuesday April 4,2023 7:00 p.m.

Unofficial Election Results (Election Nieht), Unofficial Results

Tuesday April 4,2023 7:00 p.m.

Canvass of Vote by Mail Ballot Cures, Provisional Ballotso File Official Results,
Audit and Recount if needed

Friday April 7 ,2023 10:00 a.m.

If the need arises for emergency meetings, this schedule will be updated immediately. All
meetings are open to the public and will be held at the Chiefland City Hall. Reasonable access

will be granted to authorized persons to review ballot materials pursuant to Section 101.572 (2),
Florida Statutes.

Bajo petici6n, este documento est6 disponible en espafiol.

88



Date: l-3-2023

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

RESOLUTION 2023-05:

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON,
FLORIDA, APPROVING THE LAND LEASE AGREEMENT FOR VACANT LAND
BETWEEN BRIAN HERNANDEZ AND THE CITY OF WILLISTON FOR PROPERTY
AT THE AIRPORT WITH A LEGAL DESCRIPTION AS OUTLINED IN THE
ATTACHED LAND LEASE AGREEMENT KNOWN AS HARDSTAND #15;
AUTHORIZING THE CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT TO EXEICUTE THE LAND
LEASE AGREEMENT; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

REQUESTED BY: BENTON STEGALL, AIRPORT MANAGER
PREPARED BY: KIERSTEN BALLOU, CITY ATTORNEY

FISCAL IMPACTS: This is an existing land lease that is less than one acre so it will bring in
less than the standard$6000/year, but the maintenance agreement contained within this new lease
saves the airport a lot of money on maintenance expenses. Over the past year Brain has been a
huge help in both maintenance and troubleshooting for a myriad of issues at the airport.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Staff recommends approval.

ATTACHMENTS:

CONTRACT XX RESOLUTION 2023-05 MAP

XX LEASE OTHER DOCUMENTS

COUNCIL ACTION:

APPROVED

DENIED

89



RESOLUTION NUMBER 2022.9I

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON,
FLORIDA, APPROVING THE LAND LEASE AGREEMENT FOR VACANT LAND
BETWEEN BRANDON HERNANDEZ AND THE CITY OF WILLISTON FOR
PROPERTY AT THE AIRPORT WITH A LEGAL DESCRIPTION AS OUTLINED IN
THE ATTACHED LAND LEASE AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING THE CITY
COUNCIL PRESIDENT TO EXECUTE THE LAND LEASE AGREEMENT; AND
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, Brandon Hernandez has requested a land lease for vacant land located
at the Williston Municipal Airport; and

WHEREAS, the relevant Codes of the City of Williston, Florida allow for leases of
land at the Williston Municipal Airport under terms that comply with such codes
and other relevant state and federal laws; and

WHEREAS, the City Manager and City Council President are appropriate parties to
execute documents related to such Land Lease Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it is in the City's best interest to
authorize the Council President to execute this Land Lease Agreement, an
unexecuted copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and any other such
documents as are required to enter into the Land Lease Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
oF WILLISTON, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The City Council hereby approves the Land Lease Agreement for Vacant
Land between Brandon Hernandez and the City of Williston, Florida and the
appropriate City Official is hereby authorized to execute the Land Lease Agreement
which is attached hereto as Exhibit "A' .

Section 2. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by an affirmative vote of a majority of a quorum present
in the City Council of the City of Williston, Florida this 

- 
day of November , 2022.

90



Attest, By the City Clerk of
the City of Williston, Florida:

Latricia Wright, City Clerk

BYTHE CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT OF
THE CITY OF WITLISTON, FLORIDA:

Debra fones, City Council President

Approved as to Form and Legality:

S. Scott Walker, City Attorney
Kiersten N. Ballou, City Attorney

91



LAIID LEASE AGREEMENT
VACANT LAND

LESSOR:
City of Williston, Florida
Post Office Drawer 160

Williston, Florida 32696

LESSEE:
Brian Hernandez
2610 NE 165d'CT
Williston FL32696

WHEREAS, the CITY OF WILLISTON, a Florida municipal corporation, ("the Lessor" or "the
City"), maintains an airport commonly referred to as Williston Municipal Airport; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City to promote and develop the said airport; and

WHEREAS, Brian Hemandez, ("the Lessee"), is desirous of leasing a certain parcel at the said airport
as is hereinafter described for the purpose of storage of aircraft.

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration ofthe sum of Ten Dollars and other good and valuable
considerations and the covenants, conditions and agreements as are hereinafter set forth, the Lessor and Lessee
agree as follows:

1. PREMISES; INSPECTIONS: AS IS: TheLessorleasesandLesseedoesrentandhirefromtheLessor,
the following described premises located in Williston,LeW County, Florida, (the "Premises"), to-wit:

Hardstand #l5,to be surveyed by lessee. (.671 Acres)

It is the responsibility of the Lessee, at the Lessee's sole expense, to satisff itself, prior to the execution
of this Agreement, as to the title and condition of the Premises including, without limitation, title to the
Premises, matters of record in the Official Records, of Levy County, permitted land uses, zoning codes,
building regulations, height limitations, setbacks, applicable building codes, permits, soil conditions, and
environmental conditions. Lessor makes no warranties or representations to the Lessee, and the Lessee agrees
the Lessor has made no warranty or representation respecting the condition of the Premises, or applicable
zoning laws and regulations, or applicability of the uses contemplated by the Lessee, or environmental
conditions, or any matters which a current survey would disclose, or the applicability of any covenants or
restrictions of public record, except as otherwise expressly provided herein. Lessee further acknowledges it
has had adequate opportunity to inspect the Premises hereunder prior to entering into this Agreement or has
made adequate provision herein. Accordingly, the taking of possession of the Premises by the Lessee shall be
conclusive evidence that the Premises were in good and satisfactory condition when possession was taken by
Lessee.

2. TERM: The initial term of this Lease shall be 2years commencing on 1 January 2023, and ending at
midnight, 31 December 2024. Should the Lessee hold over beyond the initial term or any renewal term

Lessor lritials:Lessee lnitials:
Vacant Land Lease

92



without further extension of the term in accordance with the renewal terms of this lease, then the Lessee
shall become a month-to-month tenant in accordance with law and upon the terms and conditions of this
lease.

3. RENT: The rent for the first year of the initial term of this lease shall be $4092.03. The rent shall be paid
monthly, in advance, in the amount of $341.00 per month, together with all applicable sales tax. The parties
agree to reduce the rental amount due each month net of the amount of verified maintenance and repair
services rendered to the Williston Municipal Airport on the following schedule: 15 hours or more rendered,
100% reduction; 15-10 hours, 50% reduction; 10-5 hours, 25o/oreduction; and 0 hours, 0% reduction. The
rent for the initial and any renewal and hold over terms shall be adjusted each year on the annual anniversary
date of the lease by multiplying the rent for the prior year by the percentage increase or decrease in the
composite Consumer Price Index for the most recent prior twelve months, as published by the U.S.
Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics. The rent shall be delivered by U.S. mail, addressed to
City of Williston, Post Office Drawer 160, Williston, Florida 32696, or hand delivered to City Hall, 50
N.W. Main Street, Williston, Florida during regular business hours, and shall be considered paid upon
receipt by Lessor. All payments required to be made by Lessee to Lessor pursuant to the Lease shall be
deemed additional rent.

4. NOTICES: All notices required by law and by this Lease to be given by one party to the other shall be in
writing, and the same may be served by certified mail, return receipt requested, to Lessor, City ofWilliston
at P.O. Drawer 160, Williston, Florida 32696-0l60and to Lessee, 2610 NE 165th CT, Williston FL,32696,
or to such other address as Lessor or Lessee may by writing to the other so designate. Notice to Lessee
may also be served by personal delivery.

5 WARRANTIES OF' TITLE AND OUIET POSSESSION: The Lessor covenants that Lessor is seized
of the demised premises and owner in fee simple thereof with the full right to make this Lease, subject to
all matters of record, and covenants that the Lessee upon making payments of the rents and the keeping of
the other covenants herein contained therefor shall have quiet and peaceful possession of the demised
premises during the term hereof.

6. USES ALLOWED AND PROHIBITED: The Lessee shall use the Premises only for the following
purpose: Storage of aircraft. The Lessee shall not use or permit the Prernises or any part of the Premises to
be used for any unauthorized or unlawful purpose, or for any purpose other than as set forth above.

7. COMPLIAI{CE WITH LAWS: During the term of this Lease, the Lessee shall comply with all
ordinances, statutes, laws, rules and regulations of the City of Williston, State of Florida and the U.S.
Govemment, breach of which shall be cause for cancellation of this Lease. The Lessee shall abide by all
applicable regulations as set forth in Chapter 12 of the City Code of Ordinances, together with any future
amendments to said ordinance. The Lessee shall at all times maintain all required licensing and permits.
The violation of any provision of the said ordinance, as evidenced by a final determination by the City's
code enforcement board or a court of law, shall be conclusively deemed a default under this lease and shall
not be subject to the notice requirements or cure provisions set forth in the default section ofthis lease. The

Lessee Initials:
Vacant Land Lease

Lessor Initials:

93



Lessee further covenants that the said prernises shall not be used for any pu{pose which might cause
forfeiture of the Lessor's title to the said premises.

8. SIGNS: Except with the prior written approval of Lessor, which approval shall not be unreasonably
withheld, Lessee shall not erect, maintain or display any signs or any advertising at or on the exterior of the
demised premises or within the dernised premises that are visible from outside such premises.

9. LESSORS RIGHT OF ENTRY: The Lessee at all times shall permit Lessor or its agents to enter into
and upon the premises and buildings for the purpose of inspecting the same.

10. PREMISES IMPROVEMENTS UPON TERMINATION: Lessee may, at its own expense and only
upon written approval by Lessor, make alterations and improvements to the Premises as necessary for the
conduct of its business. Lessee specifically agrees that any and all improvements, except signs, equipment
and trade fixtures installed, located upon the said premises shall become the property of the Lessor upon
termination of this lease.

11. RIGHT OF WAY USE: Subject to reasonable regulations imposed regarding airport access, Lessor
grants to Lessee, its employees, agents, suppliers, customers and invitees, a non-exclusive right during the
term of this Lease, the right of way for ingress and egress, over, across and upon the designated right of
way to U.S. Highway 4l lState Road 121.

12. OTHER RIGHTS RESERVED BY LESSOR: In addition to all .iehts reserved by Lessor in and to the
demised premises, Lessor expressly reserves the right to further develop or improve any areaof the airport
and its industrial parks, as the Lessor deems proper, regardless of the desires and views of the Lessee and
without interference or hindrance; maintain and keep in repair, but without obligation to Lessee, the airport
and industrial parks of the airport and all publicly owned facilities of the airport; and take any action it
considers necessary to protect the aerial approaches of the airport against obstructions, together with the
right to prevent the Lessee from conducting any practice that may be detrimental to the airport and industrial
parks which in the opinion of the Lessor would limit the usefulness of the airport and its industrial parks or
constitute a hazard to such.

13. UTILITIES: The Lessee agrees to pay all charges for any and all utilities in or about the premises whether
the same is telephone, electricity, water, sewer, gas or the like. Lessee further agrees that if; at any time
during the term of this lease agreement, the City commences providing City utility services to the airport
property, the Lessee will purchase such utility services from the City. Lessee further agrees to take delivery
of all City of Williston utilities when each utility service is made available. At the option of Lessee and
upon Lessor's concurrence, Lessee may choose to have the Lessor provide all City utility services to the
leased premises as a part of the rent paSrment pursuant to paragraph 3 hereof. If Lessee chooses this option,
Lessor shall adjust each month's rent to Lessee so as to reimburse Lessor for its cost of providing such City
utility services, said cost to be determined as established by the City's appropriate utility tariffs based on
Lessee's monthly metered consumption.

Lessee Initials:
Vacant Land Lease

Lessor Initials:

94



14. REPAIRS AND MAINTENAIICE: Lessee agrees to make, at its own cost and expense, any or all repairs
or work necessary to maintain the Premises and Buildings located on the Premises.

15. INSURANCE:
(a) Lessee agrees that any insurance coverage for property owned by Lessee is solely the responsibility of

Lessee.
(b) The Lessee shall carry Commercial General Liability insurance with a combined single limit in the

minimum amount of $1,000,000 in order to secure the obligations of Lessee under the following
paragraph and cause the Lessor to be added as party insured under such policy, and to furnish the Lessor
with a certificate of such insurance, together with a receipt showing the prernium has been paid.

(c) At any time after occupancy of the premises by the Lessee, the Lessee agrees to allow an inspection by
the Landlord and/or the Florida Department of Environmental Protection, (the "DEP"), to determine
the extent of storage or use ofhazardous materials and to determine an appropriate amount of pollution
insurance. The Lessee agrees to obtain pollution insurance, with the Lessor listed as an additional
insured pafiy, in an amount as reasonably required by the Lessor within 15 days of written notice.

(d) All policies of insurance shall contain the clause that the same shall not be canceled except and until
fifteen (15) days after written notice to the Lessor.

16. INDEMNIFICATION OF LESSOR: Lessee agrees to protect, defend, reimburse, indannify and hold
the Lessor, its agents, employees and officers and each ofthem forever, free and harmless at all times from
and against any and all claims, liability, expenses, losses, costs, fines and damages (including reasonable
attorney fees) and causes of action of every kind and character (this is to the extent allowed by law, and
except to the extent caused by the Lessor's gross negligence or intentional misconduct) by reason of any
damage to property, or the environment (including, without limitation, any contamination of Airport
property, such as the soil or storm water, or by fuel, gas, chemicals or any Hazardous Substances), or bodily
injury (including death) incurred or sustained by any party hereto, any agent or employee of any party
hereto, or any other person whomsoever, or any govemmental agency, arising out of or incident to or in
connection with the Lessee's performance under this Agreement, the Lessee's use or occupancy of the
Premises, the Lessee's acts, omissions or operations hereunder or the performance, non-perfofinance or
purported performance ofthis Agreement or any breach of the terms of this Agreement. Lessee recognizes
the broad nature of this indemnification and hold harmless clause, and voluntarily makes this covenant and
expressly acknowledges the receipt of such good and valuable consideration provided by the Lessor in
support of this indemnification in accordance with the laws ofthe State of Florida. This clause shall survive
the termination of this Agreement. Compliance with the insurance requirements herein shall not relieve
the Lessee of its liability or obligation to indemniff the Lessor as set forth in this Article. Notwithstanding
anything to the contrary in the foregoing or within this Agreement, the Lessor shall not relinquish or waive
any of its rights as a sovereign local government and the Lessor reserves all rights and defenses under
applicable sovereign immunity law.

17. SUBORDINATION: This lease and all rights of Lessee under it are and shall be subject to and subordinate
to the rights of any mortgage holder now or hereafter having a security interest in the leased premises or
any other encumbrances Lessor desires to place on the property.

Lessee Initials:
Vacant Land Lease

Lessor Initials:

95



18. TAXES: All taxes, assessments and charges on lands or improvements and obligations upon the demised
premises shall be promptly paid by the Lessee when due. The Lessee shall have the right from time to time
to contest or protest or review by legal proceedings any such other manner as may be provided by law such
taxes or assessments imposed by govemmental authorities and to institute such proceedings in the name of
itself as well as the Lessor as it may deem necessary; provided, however, that any expense incurred by
reasons thereofshall be borne by the Lessee and such proceedings shall be conducted free ofany expense
to the Lessor. Any expense incurred by reasons thereof shall be bome by the Lessee and such proceedings
shall be conducted free ofany expense to the Lessor.

19. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING: The Lessee shall not assign nor sublet its right, title or interest in
or to all or any portion of the Premises or the leasehold improvements without first obtaining the prior
written consent of the Lessor, provided, however, that such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld;
and provided further that the Lessee shall remain directly and primarily liable for the performance of the
terms and conditions of this Lease; provided further that no such assignment or subletting shall be made to
any person for any purpose other than that set forth in this Lease.

20. DEFAULT: REMEDIES: The occurrence of anyone or more of the following events shall constitute a
default on the part of the Lessee: (1) the Lessee fails to pay when due any rental or any other sum of money
payable hereunder on the date due; (z)the conduct of any business or performance of any acts at the Airport
not specifically authorizedinthe Agreement; (3) the Lessee abandons, deserts or vacates the Premises; (4)
the Lessee breaches or fails to comply with any other term, provision, covenant or condition of this
Agreement; or (5) the Lessee breaches or fails to comply with any other term, provision, covenant or
condition of any other agreement, contract or obligation with or to Lessor Any or all of the foregoing shall
hereinafter be referred to as "Events of Default".

Upon the occurrence of any of the above Events of Default, the Lessor shall give written notice of such
default to Lessee at the address set forth under section 4, above. The effective date of notice shall be the
date that the notice is placed in the U.S. Mail or posted on the premises by Lessor. If the default is for
failure to pay rent or any other sum of money when due, then the Lessee shall have three (3) days after the
effective date of notice to cure. If the default is for any other Event of Default then the Lessee shall have
fifteen (15) days after the effective date of notice to cure, except that Lessee shall not be allowed an
opportunity to cure a re-occurring Event of Default of the same type which has been previously notice by
the Lessor and cured by the Lessee.

If the Lessee fails to cure the default within the time allowed, Lessor shall thereafter have the option to
exercise any remedy or right permitted by law or in equity. The Lessee shall fully reimburse and
compensate the Lessor upon demand for any costs and expenses incurred in connection with any cure,
correction or repair undertaken by Lessor, which sums shall be deemed to be additional rent hereunder. In
the event the Lessor relets the Premises, the Lessee shall pay the Lessor any deficiency between the amount
received, if any, form such reletting, and the amount of rent and other fees payable by the Lessee hereunder,
including Lessor's expenses in connection with re-entry, taking possession, repairing and reletting.

Lessee Initials:
Vacant Land Lease

Lessor Initials:

96



Notwithstanding the occurrence of any Event of Default, the Lessee shall remain liable to the Lessor for
all payments payable hereunder and for all preceding breaches of any covenant of this Agreement.
Furthermore, unless the Lessor elects to cancel this Agreement, the Lessee shall rernain liable for and
promptly pay any and all payments accruing hereunder until such time as this Agreement has been duly
canceled. No retaking of possession of the Premises y the Lessor shall be construed as an election on its
part to terminate this Agreement, unless a written notice of such intention be given to the Lessee. No
pursuit of any remedy by Lessor shall constitute a forfeiture or waiver of any payments or other moneys
due to the Lessor hereunder, or of any damages accruing to the Lessor by reason of the violations of any of
the terms, provisions, and covenants herein contained. Lessor's acceptance of payments or other moneys
following any event of default hereunder shall not be construed as the Lessor's waiver of such event of
default unless the event of default is the delinquency in the payment of the amount accepted. No
forbearance by the Lessor of action upon any violation or breach of any of the terms, provision and
covenants herein contained shall be deemed or construed to constitute a waiver of the tems, provisions
and covenants herein contained. Forbearance by the Lessor to enforce one or more of the remedies herein
provided upon an Event of Default shall not be deemed or construed to constitute a waiver of any such
remedy.

21. CONDEMNATION: In the event the entire premises hereby leased are taken in condemnation
proceedings, the Lessee may cancel the Lease; should a substantial part of said premises be so taken, the
Lessee may cancel this Lease or at its option retain the remainder of the premises, which shall be restored
to tenantable condition, then the rental shall be apportioned; the rental thereafter shall be reduced in
proportion to the amount of loss as a result of condemnation proceedings.

22. CLEANLINESS: Lessee shall at all times keep the leased premises in a reasonably neat and orderly
condition and clean and free from rubbish and dirt. Lessee will not store any unsightly materials, junk,
garbage or debris of any kind upon the said premises and shall commit or suffer no waste of the said
demised premises or maintain any nuisance thereon.

23. DESTRUCTION OF PREMISES: In the event of damage to or destruction of any improvements which
are to be erected on said real property pursuant to the terms of this Lease, during the term of said Lease,

from any cause covered by the insurance required hereunder, Lessee shall forthwith repair or rehabilitate
the same. Such damage or destruction shall in no wise annul or void this Lease.

24. LATE PAYMENT PENALTY: All lease payments that are not paid by the due date are considered
delinquent and shall be assessed a ten (10) percent penalty which shall be considered apartof the rent and
shall be due and payable with the rent payment.

25. OPTION TO EXTEND TERM OF LEASE: Conditioned upon Lessee's strict compliance with all terms
and provisions ofthis lease during the entire term ofthe lease, Lessor does hereby grant to Lessee an option
to automatically extend the lease term for 3 additional 1 year terms, on like terms and conditions, with the
rent adjusted according to paragraph 3, and provided that the Lessee, at the least 90 days prior to the end
of the then current term, gives written notice of its intent to exercise its option. Lessee's right to renew shall
be conditioned upon Lessee's strict compliance with all terms and provisions of this lease during the entire

Lessor Initials:
Vacant Land Lease

97



term ofthe lease, and any non-compliance with any term or provision of this lease by Lessee, regardless of
whether notice was given by Lessor or whether the non-compliance was cured, shall constitute sufficient
cause by Lessor to choose to refuse renewal of this lease.]

26. BANKRUPTCY: The Lessee agrees that if Lessee is adjudged bankrupt or insolvent under the laws of
the United States or any state, or makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, or if a receiver of
the properly of the Lessee is appointed and shall not be discharged within ninety days after such
appointment, then the Lessor may, at its option, declare the termination of this Lease agreement shall
forthwith be entitled to immediate possession of the Premises.

27. END OF TENANCY: The Lessee will yield up the Premises and all additions thereto (except signs,
equipment and trade fixtures installed) in as good and tenantable condition as the same are at the beginning
of Lessee's occupancy, reasonable wear and tear, damage by fire and other casualties and condemnation
appropriate by eminent domain excepted.

28. PART OF MUNICIPAL AIRPORT: It is understood and agreed by and between the parties hereto that
the said property is a portion of the Williston Municipal Airport and, therefore, notwithstanding anything
contained that may be or appear to the contrary, it is expressly understood and agreed that the rights granted
under this agreement are non-exclusive and the Lessor herein reseryes the right to grant similar privileges
to another Lessee or other Lessees on other parts of the airport. This Lease and all provisions hereof are
subject and subordinate to the terms and conditions of the instruments and documents under which the
Lessor acquired the subject property from the United States of America and shall be given only such effect
as will not conflict or be inconsistent with the terms and conditions contained in the deed of said lands to
the Lessor, and any existing or subsequent amendments thereto, and are subject to any ordinances, rules or
regulations which have been, or may hereafter be adopted by the United States of America, the State of
Florida, or the Lessor pertaining to the Williston Airport. These terms and conditions include, but are not
limited to, requirements that the Lessor obtain Fair market value rent for the leased premises for the duration
of the lease term.

29. NONDISCRIMINATION: The Lessee for itself its personal representatives, successors in interest, and
assigns, as a part ofthe consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and agree that (1) no person on the
grounds of race, color, or national origin shall be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or
be otherwise subjected to discrimination in the use of said facilities, (2) andthat in the construction of any
improvements on, over or under such land and the fumishing of services thereon, no person on the grounds
of race, color, or national original shall be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or be
otherwise subjected to discrimination, (3) that the Lessee shall use the premises in compliance with all
other requirements imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, department of
transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 2I, Nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted
programs of the Departrnent of Transportation-Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and
as said Regulations may be amended. In the event of breach of any of the above nondiscrimination
covenants, Lessor shall have the right to terminate the Lease and to re-enter and as if said Lease had never
been made or issued. The provision shall not be effective until the procedures of Title 49,Codeof Federal
Regulations Part 2l are followed and completed including exercise or expiration of appeal rights.

Lessor Initials:Lessee Initials: Lessor lnitials
Vacant Land Lease

98



30. AIRPORT PROTECTION: Lessor reserves unto itself, its successors and assigns, for the use and benefit
of the public, a right of flight for the passage of aircraft in the airspace above the surface of the real property
hereinafter described, together with the right to cause in said airspace such noise as may be inherent in the
operation of aircraft, now known or hereafter used, for navigation of or flight in the said airspace, and for
use of said airspace for landing on, taking off from or operating on the airport. The Lessee expressly agrees

to restrict the height of structures, objects of natural growth and other obstructions on the hereinafter
described real property to such a height so as to comply with Federal Aviation Regulations, Part 77. The
Lessee expressly agrees to prevent any use of the Premises which would interfere with or adversely affect
the operation or maintenance of the airport, or otherwise constitute an airport hazard.

31. SUBROGATION CLAUSE: The Lessor and Lessee shall waive all rights, each against the other, and
against those holding under or through the Lessor or Lessee, for damages caused by fire or other perils to
the extent covered by insurance where such damages are sustained in connection with the occupancy ofthe
Premises.

32. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS: The Lessee shall not cause or permit any Hazardous Materials to be
brought upon, stored, used, generated, released into the environment or disposed of on, in, under or about
the airport, without the prior written consent of the Lessor. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Lessee
hereby agrees to indemnifu, defend, protect and hold harmless Lessor and Lessor's Agents, and their
respective successors and assigns, from any and all claims, judgments, damages, penalties, fines, costs,
liabilities and losses (including, without limitation, loss or reskiction on use of rentable space or of any
amenity of the Premises and sums paid in settlernent of claims, attomeys'fees, consultant fees and expert
fees) which arise during or after the lease term directly or indirectly from the presence of Hazardous
Materials on, in or about the Premises which is caused or permitted by Lessee or Lessee's Agents. This
indemnification includes, without limitation, any and all costs incurred in connection with any investigation
of site conditions or any clean up remedial, removal or restoration work required by any federal, state or
local governmental agency or political subdivision because of the presence of such Hazardous Material in,
on or about the Premises or the soil or ground water on or under any building or any portion thereof. The
Lessee shall promptly notiff the Lessor of any releas e of Hazardous Materials at the airport, whether caused
by the Lessee or any other persons or entities.

The Lessee shall promptly notifu the Lessor of and shall promptly provide true, correct, complete and
legible copies of, all of the following environmental items relating to any property atthe airport which may
be filed or prepared by or on behalfof, or delivered to or served upon, the Lessee: reports filed pursuant to
any self-reporting requirernents, reports filed pursuant to any applicable laws, all permit applications,
permits, monitoring reports, workplace exposure and community exposure warnings or notices and all
other reports, disclosures, plans, manifests or documents (even those which may be characterized as

confidential) relating to water discharges, air pollution, water generation or disposal, underground storage
tanks or Hazardous Materials.

The Lessor shall have the right, but not the obligation, to inspect, investigate, sample and/or monitor any
property at the airport, including any soil, water, groundwater or other sampling, and any other testing,

Lessor Initials:Lessee Initials:
Vacant Land Lease

99



digging, drilling or analyses, at any time, to determine whether the Lessee is complying with the
requirements ofthis section, or of any other law, and in connection therewith, the Lessee shall provide the
Lessor with full access to all relevant facilities, records and personnel.

As used in this section, the term "Hazardous Materials" shall mean and include any hazardous or toxic
materials, substances orwastes including (A) anymaterials, substances orwastes which are toxic, ignitable,
corrosive or reactive and which are regulated by any local governmental authority, any agency of the State
of Florida or any agency of the United States Government, (B) asbestos, (C) petroleum and petroleum-
based products, (D) urea formaldehyde foam insulation, (E) polychlorinated byphenyls ("PCBs"), and (F)
freon and other chlorofluorocarbons.

Prior to the execution of this Lease, Lessee shall complete, execute and deliver to Lessor a Hazardous
Materials Questionnaire in the form required by Lessor. The completed Hazardous Materials Questionnaire
shall be deemed incorporated into this Lease for all pulposes, and Lessor shall be entitled to rely fully on
the information contained therein. On each anniversary of the commencement date of this lease, Lessee
shall complete, execute and deliver to Lessor an updated Hazardous Materials Questionnaire, in form as

may be modified by Lessor from time to time.

If the Lessee or any environmental inspection discloses the existence of Hazardous Materials in, on, under
or about the Premises, the Lessee shall, at Lessor's request, immediately prepare and submit to Lessor
within thirty (30) days after such request a comprehensive plan, subject to Lessor's approval, specifuing
the actions to be taken by Lessee to retum the Premises to the condition existing prior to the introduction
of such Hazardous Materials. Upon Lessor's approval of such clean-up plan, Lessee shall, at Lessee's sole
cost and expense, without limitation on any rights and remedies of Lessor under this lease, or applicable
law, immediately implement such plan and proceed to clean up the Hazardous Materials in accordance
with all applicable laws and as required by such plan and this lease.

The provisions of this section, including, without limitation, the indemnification provisions set forth herein,
shall survive any termination of this lease.

33. STORMWATER POLLUTION: Lessee agrees to prepare and adhere to a Stormwater Pollution
Prevention Plan that meets the requirements of federal and state law and that is approved by Lessor. Lessee
agrees to provide a copy ofsaid plan to Lessor.

34. LITIGATION VENUE: The Lessor and Lessee waive the privilege of venue and agree that all litigation
between them in the State Courts shall take place in Levy County, Florida, and that all litigation between
them in the Federal Courts shall take place in the United States District Court for the Northern District of
Florida.

35. BENEFIT: This lease and all of the covenants and provisions thereof shall inure to the benefit of and be
binding upon the legal representative successors and assigns of the parties hereto.

Lessee Initials:
Vacant Land Lease

Lessor Initials:

100



36. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: APPLICATIONS INCORPORATED: This lease represents the complete
understanding between the Parties, and any prior agreements or representations, whether written or verbal,
are hereby superseded. No agreement to modiff this lease will be effective unless in writing and executed
by the party against whom the modification is sought to be enforced. Any such modification on the part of
the Lessor shall not be effective unless considered at a public meeting and approved by majority vote of
the Williston Cify Council. All information provided by Lessee in the lease application process is
incorporated herein by reference. Lessee warrants that all information provided to

37. SECURITY DEPOSIT: Lessor acknowledges receipt of $_ as a security deposit for faithful
performance by Lessee of Lessee's obligations under this lease. If Lessee faithfully performs the lease
obligations and timely surrenders possession ofthe premises, Lessor will repay the security deposit, without
interest, within 30 days after expiration of the term. If Lessee vacates or is removed from the premises
because of Lessee's default before expiration of the term, Lessor may apply the security deposit to all
damages sustained. Any deposit balance that remains on the expiration date of the term will be paid to
Lessee within 30 days.

38. MEMORANDUM OF LAND LEASE AGREEMENT: The parties hereto agree to execute a
memorandum of this Land Lease Agreement to be recorded with the Clerk of Courts of Levy County,
Florida on or before sixty (60) days after the date hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Lease to be executed in duplicate this
day of 2023

LESSEE: LESSOR:

CITY OF WILLISTON
Brian Hernandez

BY:
PRESIDENT, CITY COUNCIL

ATTEST:
CITY CLERK

Lessee Initials:
Vacant Land Lease

Lessor hitials

101



GUARANTY:

The undersigned, does hereby absolutd and unconditionally
guaranteetheobligationsofunderthisagreement,andwaivesal1rightsof
notice, demand and presentment hereunder.

GUARANTOR:

By:
Individually

l*name individual*l

[ *individual' s address*]

Lessee Initials:
Vacant Land Lease

Lessor Initials:

102



a

':;

l:,,i 9", t

ll*r

-

I

a

-!*

r

a

rj,

103



Prepared by and retum to:
Folds Walker, LLC
Kiersten N. Ballou, Attomey atLaw
527 E. University Avenue
Gainesville,FL3260l

MEMORANDUM OF LAND LEASE

THIS MEMORANDUM OF LEASE entered into this . day of 2023,by
and between the City of Williston, Florid4 (the "Lessor"), and Brian Hernandez (the "Lessee"),

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Lessor and the Lessee have entered into a Land Lease Agreement dated
2023, (the "Lease"), pursuant to which the Lessor leases to the Lessee that certain real

property herein described; and

WHEREAS, the Lessor and the Lessee desire to record certain basic terms of the Lease in the public records
of Levy County, Florida;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and other good and valuable consideration, the
receipt and sufficiency of which are acknowledged, the parties do hereby confirm and set forth the following
terms of the Lease, it being acknowledged by the parties that the Lease contains additional terms not set forth
below and that the enforceability of such additional terms shall not be affected by their omission from this
Memorandurn of Land Lease:

1. The Lessor has leased to the Lessee pursuant to the Lease the real property described with all
rights, privileges and easements appurtenant thereto (collectively, the "Premises"), to wit:

Hardstand #ll,to be strveyed by lessee. (.671Acres)

2. Unless sooner terminated as provided in the Lease, the initial term of the Lease is for one year,
begrnning on January 1,2023 and ending at midnight on December 31 2024. The Lessee has an option
pursuant to the Lease to renew the Lease for up to 3 additional l-year terms.

3. The Lease allows the Lessee to construct or place leasehold improvements upon the premises,
however the Lessor's underlying fee interest shall not be subject to any construction lien related to such
improvernents.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Memorandum of Land Lease this _ day of
2023

LESSEE LESSOR:
CITY OF WILLISTON

BY BY
PRESIDENT, CITY COTINCIL

ATTEST:

CITY CLERK

fRemainder of Page Intentionally Lefi Blank - Notarization on following pageJ

104



STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF LEVY

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _ day of
the President of the City Council of the City of Williston, and

the City Clerk, on behalf ofthe City. They are personally known to me and
did not take an oath.

NotaryPublic

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF LEVY

202 ,by

202_______- by

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _ day of
who is personally known to me and did not take an oath.

Notary Public

2

105



Date: l-3-2023

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

RESOLUTION 2023.06:

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON,
FLORIDA, APPROVING THE LAND LEASE AGREEMENT FOR VACANT LAND
BETWEEN AMP2, LLC AND THE CITY OF WILLISTON FOR PROPERTY AT THE
AIRPORT WITH A LEGAL DESCRIPTION AS OUTLINED IN THE ATTACHED
LAND LEASE AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING THE CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT TO
EXECUTE THE LAND LEASE AGREEMENT; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE
DATE.

REQUESTED BY: BENTON STEGALL, AIRPORT MANAGER
PREPARED BY: KIERSTEN BALLOU, CITY ATTORNEY

FISCAL IMPACTS: The addition of another land lease brings more revenue in to the airport,
with approximately $6000/annually per acre. This land lease is for 2 acres and the Tenant has
expressed interest in building a hanger on each acre. This will result in addition revenue in fuel
sales and an increase in the airports Based Aircraft Inventory Report.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Staff recommends approval

ATTACHMENTS:

CONTRACT XX RESOLUTION 2023.06 MAP

XX LEASE OTHER DOCUMENTS

COUNCIL ACTION:

APPROVED

DENIED

106



RESOLUTION NUMBER 2023.06

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON,
FLORIDA, APPROVING THE LAND LEASE AGREEMENT FOR VACANT LAND
BETWEEN AMP2, LLC AND THE CITY OF WILLISTON FOR pROpERTy AT THE
AIRPORT WITH A LEGAL DESCRIPTION AS OUTLINED IN THE ATTACHED
LAND LEASE AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING THE CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT TO
EXECUTE THE LAND LEASE AGREEMENT; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE
DATE.

WHEREAS, AMP2, LLC has requested a land lease for vacant land located at the
Williston Municipal Airport in order to construct two new hangars; and

WHEREAS, the relevant Codes of the City of Williston, Florida allow for leases of
land at the Williston Municipal Airport under terms that comply with such codes
and other relevant state and federal laws; and

WHEREAS, the City Council President is the appropriate individual to execute
documents related to such Land Lease Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it is in the City's best interest to
authorize the City Manager to execute this Land Lease Agreement, an unexecuted
copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and any other such documents as are
required to enter into the Land Lease Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED By THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
oF WILLISTON, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The City Council hereby approves the Land Lease Agreement for Vacant
Land between AMP2, LLC and the City of Williston, Florida and the appropriate City
Official is hereby authorized to execute the Land Lease Agreement which is attached
hereto as Exhibit "A".

Section 2. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by att affirmative vote of a majority of a quorum present
in the City Council of the City of Williston, Florida this 3ra day of January, 2023.

107



Attest, By the City Clerk of
the City of Williston, Florida:

Latricia Wrighg City Clerk

BY THE CITY COUNCIT PRESIDENT OF
THE CITY OF WITLISTON, FLORIDA:

Debra Jones, City Council President

Approved as to Form and Legality:

S. Scott Walker, City Attorney
Kiersten N. Ballou, City Attorney

108



LAND LEASE AGREEMENT
VACANT LAND

LESSOR:
City of Williston, Florida
Post Office Drawer 160

Williston, Florida 32696

LESSEE:
AmpZLLC
2569 Holiday Dr
Kissimmee,FL 32744

WHEREAS' the CITY OF WILLISTON, a Florida municipal corporation, ("the Lessor"), maintains
an airport commonly referred to as Williston Municipal Airport; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the said City to promote and develop the said airport; and

WHEREAS, AMP2, LLC ("the Lessee"), is desirous of leasing a certain parcel at the said airport as is
hereinafter described for the purpose of building two hangers and additional aircraft storage;

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration ofthe sum ofTen Dollars and other good and valuable
considerations and the covenants, conditions and agreunents as are hereinafter set forth, the Lessor and Lessee
agree as follows:

l PREMISES: INSPECTIONS: AS IS: TheLessorleasesandLesseedoesrentandhirefromtheLessor,
the following described premises located in Williston, Levy County, Florida, (the "Premises"), to-wit:

This Lease contains Two separate parcels described as

Description: (by surveyor) - New Lease "1A"A portion of land lying within the Williston Municipal Airport,
Williston, Florida; Lying in the Northeast l/4 of Section 14, Township 13 South, Range 18 East, Levy County,
Florida; being more particularly described as follows: Commence at the Northeast corner of said Section 14

and run thence North 88"09'09"West, along the North line of said Section 14, a distance of 585.07feet; thence
South 01"50'51"West, a distance of 62.20feet; thence North 88"10'04"West, a distance of 420.00feet to the
Point-of-Beginning of the herein described lease; thence continue North 88o10'04"West, a distance of 210.00
feet; thence South 01o49'56"West,a distance of 210.00 feet; thence South 88o10'04"East,a distance of 210.00
feet; thence North 01 o49'56"East,a distance of 210.00 feet to the said Point-of-Beginning. Containin g I .012
Acres, more or less.

AND

Description: (by surveyor) - New Lease "1B"A portion of land lying within the Williston Municipal Airport,
Williston, Florida; Lying in the Northeast 1/4 of Section14, Township 13 South, Range 18 East, Levy
County, Florida; being more particularly described as follows: Commence at the Northeast corner of said

Lessor lritials:Lessee Initials:
Vacant Land Lease

109



Section 14 and run thence North 88"09'09"West, along the North line of said Section 14, a distance of
585.07feet; thence South 01o50'51"'West, a distance of 62.20feet; thence North 88o10'04"West, a distance of
210.00feet to the Point-of-Beginning of the herein described lease; thence continue North 88"10'04"West, a

distance of 210.00 feet; thence South 01"49'56"West,a distance of 210.00 feet; thence South 88"10'04"East,a
distance of 210.00 feet; thence North 01"49'56"East,a distance of 210.00 feet to the said Point-of-Beginning.
Containing 1.012 Acres, more or less

2. TERM: The initial term of this Lease shall be 30 years commencing on February 1,2023, and ending at
midnight, February 1,2053. Should the Lessee hold over beyond the initial term or any renewal term
without further extension of the term in accordance with the renewal terms of this lease, then the Lessee
shall become a month-to-month tenant in accordance with law and upon the terms and conditions of this
lease.

3. RENT: Therentforthefirstyearoftheinitialtermofthisleaseshallbe$12,343.16.Therentshallbepaid
monthly, in advance, in the amount of $1028.60 per month, together with all applicable sales tax. The rent
for the initial and any renewal and hold over terms shall be adjusted each year on the annual anniversary
date of the lease by multiplying the rent for the prior year by the percentage increase or decrease in the
composite Consumer Price Index for the most recent prior twelve months, as published by the U.S.
Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics. The rent shall be delivered by U.S. mail, addressed to
City of Williston, Post Office Drawer 160, Williston, Florida 32696, or hand delivered to City Hall, 50
N.W. Main Street, Williston, Florida during regular business hours, and shall be considered paid upon
receipt by Lessor. All payments required to be made by Lessee to Lessor pursuant to the Lease shall be
deemed additional rent.

4. NOTICES: All notices required by law and by this Lease to be given by one party to the other shall be in
writing, and the same may be served by certified mail, retum receipt requested, to Lessor, City of Williston
at P.O. Drawer 160, Williston, Florida 32696-0160 and to Lessee, Toni Englert at 23029 Birdsong LN
Christmas, FL 32109 or to such other address as Lessor or Lessee may by writing to the other so designate.
Notice to Lessee may also be served by personal delivery.

5. WARRANTIES OF TITLE AND OUIET POSSESSION: The Lessor covenants that Lessor is seized
of the dernised premises and owner in fee simple thereof with the full right to make this Lease, subject to
all matters of record, and covenants that the Lessee upon making payments of the rents and the keeping of
the other covenants herein contained therefor shall have quiet and peaceful possession of the demised
premises during the term hereof.

6. USES ALLOWED AND PROHIBITED: The Lessee shall use the Premises only for the following
purpose: Storage of aircraft. The Lessee shall not use or permit the Prernises or any part of the Premises to
be used for any unauthorized or unlawful purpose, or for any purpose other than as set forth above.

7. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS: During the term of this Lease, the Lessee shall comply with all
ordinances, statutes, laws, rules and regulations of the City of Williston, State of Florida and the U.S.

Lessor hritials:Lessee Initials:
Vacant Land Lease

110



Govemment, breach of which shall be cause for cancellation of this Lease. The Lessee shall abide by all
applicable regulations as set forth in Chapter 12 of the City Code of Ordinances, together with any future
amendments to said ordinance. The Lessee shall at all times maintain all required licensing and permits.
The violation of any provision of the said ordinance, as evidenced by a final determination by the City's
code enforcement board or a court of law, shall be conclusively deemed a default under this lease and shall
not be subject to the notice requirements or cure provisions set forth in the default section of this lease. The
Lessee further covenants that the said premises shall not be used for any pu{pose which might cause
forfeiture of the Lessor's title to the said premises.

8. SIGNS: Except with the prior written approval of Lessor, which approval shall not be unreasonably
withheld, Lessee shall not erect, maintain or display any signs or any advertising at or on the exterior of the
demised premises or within the demised premises that are visible from outside such premises.

9. LESSORS RIGHT OF ENTRY The Lessee at all times shall permit Lessor or its agents to enter into
and upon the premises and buildings for the purpose of inspecting the same.

10. PREMISES IMPROVEMENTS UPON TERMINATION: Lessee may, at its own expense and only
upon written approval by Lessor, make alterations and improvements to the Premises as necessary for the
conduct of its business. Lessee specifically agrees that any and all improvements, except signs, equipment
and trade fixtures installed, located upon the said premises shall become the property of the Lessor upon
termination of this lease.

11. RIGHT OF WAY USE: Subject to reasonable regulations imposed regarding airport access, Lessor
grants to Lessee, its employees, agents, suppliers, customers and invitees, a non-exclusive right during the
term of this Lease, the right of way for ingress and egress, over, across and upon the designated right of
way to U.S. Highway 4l lState Road 121.

12. OTHER RIGHTS RESERVED BY LESSOR: In addition to all .ights reserved by Lessor in and to the
demised premises, Lessor expressly reseryes the right to further develop or improve any arcaof the airport
and its industrial parks, as the Lessor deems proper, regardless of the desires and views of the Lessee and
without interference or hindrance; maintain and keep in repair, but without obligation to Lessee, the airport
and industrial parks of the airport and all publicly owned facilities of the airport; and take any action it
considers necessary to protect the aerial approaches of the airport against obstructions, together with the
right to prevent the Lessee from conducting any practice that may be detrimental to the airport and industrial
parks which in the opinion of the Lessor would limit the usefulness of the airport and its industrial parks or
constitute a hazard to such.

13. UTILITIES: The Lessee agrees to pay all charges for any and all utilities in or about the premises whether
the same is telephone, electricity, water, sewer, gas or the like. Lessee further agrees that if, at any time
during the term of this lease agreement, the City commences providing City utility services to the airport
property, the Lessee will purchase such utility services from the City. Lessee further agrees to take delivery
of all City of Williston utilities when each utility service is made available. At the option of Lessee and
upon Lessor's concurrence, Lessee may choose to have the Lessor provide all City utility services to the

Lessor Initials:
Vacant Land Lease

111



leased premises as a part of the rent payment pursuant to paragraph 3 hereof. If Lessee chooses this option,
Lessor shall adjust each month's rent to Lessee so as to reimburse Lessor for its cost of providing such City
utility services, said cost to be determined as established by the City's appropriate utility tariffs based on
Lessee's monthly metered consumption.

14. REPAIRS AI\D MAINTENANCE: Lessee agrees to make, at its own cost and expense, any or all repairs
or work necessary to maintain the Premises and Buildings located on the Premises.

15. INSURANCE:
(a) Lessee agrees that any insurance coverage for property owned by Lessee is solely the responsibility of

Lessee.
(b) The Lessee shall carry Commercial General Liability insurance with a combined single limit in the

minimum amount of $1,000,000 in order to secure the obligations of Lessee under the following
paragraph and cause the Lessor to be added as party insured under such policy, and to furnish the Lessor
with a certificate of such insurance, together with a receipt showing the premium has been paid.

(c) At any time after occupancy of the premises by the Lessee, the Lessee agrses to allow an inspection by
the Landlord and./or the Florida Department of Environmental Protection, (the "DEP"), to determine
the extent of storage or use ofhazardous materials and to determine an appropriate amount of pollution
insurance. The Lessee agrees to obtain pollution insurance, with the Lessor listed as an additional
insured pilty, in an amount as reasonably required by the Lessor within l5 days of written notice.

(d) All policies of insurance shall contain the clause that the same shall not be canceled except and until
fifteen (15) days after written notice to the Lessor.

16. INDEMNIFICATION OF LESSOR: Lessee agrees to protect, defend, reimburse, indemnify and hold
the Lessor, its agents, employees and officers and each of them forever, free and harmless at all times from
and against any and all claims, liability, expenses, losses, costs, fines and damages (including reasonable
attorney fees) and causes of action of every kind and character (this is to the extent allowed by law, and
except to the extent caused by the Lessor's gross negligence or intentional misconduct) by reason of any
damage to property, or the environment (including, without limitation, any contamination of Airport
property, such as the soil or storm water, or by fuel, gas, chemicals or any Hazardous Substances), or bodily
injury (including death) incurred or sustained by any party hereto, any agent or employee of any party
hereto, or any other person whomsoever, or any governmental agency, arising out of or incident to or in
connection with the Lessee's performance under this Agreement, the Lessee's use or occupancy of the
Prernises, the Lessee's acts, omissions or operations hereunder or the performance, non-perforrnance or
purported performance ofthis Agreement or any breach of the terms ofthis Agreement. Lessee recognizes
the broad nature of this indemnification and hold harmless clause, and voluntarily makes this covenant and
expressly acknowledges the receipt of such good and valuable consideration provided by the Lessor in
support ofthis indemnification in accordance with the laws ofthe State of Florida. This clause shall survive
the termination of this Agreement. Compliance with the insurance requirements herein shall not relieve
the Lessee of its liability or obligation to indemnify the Lessor as set forth in this Article. Notwithstanding
anything to the contrary in the foregoing or within this Agreernent, the Lessor shall not relinquish or waive
any of its rights as a sovereign local govemment and the Lessor reserves all rights and defenses under
applicable sovereign immunity law.

Lessor hritials:Lessee Initials:
Vacant Land Lease

112



17. SUBORDINATION: This lease and all rights of Lessee under it are and shall be subject to and subordinate
to the rights of any mortgage holder now or hereafter having a security interest in the leased premises or
any other encumbrances Lessor desires to place on the property.

18. TAXES: All taxes, assessments and charges on lands or improvements and obligations upon the demised
premises shall be promptly paid by the Lessee when due. The Lessee shall have the right from time to time
to contest or protest or review by legal proceedings any such other manner as may be provided by law such
taxes or assessments imposed by governmental authorities and to institute such proceedings in the name of
itself as well as the Lessor as it may deem necessary; provided, however, that any expense incurred by
reasons thereof shall be bome by the Lessee and such proceedings shall be conducted free of any expense
to the Lessor. Any expense incurred by reasons thereof shall be bome by the Lessee and such proceedings
shall be conducted free of any expense to the Lessor.

19. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING: The Lessee shall not assign nor sublet its right, title or interest in
or to all or any portion of the Premises or the leasehold improvements without first obtaining the prior
written consent of the Lessor, provided, however, that such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld;
and provided further that the Lessee shall rernain directly and primarily liable for the performance of the
terms and conditions of this Lease; provided further that no such assignment or subletting shall be made to
any person for any purpose other than that set forth in this Lease.

20. DEFAULT: REMEDIES: The occurrence of anyone or more of the following events shall constitute a
default on the part of the Lessee: (1) the Lessee fails to pay when due any rental or any other sum of money
payable hereunder on the date due; (2) the conduct of any business or performance of any acts at the Airport
not specifically authorized,inthe Agreement; (3) the Lessee abandons, deserts or vacates the Premises; (4)
the Lessee breaches or fails to comply with any other term, provision, covenant or condition of this
Agreement; or (5) the Lessee breaches or fails to comply with any other term, provision, covenant or
condition of any other agreement, contract or obligation with or to Lessor. Any or all of the foregoing shall
hereinafter be referred to as o'Events of Default".

Upon the occurrence of any of the above Events of Default, the Lessor shall give written notice of such
default to Lessee at the address set forth under section 4, above. The effective date of notice shall be the
date that the notice is placed in the U.S. Mail or posted on the premises by Lessor. If the default is for
failure to pay rent or any other sum of money when due, then the Lessee shall have three (3) days after the
effective date of notice to cure. If the default is for any other Event of Default then the Lessee shall have
fifteen (15) days after the effective date of notice to cure, except that Lessee shall not be allowed an
opportunity to cure a re-occurring Event of Default of the same type which has been previously notice by
the Lessor and cured by the Lessee.

If the Lessee fails to cure the default within the time allowed, Lessor shall thereafter have the option to
exercise any remedy or right permitted by law or in equity. The Lessee shall fully reimburse and
compensate the Lessor upon demand for any costs and expenses incurred in connection with any cure,
correction or repair undertaken by Lessor, which sums shall be deemed to be additional rent hereunder. In

Lessor Initials:Lessee Initials: Lessor Initials
Vacant Land Lease

113



the event the Lessor relets the Premises, the Lessee shall pay the Lessor any deficiency between the amount
received, if any, form such reletting, and the amount of rent and other fees payable by the Lessee hereunder,
including Lessor's expenses in connection with re-entry, taking possession, repairing and reletting.

Notwithstanding the occurrence of any Event of Default, the Lessee shall remain liable to the Lessor for
all payrnents payable hereunder and for all preceding breaches of any covenant of this Agreement.
Furthermore, unless the Lessor elects to cancel this Agreement, the Lessee shall remain liable for and
promptly pay any and all payments accruing hereunder until such time as this Agreonent has been duly
canceled. No retaking of possession of the Premises y the Lessor shall be construed as an election on its
part to terminate this Agreernent, unless a written notice of such intention be given to the Lessee. No
pursuit of any remedy by Lessor shall constitute a forfeiture or waiver of any payments or other moneys
due to the Lessor hereunder, or of any damages accruing to the Lessor by reason of the violations of any of
the terms, provisions, and covenants herein contained. Lessor's acceptance of payments or other moneys
following any event of default hereunder shall not be construed as the Lessor's waiver of such event of
default unless the event of default is the delinquency in the payment of the amount accepted. No
forbearance by the Lessor of action upon any violation or breach of any of the terms, provision and
covenants herein contained shall be deemed or construed to constitute a waiver of the terms, provisions
and covenants herein contained. Forbearance by the Lessor to enforce one or more of the remedies herein
provided upon an Event of Default shall not be deemed or construed to constitute a waiver of any such
remedy.

21. CONDEMNATION: In the event the entire premises hereby leased are taken in condemnation
proceedings, the Lessee may cancel the Lease; should a substantial part of said premises be so taken, the
Lessee may cancel this Lease or at its option retain the remainder of the premises, which shall be restored
to tenantable condition, then the rental shall be apportioned; the rental thereafter shall be reduced in
proportion to the amount of loss as a result of condemnation proceedings.

22. CLEANLINESS: Lessee shall at all times keep the leased premises in a reasonably neat and orderly
condition and clean and free from rubbish and dirt. Lessee will not store any unsightly materials, junk,
garbage or debris of any kind upon the said premises and shall commit or suffer no waste of the said
demised premises or maintain any nuisance thereon.

23. DESTRUCTION OF PREMISES: In the event of damage to or destruction of any improvements which
are to be erected on said real property pursuant to the terms of this Lease, during the term of said Lease,
from any cause covered by the insurance required hereunder, Lessee shall forthwith repair or rehabilitate
the same. Such damage or destruction shall in no wise annul or void this Lease.

24. LATE PAYMENT PENALTY: All lease payments that are not paid by the due date are considered
delinquent and shall be assessed a ten (10) percent penalty which shall be considered apart of the rent and
shall be due and payable with the rent payment.

25. OPTION TO EXTEND TERM OF LEASE: Conditioned upon Lessee's strict compliance with all terms
and provisions of this lease during the entire term ofthe lease, Lessor does hereby grant to Lessee an option

Lessor Initials:Lessee Initials:
Vacant Land Lease

114



to extend the lease term for 4 additional 5-year terms, on like terms and conditions, with the rent adjusted
according to paragraph 3, and provided that the Lessee, at the least 90 days prior to the end of the then
current term, gives written notice of its intent to exercise its option. Lessee's right to renew shall be
conditioned upon Lessee's strict compliance with all terms and provisions of this lease during the entire
term of the lease, and any non-compliance with any term or provision of this lease by Lessee, regardless of
whether notice was given by Lessor or whether the non-compliance was cured, shall constitute sufficient
cause by Lessor to choose to refuse renewal of this lease.]

26. BANKRUPTCY: The Lessee agrees that if Lessee is adjudged bankrupt or insolvent under the laws of
the United States or any state, or makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, or if a receiver of
the property of the Lessee is appointed and shall not be discharged within ninety days after such
appointment, then the Lessor may, at its option, declare the termination of this Lease agreement shall
forthwith be entitled to immediate possession of the Premises.

27. END OF TENAi\CY: The Lessee will yield up the Premises and all additions thereto (except signs,
equipment and trade fixtures installed) in as good and tenantable condition as the same are at the beginning
of Lessee's occupancy, reasonable wear and tear, damage by fire and other casualties and condemnation
appropriate by eminent domain excepted.

28. PART OF MUNICIPAL AIRPORT: It is understood and agreed by and between the parties hereto that
the said property is a portion of the Williston Municipal Airport and, therefore, notwithstanding anything
contained that may be or appear to the contrary, it is expressly understood and agreed that the rights granted
under this agreement are non-exclusive and the Lessor herein reserves the right to grant similar privileges
to another Lessee or other Lessees on other parts of the airport. This Lease and all provisions hereof are
subject and subordinate to the terms and conditions of the instruments and documents under which the
Lessor acquired the subject property from the United States of America and shall be given only such effect
as will not conflict or be inconsistent with the terms and conditions contained in the deed of said lands to
the Lessor, and any existing or subsequent amendments thereto, and are subject to any ordinances, rules or
regulations which have been, or may hereafter be adopted by the United States of America, the State of
Florida, or the Lessor pertaining to the Williston Airport. These terms and conditions include, but are not
limited to, requirements that the Lessor obtain Fair market value rent for the leased premises for the duration
of the lease term.

29. NONDISCRIMINATION: The Lessee for itself, its personal representatives, successors in interest, and
assigns, as a part ofthe consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and agree that (l) no person on the
grounds of race, color, or national origin shall be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or
be otherwise subjected to discrimination in the use of said facilities, (2) andthat in the construction of any
improvements on, over or under such land and the furnishing of services thereon, no person on the grounds
of race, color, or national original shall be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or be
otherwise subjected to discrimination, (3) that the Lessee shall use the premises in compliance with all
other requirements imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, department of
transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Pafi 27, Nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted
programs of the Department of Transportation-Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1 96 4, and

Lessor Initials:Lessee Initials:
Vacant Land Lease

115



as said Regulations may be amended. In the event of breach of any of the above nondiscrimination
covenants, Lessor shall have the right to terminate the Lease and to re-enter and as if said Lease had never
been made or issued. The provision shall not be effective until the procedures of Title 49, Code of Federal
Regulations Part 2I arc followed and completed including exercise or expiration of appeal rights.

30. AIRPORT PROTECTION: Lessor reserves unto itself its successors and assigns, for the use and benefit
of the public, a right of flight for the passage of aircraft in the airspace above the surface of the real property
hereinafter described, together with the right to cause in said airspace such noise as may be inherent in the
operation of aircraft, now known or hereafter used, for navigation of or flight in the said airspace, and for
use of said airspace for landing on, taking off from or operating on the airport. The Lessee expressly agrees
to restrict the height of structures, objects of natural growth and other obstructions on the hereinafter
described real property to such a height so as to comply with Federal Aviation Regulations, Part 77. The
Lessee expressly agrees to prevent any use of the Premises which would interfere with or adversely affect
the operation or maintenance of the airport, or otherwise constitute an airport hazard.

31. SUBROGATION CLAUSE: The Lessor and Lessee shall waive all rights, each against the other, and
against those holding under or through the Lessor or Lessee, for damages caused by fire or other perils to
the extent covered by insurance where such damages are sustained in connection with the occupancy of the
Premises.

32. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS: The Lessee shall not cause or permit any Hazardous Materials to be
brought upon, stored, used, generated, released into the environment or disposed of on, in, under or about
the airport, without the prior written consent of the Lessor. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Lessee
hereby agrees to indemnifu, defend, protect and hold harmless Lessor and Lessor's Agents, and their
respective successors and assigns, from any and all claims, judgments, damages, penalties, fines, costs,
liabilities and losses (including, without limitation, loss or restriction on use of rentable space or of any
amenity of the Premises and sums paid in settlement of claims, attomeys' fees, consultant fees and expert
fees) which arise during or after the lease term directly or indirectly from the presence of Hazardous
Materials on, in or about the Premises which is caused or permitted by Lessee or Lessee's Agents. This
indemnification includes, without limitation, any and all costs incurred in connection with any investigation
of site conditions or any clean up remedial, removal or restoration work required by any federal, state or
local governmental agency or political subdivision because of the presence of such Hazardous Material in,
on or about the Premises or the soil or ground water on or under any building or any portion thereof. The
Lessee shall promptly notifu the Lessor of any release of Hazardous Materials at the airport, whether caused
by the Lessee or any other persons or entities.

The Lessee shall promptly notify the Lessor of, and shall promptly provide true, correct, complete and
legible copies of, all of the following environmental items relating to any property at the airport which may
be filed or prepared by or on behalfof, or delivered to or served upon, the Lessee: reports filed pursuant to
any self-reporting requirements, reports filed pursuant to any applicable laws, all permit applications,
permits, monitoring reports, workplace exposure and community exposure warnings or notices and all
other reports, disclosures, plans, manifests or documents (even those which may be characterized as

Lessee lnitials:
Vacant Land Lease

Lessor Lritials:

116



confidential) relating to water discharges, air pollution, water generation or disposal, underground storage
tanks or Hazardous Materials.

The Lessor shall have the right, but not the obligation, to inspect, investigate, sample and/or monitor any
property at the airport, including any soil, water, groundwater or other sampling, and any other testing,
diggng, drilling or analyses, at any time, to determine whether the Lessee is complying with the
requirements of this section, or of any other law, and in connection therewith, the Lessee shall provide the
Lessor with full access to all relevant facilities, records and personnel.

As used in this section, the term "Hazardous Materials" shall mean and include any hazndous or toxic
materials, substances orwastes including (A) anymaterials, substances orwastes which aretoxic, ignitable,
corrosive or reactive and which are regulated by any local governmental authority, any agency of the State
of Florida or any agency of the United States Government, (B) asbestos, (C) petroleum and petroleum-
based products, (D) urea formaldehyde foam insulation, (E) polychlorinated byphenyls ("PCBs"), and (F)
freon and other chlorofluorocarbons.

Prior to the execution of this Lease, Lessee shall complete, execute and deliver to Lessor a Hazardous
Materials Questionnaire in the form required by Lessor. The completed Hazardous Materials Questionnaire
shall be deemed incorporated into this Lease for all purposes, and Lessor shall be entitled to rely fully on
the information contained therein. On each anniversary of the cofilmencement date of this lease, Lessee
shall complete, execute and deliver to Lessor an updated Hazardous Materials Questionnaire, in form as

may be modified by Lessor from time to time.

If the Lessee or any environmental inspection discloses the existence of Hazardous Materials in, on, under
or about the Premises, the Lessee shall, at Lessor's request, immediately prepare and submit to Lessor
within thirty (30) days after such request a comprehensive plan, subject to Lessor's approval, specifring
the actions to be taken by Lessee to return the Preraises to the condition existing prior to the introduction
of such Hazardous Materials. Upon Lessor's approval of such clean-up plan, Lessee shall, at Lessee's sole
cost and expense, without limitation on any rights and rernedies of Lessor under this lease, or applicable
law, immediately implement such plan and proceed to clean up the Hazardous Materials in accordance
with all applicable laws and as required by such plan and this lease.

The provisions of this section, including, without limitation, the indemnification provisions set forth herein,
shall survive any termination of this lease.

33. STORMWATER POLLUTION: Lessee agrees to prepare and adhere to a Stormwater Pollution
Prevention Plan that meets the requirements of federal and state law and that is approved by Lessor. Lessee
agrees to provide a copy ofsaid plan to Lessor.

34. LITIGATION VENUE: The Lessor and Lessee waive the privilege of venue and agree that all litigation
between them in the State Courts shall take place in Levy County, Florida, and that all litigation between
thern in the Federal Courts shall take place in the United States District Court for the Northern District of
Florida.

Lessee Initials:
Vacant Land Lease

Lessor Leitials:

117



35. BENEFIT: This lease and all of the covenants and provisions thereof shall inure to the benefit of and be
binding upon the legal representative successors and assigns of the parties hereto.

36. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: APPLICATIONS INCORPORATED: This lease represents the complete
understanding between the Parties, and any prior agreements or representations, whether written or verbal,
are hereby superseded. No agreement to modify this lease will be effective unless in writing and executed
by the pafiy agunst whom the modification is sought to be enforced. Any such modification on the part of
the Lessor shall not be effective unless considered at a public meeting and approved by majority vote of
the Williston City Council. All information provided by Lessee in the lease application process is
incorporated herein by reference. Lessee warrants that all information provided to

37. SECURITY DEPOSIT: Lessor acknowledges receipt of $_ as a security deposit for faithful
performance by Lessee of Lessee's obligations under this lease. If Lessee faithfully performs the lease
obligations and timely surrenders possession ofthe premises, Lessor will repay the security deposit, without
interest, within 30 days after expiration of the term. If Lessee vacates or is removed from the prernises
because of Lessee's default before expiration of the term, Lessor may apply the security deposit to all
damages sustained. Any deposit balance that rernains on the expiration date of the term will be paid to
Lessee within 30 days.

38. MEMORANDUM OF LAND LEASE AGREEMENT: The parties hereto agree to execute a
memorandum of this Land Lease Agreement to be recorded with the Clerk of Courts of Levy County,
Florida on or before sixty (60) days after the date hereof.

[Remuinder of Page Intentionally Left Blank - Signatures on Following PageJ

Lessee Initials:
Vacant Land Lease

Lessor hritials:

118



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Lease to be executed in duplicate this
day of

LESSEE:
Amp2LLC

2023.

LESSOR:
CITY OF WILLISTON

BY BY
TITLE PRESIDENT, CITY COUNCIL

ATTEST:
CIry CLERK

GUARANTY:

The undersigned, does hereby absolutely and unconditionally
guaranteetheobligationSofunderthisagreement,andwaivesallrightsof
notice, dernand and presentment hereunder.

GUARANTOR:

By:
Individually

[*name individual*]

[ *individua]-' s address*l

Lessee Initials:
Vacant Land Lease

Lessor Initials:

119



Prepared by and retum to:
Folds Walker, LLC
Kiersten N. Ballou, Attomey atLaw
527 E. University Avenue
Gainesville,FL 32601

MEMORANDUM OF LAI{D LEASE

THIS MEMORANDUM OF LEASE entered into this day of 2023,by
and between the City of Williston, Florida, (the "Lessor"), and Amp2, LLC (the "Lessee"),

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Lessor and the Lessee have entered into a Land Lease Agreernent dated
2023, (the "Lease"), pursuant to which the Lessor leases to the Lessee that certain real

propefi herein described; and

WHEREAS, the Lessor and the Lessee desire to record certain basic terms of the Lease in the public records
of Levy County, Florida;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and other good and valuable consideration, the
receipt and sufficiency of which are acknowledged, the parties do hereby confirm and set forth the following
terms of the Lease, it being acknowledged by the parties that the Lease contains additional terms not set forth
below and that the enforceability of such additional terms shall not be affected by their omission from this
Memorandum of Land Lease:

The Lessor has leased to the Lessee pursuant to the Lease the real property described with all
rights, privileges and easements appurtenant thereto (collectively, the "Premises"), to wit:

This Lease contains Two separate parcels described as:

Description: (by surveyor) - New Lease "1A"A portion of land lying within the Williston
Municipal Airport, Williston, Florida; Lying in the Northeast ll4 of Section 14, Township 13

South, Range 18 East, Levy County, Florida; being more particularly described as follows:
Commence at the Northeast corner of said Section 14 and run thence North 88o09'09"West,
along the North line of said Section 14, a distance of 585.07feet; thence South 01o50'51"West,
a distance of 62.20feet: thence North 88o10'04"West, a distance of 420.00feet to the Point-of-
Beginning of the herein described lease; thence continue North 88"10'04"West, a distance of
210.00 feet; thence South 01"49'56"West,a distance of 210.00 feet; thence South
88o10'04"East,a distance of 210.00 feet; thence North 01o49'56"East,a distance of 210.00 feet
to the said Point-of-Beginning. Containingl.0l2 Acres, more or less.

1

AND

120



Description: (by surveyor) - New Lease "lB"A portion of land lying within the Williston
Municipal Airport, Williston, Florida; Lying in the Northeast 1/4 of Section14, Township l3
South, Range 18 East, Levy County, Florida; being more particularly described as follows:
Commence at the Northeast comer of said Section 14 and run thence North 88o09'09"West,
along the North line of said Section 14, a distance of 585.07feet; thence South
01"50'51"West, a distance of 62.20feet; thence North 88"10'04"West, a distance of 210.00feet
to the Point-of-Beginning of the herein described lease; thence continue North
88o10'04"West, a distance of 210.00 feet; thence South 01o49'56"West,a distance of 210.00
feet; thence South 88o10'04"East,a distance of 210.00 feet; thence North 01"49'56"East,a
distance of 210.00 feet to the said Point-of-Beginning. Containing 1.012 Acres, more or less

2. Unless sooner terminated as provided in the Lease, the initial term of the Lease is for Thirty
years, beginning on February 1 , 2023 , and ending on February | , 2053 . The Lessee has an option pursuant to
the Lease to renew the Lease for up to four additional five-year terms.

3. The Lease allows the Lessee to construct or place leasehold improvements upon the premises,
however the Lessor's underlying fee interest shall not be subject to any construction lien related to such
improvements.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Memorandum of Land Lease this _ day of
2023.

LESSEE:
AMP2, LLC

BY

LESSOR:
CITY OF WILLISTON

BY:
PRESIDENT, CITY COUNCIL

ATTEST:

CITY CLERK

[Remainder of Page Intentionally LejI Blank - Notarization onfollowing pageJ

TITLE:

2

121



STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNry OF LEVY

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _ day of
the President of the City Council of the City of Williston, and

the City Clerk, on behalf ofthe City. They are personally known to me and
did not take an oath.

Notary Public

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF LEVY

201 .by

201_. - by

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _ day of
who is personally known to me and did not take an oath.

NotaryPublic

3

122



Fl il
ffir'

tili

.. l.'J'

I
1!N

ffi
\Uillislon
h4unicipal

Airport
':',::i ;!i+Ii.:il'.*'r,1gt'€l

ffi
i

Io

iC'r
.ii -' i-tliri

123



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

January 3rd,r2023

TOPIC: Discussion with Possible Action / Pubtic Workshop for Annual Utilities Rate
Adjustments (Electric, Gas, Water, Sewer, Stormwater)

REQUESTED BY: Donald Barber, Public Works Supervisor

BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION:

Economic conditions and proper business planning are essential to Utility
Rate establishments. Staff is requesting council to start an annual utility rate
workshop every February. This will allow for changes that may or may not take
effect to be calculated into the fiscal budget cycle.

The City of Williston has seen the harmful effects of neglecting the rate
discussions for an extensive period of time. This will not only be a time to address
growth or possible recession, but prevent harmful spikes to residents, or drastic cuts
to service levels.

LEGAL REVIEW: NO

FISCAL IMPACTS: YES / Budget Planning

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Staff recommends an ANNUAL Workshop

ATTACHMENTS: NONE

ACTION:

APPROVED

DISAPPROVED

124



Date: January 312023

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

TOPIC: DISCUSSION WITH POSSIBLE ACTION: MAKING ALL CITY PARKS
TOBACCO FREE.

REQUESTED BY: COUNCIL PRESIDENT DEBRA JONES
PREPARED BY: CITY CLERK LATRICIA WRIGHT

BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION: PROHIBIT TOBACCO IN ALL MUNICIPALLY
OWNED AND OPERATED PARKS.

LEGAL REVIEW:

FISCAL IMPACTS:

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve

ATTACHMENTS: CS/IIB 105

COMMISSION ACTION:

APPROVED

DISAPPROVED

125



HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF FINA BILL ANAYSIS
BILL #: CS/HB 105 Regulation of Smoking by Counties and Municipalities
SPONSOR(S): Health & Human Services Committee, Fine and others
TIED BILLS: IDEN./SlM. BILLS: CS/CSiSB 224

FINAL HoUsE FLOORAGTION: 105 Y's 10 N's covERNoR'SAGTtoN: Approved

SUMMARYAT{AYSIS
CS/HB 105 passed the House on February 24,2022, and subsequently passed the Senate on lvhrch 2,2022.

The Florida Clean lndoor Air Act (FCIAA), implements Article X, Section 20 of the Florida Constitution. Article
X, Section 20 of the Florida Constitution prohibits a person from smoking tobacco or using a vapor-generating
electronic device in an enclosed indoor workplace, with certain exceptions. Current law preempts the
regulation of smoking and does not allow counties or municipalities to regulate smoking.

CS/HB 105 amends the FCIM to allow counties and municipalities to restrictsmoking within the boundaries of
any public beach or park they own, except for unfiltered cigars.

The bill changes the title of the "Florida Clean lndoor Air Act" to the "Florida Clean Air Act" to account for the
broader application of the actproposed in the bill.

The bill has no fiscal impact on state government and an indeterminate, negative fiscal impact on local
governments.

The bill was approved by the Governor on June 24, 2022, ch.2O22-213, L.O.F., and will become effective on
July'1,2022.

This document does notreflectthe intentor official position of the bill sponsoror House of Representatives
STORAGE tlAM E: h01 05z.PPl-l.DOCX
DATE:31312022

126



I. SUBSTANTIVE INFORMATION

A. EFFECT OF CHAT{GES

Present Situation

Smoking Regulation

While the Food and Drug Administration (FDA) regulates the manufacture, distribution, and marketing
of tobacco and vaping products, it does not regulate smoking or vaping in public places - leaving that
to the states.

ln 1985, the Florida Legislature enacted the Florida Clean lndoor Air Act (FCIAA)1 to protect the public
health, comfort, and environment by creating areas in public places and at public meetings that were
reasonably free from tobacco smoke. The FCIAA originally prohibited smoking2 in certain indoor public
places (e.9. government buildings, elevators, public transportation, hospitals, day care centers)or
common areas of an indoor public place (e.9. lobby, hallway, stainruell, restrooms), but did permit
designated smoking areas of specified indoor public places such as places of employment, retail
stores, indoor arenas, and restaurants.

Article X. Section 20 of the Florida Constitution

ln the November 2002 General Election, Floridians voted to createArticle X, Section 20 of the Florida
Constitution, titled "Workplaces without tobacco smoke," which further restricted smoking indoors.3 The
purpose of this citizens' initiative was to protect people from the health hazards of secondhand tobacco
smoke by prohibiting smoking in enclosed indoor workplaces, which are defined as:

Any place where one or more persons engage in work,a and which place is
predominantly or totally bounded on all sides and above by physical barriers,
regardless of whether such barriers consist of or include unc6v6red openings,
screened or othenruise partially covered openings; or open or closed windows,
jalousies, doors, or the like.s

The provision also provided various other definitions and exceptions to the smoking ban, and required
the Legislature to implementthe section in law by the following legislative session. Accordingly, in
2003, the Legislature amended the FCIM to conform existing law and implement the constitutional
provision in a mannerconsistent with its broad purpose and stated terms.6

ln the November 2018 General Election, Floridians passed Amendment No. 9, which amended Article
X, Section 20 of the Florida Constitution, banning the useof vapor-generating electronic devices, or
vaping, in enclosed indoor workplaces, consistentwith the prohibition on tobacco smoking.T

1 Ch. 386, Part ll, F.S.; ch. 85-257 ,Laws of Fla.
z "Smoking" is defined as "inhaling, exhaling, burning, carrying, or possessing anylighted tobacco product, including cigarettes, cigars,
pipe tobacco, and any other lighted product. S. 386.203(1 1), F.S.
3Text arailableat https://dos.elections.myflorida.com/initiatives/fulltexUpdf/34548-1 .pdf (lastvisited March 3, 2022).The constitutional
provis ion does not preclude the Legislature from enacting more restrictive regulation of tobacco smoking.
a "Work" is defined as "any pers ons providing anyem ployrn ent or em ployn ent-t),pe service for or at the request of another ind ividual or
individuals orany public or prirate entity, whetherfor com pensation or not, whetherfull or part-time, whether legally or not." Fla. Const.,
art. X s. 20. "Work" includes, without lim itation, anysuch service perform ed by an em ployee, independentcontractor, agent, partner,
proprietor, manager, officer, director, apprentice, trainee, associate, senant, rolunteer, and the like. The term does not include
noncommercialactiMties performed bymembers of a membership association. S. 386.203(17), F.S.
5 The sm oking ban applies to all enclosed indoorworkplaces regardless of whetherwork is bccuning at any gilen time, Fla. Const., art.
X s.20.
6 Ch. 2003-398, Laws of Fla.
7 Text awilable at: p. 26-30 https://dos.myflorida.com/media/699824/constitutional-amendments-2018-general-election-english.pdf (last
visitedMarch 3,2022). Note: AmendmentNo.9alsoamendedarticlell,sectionToftheFloridaConstitutiontobanoffshoreoilandgas
drilling.

STORAGEMME: hO1OSz.PPH.DOCX PAGE 2
DATE:31312022

127



The FCIAA prohibits smoking and vaping in an enclosed indoor workplace, unless it is a:8

. Private residencethat is not being used commerciallyto provide child care, adult care, or health
care, or any combination thereof;

. Retail tobacco shop;

. Designated smoking guest room in a public lodging establishment;

. Stand-alone bar;e

. Smoking cessation program or medical or scientific research;or

. Customs smoking room in an airport.

However, an owner, lessee, or a person otheruvise in control of an enclosed indoor workplace may
further prohibit or limit smoking or vaping therein.l0

Additionally, no one under the age of 18 years old may smoke tobacco or vape in, on, or within 1,000
feet of a public or private grade school between 6 a.m. and midnight.ll Molators of this provision are
subject to a citation from a law enforcement officer.l2

Persons in charge of enclosed indoor workplaces are required to develop and implement smoking and
vaping prohibition policies in line with the FCIAA requirements.l3 Persons in charge of a smoking or
vaping cessation program, medical or scientific research, or an airport terminalthat includes a customs
smoking room must all post signs clearly stating that smoking is only permitted in the designated
areas.la Additionally, public transportation carriers in certain locations are required to make regular
announcements regarding the smoking and vaping prohibition.l5

The Department of Health (DOH)and the Department of Business and ProfessionalRegulation (DBPR)
are each responsible for the enforcement of the FCIAA as it relates to their respective areas of
regulatory authority.16 lf an enclosed indoor work place violates the FCIAA and does not correctthe
violation within 30 days, DOH or DBPR may imposefines against the owner and pursue compliance in
circuit court, if necessary.17 Additionally, any person who violates the FCIAA by smoking or vaping in an
enclosed indoor work place commits a noncriminal violation and may be subjectto a fine of up to $100
for the first violation and up to $500 for each subsequent violation.ls

Currently, the state preempts the regulation of smoking and does not allow counties or municipalities to
regulate smoking, except school districts may further restrict smoking on school district property.le The

I Ss. 386.204 and 386.2045, F.S. Additionally, s. 386.203(5), F.S., by definition of an "enclosed indoorworkplace," excludes an yfacility
owned or leased byand used exclusivelyfor noncom mercial activities performed bythe mem bers and guests of a m em bership
association, including social gatherings, meetings, dining, and dances, if no person or persons are engaged in work.
e A stand-alone baris a licensed premisesthat predominantlyortotally senes alcoholic bererages and in which serving food is merely
incidental to the sale of alcohol. Also, it m ust not s hare a com mon entryway or indoor area with a business that predom inantly senes
food during the hours the stand-alone bar is operating its business, s. 386.203(1 1 ), F.S. See a/so s. 561 .695, F.S.
10 Fla. Const., art X, sec.20(b).
11s. 386.212(1),F.S.
12 s. 386.212(2), F.S.
13 s. 386.206(1), F.S.
14 s. 386.206(2)-(3), F.S.
15 s. 386.21'1, F.S.
16 Ss. 386.207(1 )and 561 .695, F.S. DBPR enforces the FCIAA in restaurants, bowling centers, dog tracks, horse tracks, bars, bil liards,
bingo halls (with food service), and civic/fraternal organizations. DOH enforces the FCIAA in all facilities not regulated by DBPR. Florida
Departmentof Health, Florida Clean lndoorAirAct, Enforcement, http:/Aruww.floridahealth.qov/PROGRAMS-AND-
SERVCES/prevention/tobacco-free-florida/indoor-air-acUindexhtm I (lastMsited lhrch3, 2022).
17 s. 386.207(3), F.S.
18 s. 386.208, F.S.
1e s. 386.209, F.S.

STORAGE },lAM E: h01 05z.PPH. DOCX
DATE:31312022

PAGE 3

128



state does not currently preempt the regulation of vaping. Thus, local governments impose more
restrictive regulation on the use of vapor-generated electronic devices.20

County and Municipally Owned Parks

The Division of Recreation and Parks within the Florida Department of Environmental Protection
maintains a comprehensive inventory of the existing park facilities and outdoor resources in Florida.
The inventory provides details about the parks and recreation areas in the state and contains
information on more than 13,000 outdoor recreational facilities in Florida, the majority of which are
county and municipal parks.21

There are 67 county park systems and more than 400 municipal park systems in the state.22 Such
parks provide a wide variety of activities to the public, including nature trails, bird watching, youth and
adult athletics, bike paths, horse trails, boat ramps, fishing piers, outdoor gyms, and outdoor
pavilions.23 For example, Orange County maintains and operates 118 county-owned parks, which
consist of a wide array of available activities and facilities.2a Additionally, municipalities within Orange
County also own and operate parks and outdoor recreational facilities. For example, the City of Winter
Park owns and operates 11 city parks, which offer similar recreational activities to county-owned
parks.25

Public Beaches

Florida has 825 miles of sandy coastline, attracting over 19 million tourists each year.26 A significant
portion of Florida's beaches is publicly owned, including federally-owned areas managed by the
National Park Service, parts of Florida's 175 state parks, and the many beaches owned and managed
by local governments on the coast.2T ln general, access tothese beaches is free through the numerous
public access points along the coast however; some state parks, counties and municipalities charge an
access fee.

20 ld.; "Vapor-generating electronic devices" means anyproductthat em plop an electronic, a chem ical, ora mechanical means capable
of producing \€por or aerosol ftom a nicotine product or any other s ubstance, including, but not lim ited to, an electronic cigarette,
electronic cigar, electronic cigarillo, electronic pipe, or other s im ilar device or product, any replacem ent cartridge for s u ch device, and
any other container of a solution or other s ubstance intended to be us ed with or within an electron ic cigarette, electron ic cigar,
electronic cigarillo, electronic pipe, orother s im ilardevice or product.
21 Florida Division of Recreation and Parks, Florida Outdoor Recreation lnventory, https://floridadeo.qoviparks/florida-outdoor-
re c rea ti o n -i n ve n to ry (l a s t vi s i ted \llar ch 3, 2022)
zFloridaDepartmentof Environmental Protection,DivisionofRecreationandParks, FrequentlyAskedQuestions,

(last vis ited March 3, 2022).
23 ld.
2a Orange County Gor,ernment Florida, Parks, http://www.oranqecounh/fl.neVCultureParksiParks.aspx (lastvisited llarch 3, 2022).
25 City of Winter Park, Parks, httos:i/citrncfiarinterpark.orq/departments/oarks-recreation/parks-playgrounds/oarks/(lastvisited f\4arch 3,
2022).
6 Departmentof Environmental Protection, Beaches, httos:/lfloridadep.gov/water/beaches (lastvisited at March 3,2022).
27 National Park Service, Canaleral National Seashore, Natirat featuresA Ecosystems, '

hftos://www.nps.qov/cana/learn/nature/naturalfeaturesandecosvstems.htm (lastvis ited March 3, 2022). Canaveral National Seashore's
24 miles of undewloped beach is the longestsuch stretch on the eastcoastof Florida;National Park Service, Gulf lslands N ational
Seashore, Things Io Do, httos://www.nps.goviguis/planyourvisiVthinos2do.htm (lastvisited March 3, 2022). Gulf lslands National
Seashore stretches for 160 m iles alon the coasts of both Florida and Mississippi;DEP, Beachesand Coasfsal Florida Sfafe Parks,

(lastvisited March 3, 2022).Florida's state parks include
1 00 miles of beaches; DEP, Map of Florida's Coastal Counties , https ://fl oridadep.qov/fco/fcm o/docu m entsimap-fl oridas-coastal-
counties (las tvisited March 3, 2022);Beaches in coastalcounties are importantfortourism and Florida's "brand"; DEP, Florida Coastal
Management Program, FlnalAssessm ent and Strategies, FY 2016- FY 2020,30 (2015)
httos://floridadep.govis ites/defaultlfiles/FCMP_FY2016-2O_Assessment.odf (last
visitedMarch 3,2022).Basedonshorelineaccesssites,thereareapproximately43gmilesofpublicsaltwaterbeachinFlorida.

STORAGEMME h01OSz.PPH.DOCX PAGE 4
DAfiE:,31312022

129



Health Concerns

ln 2021, an estimated 15.5 percent of the adults in Florida were tobacco smokers.2s Tobacco smoke
contains over 7,000 chemicals, including hundreds that are toxic and up to 69 that are known to cause
cancer.2e [\4ore than 480,000 deaths annually in the United States are caused by cigarette smoking,
with exposure to secondhand smoke causing an estimated 41,000 deaths each year.3o Secondhand
smoke is generally defined as smoke from burning tobacco products or smoke that is exhaled by a
tobacco smoker.31 Exposure to secondhand smoke can cause numerous health problems and has
been causally linked to cancer and other fatal diseases.32 Studies suggest that secondhand smoke in
crowded outdoor areas can cause concentrations of air contaminants comparable to those caused by
indoor smoking.33

Effect of d Chanqes

Srnoking Regulation

CS/HB 105 narrows the existing preemption of smoking regulation to the state: it authorizes counties
and municipalities to restrictsmoking within the boundaries of any public beaches and public parks they
own. Municipalities may also restrict smoking within the boundaries of public beaches and public parks
that are within their jurisdiction, but owned by the county, unless such restriction conflicts with county
ordinance. However, counties and municipalities may not restrict the smoking of unfiltered cigars in
these settings.

The bill changes the title of Part ll of ch. 386, F.S., from "lndoor Air: Smoking and Vaping" to "smoking
and Vaping" to conform to the bill's expansion of the actto address outdoor smoking.

The bill makes conforming changes.

The bill provides an effective date of July 1 ,2022.

28 United Health Foundation, America's Health Rankings, Annual Report,
https://www.am ericashealthrankings.orq/e)0llore/annual/measure/Smokino/state/Fl (lastvisited March 3, 2022).
2e /d.; U.S. Departmentof Health and Human Services, The Health Consequencesof Smoking-S|Yearsof Piogress;A Reportof the
Surgeon General,148 (2014), https://www.s uroeongeneral.qov/libraVreports/50-vears-of-progress/full-report.pdf (lastvisited March 3,
2022).
30 Centers for Disease Control and Prerention,Tobacco-Related Arhrtality,
https://www.cdc.qov/tobacco/data statistics/fact sheets/heafth effectsitobacco related_mortality/indexhtm (lastvisited March 3,
2022).
31 Centers for Disease Control and Prer,rentio n, Secondhand Smoke (SHS) Facfs,

littps:ttwww.coc.qov^o (lastvisited March3,2oz2).
32 ld.
33 Nipapun Kungskulniti et al., Secondh and Smoke Point-Source ExposuresAsses sed By Particutate Matter At Two PopularPubtic
Be a ch e s i n T h a i I a n d, 4Q J. P u b I i c H ea lth 3, 527 -532 (20 I 7 ),
https://academ ic.oup.com4oubhealthlarticle/40i31527141 10319?ouestAccessKey=5947c328-fd75-4b6c-acfe-28€89c4c639 (lastvisited
lr4arch 3, 2022); James Repace, Benefits of Smoke-free Regulations in Outdoor Settings.' Beaches, Go/f Courses, Parks, Patios and in
Motor Vehicles, 34 WM Mitchell L. Rev. 1621 ,1622-1624,1638 (2008), httos://open.m itchellhamline.edu/wmlr/vol34/iss4/15/ (last
visited March 3,2022).

STORAGEMME h010Sz.PPH.DOCX PAGE 5
DATE:,31312022

130



II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

A FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:

To the extent that any imposed smoking restrictions deter or encourage visitation of county and
municipal beaches and parks, local governments may experience and indeterminate fluctuation in
revenues generated by any fees for beach and park admittance.

2. Expenditures:

Counties and municipalities that opt to restrict smoking within the boundaries of public parks may
incur indeterminate expenses related to enacting and enforcing such restrictions.

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

Visitors to county or municipal parks who violate smoking restrictions imposed by a county or
municipality may be subject to any applicable fines or civil penalties for such violations.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:

None.

STORAGE I,IAM E h01 OSz.PPH. DOCX
DATE:,31312022

PAGE 6

131



ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE TO PRC}VIDE A PROHIBITION
AS TCI THE CONSUMPTION OR POSSSSSION OF
ANY ALCOLIOL]C tsEVEil.AGES .IN A PUBI.ICLY
OI,NED PARK, I{BCREATION AREA, PUBLIC
SCHOOL PROPERTY, MUNICIPALLY O}NED
AND OPERATED RECREATION CENTERS OR-

SWIMIVIING POOL, AND MUNI.CIPAL STADIUM;
PROVIDING A PROHIBITION AGAINST }IAVING
ANY ALCOHOLIC BEVEIU\GES IN AN OPBN CON-
TAINER ON ANY PI]BLIC STREET, THORCIt]GH-
FARB, SIDEWALK, OR ANY PUBTICLY O-IdNED
PARKING I.OT FACILITY IN TI{B CITY, OR ON
PRIVATE PROPBRTY, EX-C8PT WT{EN, AS A
LAI^]FUL GUBST, WIT}i TTIE CONSENT OF T1IE
OM\BR OR P}IRSON IN CI{ARGB OF' SUCH PRI-
VATE PROPERTY; and PROVIDING AN EFFBC-
TIVE DATE.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF TIiE CITY Oli WILLISTON,

FLORIDA, in regular session as follows:

Sg:ctl-on 1. The Code of Ordinances of ehe City of
Willist.on, Chapter 4 is amended to add Section 4-15, as

follows :

Sec. 4-15" Consumption, possession, prohibitions"
(a) Parks similar areas. It shall be unlawful

for any person to consume or to have in his or her possess-

ion any alcoholie beverages (beer, wine and whiskey) in a

publicly owned park or recreaLion area, or on any publi-c

school property, or at any municipally ownecl zrnd operated

reereation cencers or swimming poo1s, or at Ehe stadium, lo-
catecl aL S. E. Sixth Street and S. E. Third Avenue, comnonly

known as lhe "Williston Municipal $tadium" or "8a11 Park""

(b) 0cl"ier areas generally It Shall be unlawful

for any person to consume or have, in his or her possession

any alcoholic beverages (beer, wine anel whiskey) in an open

container, on any public st.reet, thoroughfare, siclewalh, or
on any publicly owned parking faciliry in the city; nor shall

J4("

132



any person corisume or have in his or her possession any

alcoholie beverages in an open eontainer on any privale
property, except as a 1awfu1 guest and with Lhe consent

of the olrner or person in charge of such private property

Section 2. This Ordinanc,e shall take effect on

March 1, 1980

CITY OF WILLISTON

ATTEST: By

President, City Council

Approved by me, as Mayor of the City of WillisLon,
Florida, on thLs 54 day of &-J- , l9Bo.

City of Wi-l t

4'4-
133



Date: January 312023

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

TOPIC: Discussion: New Changes in Florida Election Laws.

REQUESTED BY: CITY CLERK LATRICIA WRIGHT
PREPARED BY: CITY CLERK LATRICIA WRIGHT

BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION: SB 90: ALL VOTE BY MAIL REQUESTS
CURRENTLY ON FILE WILL BE GOOD THROUGH THE END OF 2022.

LEGAL REVIEW:

FISCAL IMPACTS:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

ATTACHMENTS: NEW LAW CHANGES IN FLORIDA ELECTION

COMMISSION ACTION:

APPROVED

DISAPPROVED

134



New Changes in Florida Election
Laws
The Florida Legislature passed SB 90, an election administration bill revising certain sections of the
Florida Election Code. On May 6,2021Governor Desantis signed the bill into law, with immediate
effect. A brief explanation of changes that may affect voters is provided here:

Vote-by-Mail (Absentee) Requests
One request for a Vote-by-Mail ballot will cover all elections through the end of the calendar year of
the next scheduled general election. All requests currently on file will be good through the end of
2022.

A voter requesting a Vote-by-Mail ballot for himself/herself in writing, in person or by phone must
provide:
. . Voter's name
. . Voter's address
. . Voter's date of birth
' ' Voter's Florida Driver License or Florida lD Card number, or the last four digits of his/her Social
Security number
. . Voter's signature (written requests only)

An immediate family member or legal guardian requesting a ballot on behalf of a voter must provide,
in addition to the voter's information above:
. . Requestor's name
. . Requestor's address
. . Requestor's date of birth
' ' Requestor's Florida Driver License or Florida lD Card number or last four of his/her Social
Security number
. . Requestor's relationship to the voter
. . Requestor's signature (written requests only)

A designee who is picking up or returning Vote-by-Mail ballots for another voter, may lawfully
possess only his or her own ballot and those of immediate family members, in addition to two other
ballots. lmmediate family includes spouse or parent, child, grandparent, grandchild, or sibling of the
designee or designee's spouse.

135




